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Letter of Transmittal 

CllY MANAGER 

REBECCA \1,\NCF. 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council, and the Citizens of Cayce: 

ASSISTANT C/JY MANAGER 

SHAUN M. GREENWOOD 

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Cayce, South Carolina 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 (FY 20 16). The repmt contains a comprehensive analysis of the 
City's financial position and activities for the period. This report is presented in three sections: 1) 
Introductmy Section consisting of this transmittal letter, a listing of City officials, and the organization 
structure; 2) Financial Section, which consists of the independent auditor's repmt, management's 
discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, notes to the financial statements, required supplemental 
information along with detailed combining and individual fund statements; 3) Statistical Section, which 
contains pertinent financial and general information indicating trends for comparative fiscal periods. 

Responsibility for both accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including 
all disclosures, rests with the City of Cayce. We believe the enclosed information is accurate in all material 
aspects, and that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of 
operation of the various funds of the government in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP); and that all disclosures necessaty to enable the reader 
to gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have been included. Management has established 
and maintains a system of internal control to provide for this assurance. 

In accordance with Section 5-13-30 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, the City of Cayce's financial 
statements have been audited by the firm of Robert E. Milhous, C.P.A., P.A. and Associates. The goal of 
the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. The auditor's repmt in the Financial Section provides a discussion of the audit, procedures 
and their opinion. The independent auditor has rendered an unqualified opinion on the City of Cayce's 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 in that they are fairly presented in accordance with 
GAAP. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis Section of this report contains discussion on the City of 
Cayce's current financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Profile of the Government 

The City of Cayce (the "City" or "Cayce") was incorporated in 1914 and is located along the Congaree 
River in Lexington and Richland counties in the central midlands of South Carolina. The City serves a 
popu I at ion of approximately 12,944 and is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal 
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property located within its corporate limits. It is also empowered by State Statute to extend its corporate 
limits by voluntmy annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the City Council. 

The City operates under a council-manager form of government. Policy making and legislative authority 
are vested with the City Council comprised of a mayor and four council members (elected from single 
member districts). The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting a 
budget, hiring the City Manager and selecting the independent auditor to audit the financial statements. 

The City Manager is responsible for canying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council,' overseeing 
the day-to-day operations of the City and appointing the heads of the various departments. 

The City is empowered to levy a propetty tax on both real and personal propetties located within its boundaries. 
Such taxes are levied and collected by Lexington County and Richland County and remitted to the City. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. The South Carolina 
General Statutes require all governmental units to adopt a balanced budget by July I" of each year for all funds 
for which an annual budget is required. Activities for the General Fund, and the Water and Sewer Utility Fund 
are budgeted annually. The annual budget is prepared by Fund and depattment. The level ofbudgetmy control 
(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriate amount) is established by 
depmtment within an individual fund. The City Manager presents the proposed budget to Council for review, 
and approval. The City Manager may make transfers of appropriations within each fund. Budget-to-actual 
comparisons are provided in this repmt for each governmental fund for which an appropriated budget has been 
adopted. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report as 
Required Supplementary Information, the City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial 
management. 

The City of Cayce provides a full range of services including police and fire protection, residential solid waste 
removal services, water and sewer services and recreational activities. The City operates under a July I" to 
June 301

h fiscal year. During the spring of each year, the budget process begins with department heads 
submitting requests and plans to the City Manager who is responsible for presenting the budget request to City 
Council. A detailed description of the budget process is included in the Notes to Budgetaty Comparison of the 
Required Supplementmy Information section in this report. 

Legislative 

The Mayor and four members of City Council are elected to staggered four year terms. Elections are held in 
November of even numbered years. 

The Mayor and Council make policy and enact laws, rules and regulations in order to provide for future 
community and economic growth. Additionally, the Council provides the necessmy suppmt for the orderly and 
efficient operation of City services. 

Council meetings are generally held at 6:00p.m. on the first Tuesday of each month at Cayce City Hall, located 
at 1800 J21h Street Ext. 

You may write to any member of City Council at P.O. Box 2004, Cayce, South Carolina, 29171. 
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At June 30,2016, elected officials were as follows: 

MAYOR 
Elise Partin 
elisepartin@gmail.com 
Telephone: 361-8280 

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

District 1 
Tara Almond 
almondcaycecouncil@gmail.com 
Telephone: 309-1564 

District 2 
James "Skip" Jenkins 
skipjenkins@hotmail.com 
Telephone: 796-9049 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

District 3 
Eva Corley 
eacorley22@gmail.com 
Telephone: 479-0097 

District 4 
Phil Carter 
phillipacarter@yahoo.com 
Telephone: 518-9384 

Accounting standards require management to prepare a narrative overview and analysis to accompany the 
basic financial statements. This narrative, entitled Management's Discussion and Analysis (the "MD&A"), 
is a part of the Financial Section of this report, contains a discussion ofthe City's current financial condition 
and activities for the year ended June 30, 2016, and can be found immediately following the Report of 
Independent Auditor. 

However, the information presented in the MD&A and the basic financial statements is perhaps best 
understood when it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which 
the City operates. The below section of the letter regards factors which affected the City's financial 
condition and operations thereto, and is designed to complement the MD&A as follows. 

Local Economy 

The City of Cayce is located near Columbia, South Carolina which is the state capital and is part of the 
greater Columbia Metropolitan area of South Carolina. This area has been experiencing stable economic 
conditions. The City and its neighbors, the cities of Columbia and West Columbia, have built a regional 
park system along the banks of the Congaree River. The pmtion located in the City is known as the Cayce 
Riverwalk Park and it is part of the Three Rivers Greenway project. It is located from the border of the 
City of West Columbia to the Timmerman Trail that connects to the Lexington County Recreation and 
Aging Commission Tennis Center next to I-77. This is a joint effmt among several agencies. SCANA 
Corp. has also connected their corporate headquarters to the Cayce Riverwalk through the Timmerman 
Trail for the et~oyment of their employees and visitors. Due to the flooding throughout the Midlands in 
October 2015, a section of the park is undergoing repairs. This is being funded through The City of Cayce 
and FEMA matching funds. 

The Congaree River has always played a dominant role of strategic impottance in Cayce's development 
from the early days when barge and boat traffic from the low coun!Iy were a part of evetyday commerce 
on the river. Cayce became an outpost for this trade. The Cayce Riverwalk Park includes a public nature 
park along the river with amenities such as lighted boardwalks and concrete walkways, picnic shelters, park 
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benches, emergency call boxes and over-looks jutting out over the river with magnificent views of the 
Columbia skyline. Development on both sides of the river is a driving force in the continuing economic 
development of the City of Cayce. During the year ended June 30,2004 the City issued a $5,000,000 Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Revenue Bond to obtain funds to develop a portion of the City to enhance 
economic development. Expanding the Cayce Riverwalk Park and connecting it with local commercial 
businesses, along with expanding and upgrading the regional wastewater treatment plant, this positions the 
City to participate in the continued economic growth that is occurring in the Columbia Metropolitan area. 

Economic development on the 121h Street Extension corridor continues at a good pace. 

Construction of the SCAN A Corporate Headquarters on Saxe Gotha Drive has now been complete for five 
years. The SCANA project has increased tax and license revenues in the City budget over that same period. 
Already, spin-off construction for service business, retail, and restaurants is taking place. The city has 
reviewed and approved SCANA's Phase II master plan which includes high rise hotels, upscale restaurants, 
office parks, town homes, apartment complexes, and a gated subdivision. The Lexington County Medical 
Park was finished last year adding to the areas master plan. The townhome project known as Otarre Point 
was completed this fiscal year, adding 299 upscale townhomes, and construction has started for a 100 unit 
Marriott Hotel. An approximately 60 acre tract of land, sometimes referred to as Otarre Center, is currently 
under contract to be sold. The proposed development includes approximately 300,000 square feet of retail 
space of an outlet shopping mall. A development of this type and size will serve as a catalyst for the rapid 
development of the surrounding area and supporting corridors. 

Construction was substantially completed on Knox Abbott for a 224 unit upscale apattment complex called 
The Tremont. The Wal-Matt groce1y store also completed construction and opened in June 2016. 
Permitting for a 22 unit upscale housing development off of Lafayette Avenue was issued this summer. 

In conjunction with that, a residential subdivision named Concord Park that has been under construction on 
Taylor Rd. and 12'" St. since 2013 is now complete and totals 206 upscale single family residences. This 
subdivision is within a short distance to the Cayce Tennis and Fitness Complex that was constructed by the 
Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission. 

In addition, the Southern First Bank building at the corner of Knox Abbott Dr. and Axtell Dr. a regional 
bank now located in Greenville, SC is the first development in the proposed "The Brickworks" project that 
is being developed and built by Brickworks Associates, LLC. New construction associated with this project 
could total $40 million and include 300,000 square feet of office, retail, and residential construction that 
will extend to the Congaree River and tie into the Cayce Riverwalk. Potential development of a hotel 
overlooking the Columbia skyline and Congaree River is also possible with this development. 

Other known projects include the Saxe Gotha Industrial Park that Lexington County is constructing in the 
county abutting Cayce City Limits. The City of Cayce has agreements in place to provide water and sewer 
service to the industrial park. This 400 acre industrial park is being developed off of 12'" Street and will 
extend almost to the 12'" Street interchange oflnterstate 77 at Exit 2. Lexington County has plans to expand 
12'" Street to four lanes and expand the industrial park to accommodate the expected growth. 

As most know, Amazon has a distribution center within the Industrial Park and, though not within the City 
of Cayce, is having a beneficial impact on Cayce and the surrounding area. Nephron, a pharmaceutical 
company built within the Industrial Park, has also increased water sales for the City of Cayce and benefits 
the economy for the area. 

Another major development to which the City is providing water and sewer service is the South Carolina 
State Farmer's Market. The fanner's market relocated from Bluff Rd. in Richland County (across the street 
from USC's William Brice Stadium) to Lexington County on US Highway 321 during the 2012 Fiscal Year 
and continues to experience small gro\\1h. 
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Long-Term Financial Planning 

Revenue forecasts for the next several years suggests that new residential and commercial construction and 
continued economic growth throughout the City and region will keep pace with the operational needs of 
the various depatiments. To help provide the highest standards for our residents, the City Council did 
implement a Hospitality Tax that is being used for the upkeep and expansion of our Parks system. 

The City finished the development of the Cayce Riverwalk Park on the Congaree River through the 
extension of the Parkway to 1-77. The City partnered with the River Alliance, Department of Nahll'al 
Resources, S C Parks Recreation and Tourism, Lexington County and SCANA Corp establishing the 
"12,000 Year History Park". This should continue to increase local economic development. 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cayce for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015. The Cetiificate 
of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for 
preparation of state and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable 
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program 
standards. A CAFR must satisfY both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Cetiificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Cayce has received a 
Certificate of Achievement evety year since the June 30, 2003, CAFR. We believe our current repoti 
continues to conform with the Cetiificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it 
to the GFOA. 

The Community Rating System (CRS) is a voluntary program developed by the Federal Emergency 
Management Association (FEMA) to encourage communities to improve storm water and flood plain 
management that exceed the minimum National Flood Insurance Program requirements. During FY 10, 
the City began participating in this program and has achieved a Class 9 Rating, which awards residents of 
the community with a 5% discount on flood insurance premiums. The City continues to submit paperwork 
yearly which we hope will increase the discount. 

Internal Control 

The City's management appreciates the necessity for a comprehensive framework of internal control as 
defined by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). To that 
end, the City strives to maintain a control environment that supports continuous risk assessment, the proper 
control activities, reliable and secure information and communication, and the appropriate monitoring to 
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, plus the reliability of financial repotiing and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

As part of the City's overall internal control environment, the City establishes specific administrative and 
accounting policies and procedures for its departments and personnel. Through the Finance Depatiment, 
the City accounts for all of its financial activities via a comprehensive ledger system. Monthly 
reconciliation of accounts along with executive review of budget-to-actual reports are part of the City's 
routine control policies to ensure a high level of financial integrity as well as compliance with its budget, 
and applicable laws and regulations. 
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Budgetary and Accounting Policies 

By June JO'h of each year, the City enacts, through passage of an ordinance, a legal budget along with the 
establishment of propetty tax levy (millage) for the upcoming fiscal year. Annually, the City gathers 
information about assessed values of real and personal propetty located within the City limits. The total 
assessments are then applied to the applicable tax rates in order to determine estimated tax revenues. The 
City's 2015-2016 budget appropriated General fund expenditures based on estimated revenues for the fiscal 
year. The Water and Sewer Utility Fund (an Enterprise Fund) provides for budgeted expenses based on 
estimated revenues generated from rates charged for providing utility-related services to its customers. 
Annually, the City Council reviews its utility rates through a comprehensive assessment and analysis of its 
rate structure. The City operates its other funds under informal budgets established and monitored by the 
City Manager. Procedures associated with the development and passage of the annual budget is more fully 
described in the Notes to the Budgetary Comparison of the Required Supplementary Information section 
of this report. 

The budgetaty process and significant accounting policies of the City were consistent with the previous 
year and are more fully described in Note I to the financial statements. The City continues to budget 
actuarial effects associated with GASB #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions; however, they are presently unfunded. The next scheduled 
actuarial valuation is FY 17. Disclosures related to actuarial valuations and accounting treatment of the 
benefit in effect at June 30,2016 are described in Note 9. 

Acl<nowlcdgements 

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated endeavors of the Finance 
Depattment and our independent auditor (Bob Milhous and his staff). We would also like to express our 
appreciation to the staff of the City. Further appreciation is extended to the Mayor and City Council for 
their encouragement, assistance, and approval. 
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E.' ~~ /tJ-4--
E. Garrett Huddle 
City Treasurer 
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FAX: (803) 216-9498 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 

The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Cayce, South Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Myrtle Beaclrj Couway 
Phone: (843) 488-5301 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each m<Uor fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cayce, South Carolina 
(the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the pmpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

l believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion. 

-CONTINUED -
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Opinions 

Unmodified opinion 
In my opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cayce, South Carolina, as of June 30, 2016, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereoffor the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary biformatiou 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the accompanying 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplemental Information as listed in the table 
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during the audit of the basic financial 
statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Otlter llifomwlion 
My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, of the 
combining and individual fimd financial statements and other financial schedules as listed in the table of 
contents as Other Financial Information, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Cayce, South Carolina. 

The combining and individual fund financial statements and other financial schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and ce11ain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
my opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and other financial schedules are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Swm1wrized Comparative Iuformatiou 
The prior year summarized comparative information presented in the individual fund financial statements 
and schedules has been derived from the City's 2015 audited financial statements, and in my repmt dated 
December II, 2015, I expressed an unmodified opinion on those individual fund financial statements and 
schedules. 

The introductory and statistical sections of this report have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, I do not express an opinion or any 
other form of assurance on this information. 

November 30,2016 
Columbia, South Carolina 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



City of Cayce, South Cat·olina 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

This section of the City of Cayce, South Carolina's (the "City") annual financial report presents 
our discussion and analysis of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended 
on June 30,2016. Please read it in conjunction with City's financial statements, which follow this 
section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Per the Government-wide Statement of Net Position, the City's total assets and deferred outflows 
at year end June 30,2016 were $166.0 million and exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows 
by $96.7million. Of the total net position at June 30, 2016, there was an $6.5 million deficit in 
unrestricted funds available to support short term operations of the City. 

Per the Government-wide Statement of Activities, the City's total net position increased by $3.9 
million for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Governmental Activities resulted in a net increase 
of$2.6 million, while the Business-type Activities contributed a positive net change in net position 
of$1.3 million, which was substantially funded by capacity charges and other capital contributions 
recognized during the year. 

The City continues to comply with the new accounting principle Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, 
which required the reporting of a Govermnent-wide liabilities of $15.3 million at June 30, 2016. 
See Note 16 in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the City's basic 
financial statements. Those financial statements have three components: 1) Government-wide 
financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. This 
report also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a mmmer similar to a 
private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities and 
deferred inflows and deferred outflows, with the difference between the four reported as net 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are repotted on the accrual 
basis of accounting when the underlying event gives rise to the change that occurs regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., revenues receivable and 
earned but unused vacation leave). 
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)- Both of the Government-wide financial 
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (i.e., governmental activities) from other functions that are intended 
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (i.e., business­
type activities). The "governmental activities" of the City include general government, finance, 
platming and community development, public safety, public works, parks and museum, garage, 
and support services. The "business-type" activities of the City include a Water and Sewer Utility 
Enterprise Fund. The Government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following 
the discussion and analysis. 

Fund Financial Statements - The "Fund financial statements" provide a more detailed look at 
the City's most significant activities. A fimd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
City, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three 
categories: Governmental funds, Proprietary funds, and Fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds- Govemmental jimds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
repotted as govemmental activities in the Government-wide financial statements. Most of the 
City's governmental services are accounted for in the Govemmental funds. However, unlike the 
Government-wide financial statements, these funds focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a goverrnnent's near-term financing 
requirements. The Governmental Fund financial statements can be found immediately following 
the 'Government-wide" financial statements. 

Proprietary funds - Ente1prise jimds are used to repot1 the same functions presented as business­
type activities in the Government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to 
account for its water and sewer utility. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information and 
the same basis of accounting as the Government-wide financial statements business type activities, 
only in more detail. The basic Proprietary Fund financial statements can be found immediately 
following the 'Governmental Fund' financial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statements - The notes to the financial statements provide additional 
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in both the Goverrnnent­
wide and Fund financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information -The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its 
General Fund. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens 
of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Council about which services to 
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources 
to finance these current period activities. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for 
the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget, and can be found in the section 
entitled "Required Supplementary Information". 

Other Financial Information - Following the basic financial statements, the notes to financial 
statements and the required supplementary information, this annual financial report also presents 
certain detail financial data of individual fund statements and schedules. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govenm1ent's financial 
position. In the case of the City, total assets plus defe1Ted outflows of resources less liabilities, 
less deferred inflows of resources results in net position of $96.7 million at the close of June 30, 
2016. 

Below is a 'condensed' Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2016, which depicts the major 
components of the City's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and net position (with comparative 
amounts for June 30, 20 15). 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Other current assets 
Other assets, net of accumulated 

amortization 
Capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred outflows related to 

pensions 
Losses on bond refundings 

Total deferred outflows of resources 
Total assets and deferred outflows 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and 
Net Position 

Current liabilities 
Current liabilities payable from 

restricted assets 
Non-current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Deferred inflows related to 

pensions 
Total deferred inflows of resources 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 

resources 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Governmental Activities Business~type Activities 
2016 2015 2016 2015 

$ 5,314,433 
3,243,096 

679,430 

95,000 

13,642,253 
22,974,212 

1,749,168 

$ 4,128,056 
2,884,688 
1,236,562 

100,000 

I 1,939,735 
20,289,041 

893,361 

$ 3,372,567 $ 
8,227,197 
3,089,315 

422,898 

I 24,520,000 
I 39,63 I ,977 

790,609 
882,078 

I , 7 4 9, I 68 ___,-,-"-8 9'-'3"', 3:0'6"-1 
24,723,380 21,182,402 

1,672,687 
141,304,664 

881,100 

476,793 
11,862,073 
13,219,966 

781,61 I 
781,611 

14,001,577 

13,078,235 
4,089,583 

(6,446,015) 

821,410 

458,144 
10,882,728 
12,162,282 

901,218 
901,218 

13,063,500 

569,649 

3,430,394 
51,124,033 
55,124,076 

233,173 
233,173 

55,357,249 

I 1,187,075 78,314,467 
2,900,003 7,720,047 

(5,968, 176) __ (c:_87'-",0'-'-99'-') 

2,689,946 
12,198,579 
3,920,193 

481,997 

121,818,748 
141,109,463 

418,770 
115,059 
533,829 

141,643,292 

280,194 

3,316,185 
52,985,524 
56,581,903 

393,193 
393,193 

56,975,096 

79,196,265 
8,302,471 

(2,830,540) 

Totals 
2016 2015 

$ 8,687,000 $ 
I 1,470,293 
3,768,745 

517,898 

138,162,253 
162,606,189 

2,539,777 
882,078 

3,421,855 
166,028,044 

1,450,749 

3,907,187 
62,986,106 
68,344,042 

1,014,784 
1,014,784 

69,358,826 

91,392,702 
I 1,809,630 
(6,533,114) 

6,818,002 
15,083,267 
5,156,755 

581,997 

133,758,483 
161,398,504 

1,312,131 
I 15,059 

1,427,190 
162,825,694 

1,101,604 

3,774,329 
63,868,252 
68,744,185 

1,294,41 I 
1,294,411 

70,038,596 

90,383,340 
1 1,202,474 
(8,798,716) 

Total net position $ 10,721,803 $ 8,118,902 s 85,947,415 $ 84,668,196 s 96,669,218 $ 92,787,098 

Total net position equaled $96.7 million at June 30, 2016 (and $92.8 million at June 30, 2015), of 
which $10.7 million (and $8.1 million deficit in 2015) represents net position of the City's 
Governmental Activities, and $85.9million (and $84.7 million in 2015) represents net position of 
the City's Business-type Activities after restatements. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position ($91.4 million, or 95%) reflects its net 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and vehicles), less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets 
to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Also a pottion of the City's total net position, $11.8 million, or 12.2% represents resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, which includes resources for the 
City's redevelopment district plan and related debt service, law enforcement, and pensions (see 
Note 7 for further detail information). The remaining is a deficit in unrestricted net position 
(totaling $6.5 million in 2016), which if positive, may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. This deficit is a result of recording the net pension liability 
balance of $15.3 million (plus deferred inflows of $1.0 million, less deferred outflows of $3.4 
million) in accordance with GASB #68. 

Unrestricted net positon in Governmental Activities resulted in a deficit totaling $6.4 million in 
2016 (as compared to a deficit of $5.9 million in 2015) primarily resulting from net pension 
liabilities in accordance with GASB #68. 

Business-type Activities resulted in an unrestricted net position deficit totaling $87,099 in 2016 
(as compared to a deficit of $2.8 million in 2015). This deficit is primarily due to recording net 
pension liabilities in accordance with GASB #68. 

Governmental Activities change in net position increased $2.6 million in 2016 (as compared to 
$11.3 million in 2015), primarily due to new hospitality taxes, collection of business licenses, and 
capital grants and contributions. Business-type Activities change in net position increased in 2016 
by approximately $1.3 million (and $1.2 million in 2015) primarily due to system capacity charges 
and other capital contributions. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

The City's components of changes in net position (condensed from the Statement of Activities) 
for FY 2016 and FY 2015, are illustrated in the following table: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals 
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Revenue 
Program Revenue: 

Charges for services $ 1,270,485 $ 1,460,765 $ 16,865,450 $ 14,971,094 $ 18,135,935 $ 16,431,859 
Operating grants and 

contributions 402,575 242,087 402,575 242,087 
Capital grants and contributions 618,648 6,649,664 948,615 1,604,279 1,567,263 8,253,943 

General revenue: 
Properly taxes 4,066,933 3,786,956 4,066,933 3,783,478 
Accommodation and hospitality 

taxes 1,074,154 697,654 1,074,154 697,654 
State shared and unallocated 

intergovernmental 425,994 501,191 425,994 501,191 
Licenses and other 4,587,578 6,704,824 4,587,578 6,704,824 
Other 673,436 392,699 14,687 34,422_ 688,123 427,149 

Total revenue 13,119,803 20,435,840 17,828,752 16,609,823 30,948,555 37,045,663 

Expenses 
General government 481,829 434,485 481,829 434,485 
Information technology 84,776 85,962 84,776 85,962 
Finance 117,820 56,868 117,820 56,868 
Public safety 5,719,168 4,976,924 5,719,168 4,976,924 
Public works 1,477,526 1,331,873 1,477,526 1,331,873 
Planning and development 790,776 675,085 790,776 675,085 
Parks and museum 804,149 636,000 804,149 636,000 

Garage 295,422 243,925 295,422 243,925 
Depreciation and amortization 

(unallocated) 708,459 651,325 708,459 651,325 
Interest 36,977 55,817 36,977 55,817 
Water and sewer utility 16,549,533 14,868,109 16,549,533 14,868,109 

Total expenses 10,516,902 9,148,264 16,549,533 14,868,109 27,066,435 24,016,373 

Changes in net position 2,602,901 11,287,576 1,279,219 1,741,714 3,882,120 13,029,290 
Beginning net position 8,118,902 (3, 168,674) 84,668,196 82,926,482 92,787,098 79,757,808 

Ending net position $ 10,721,803 $ 8,118,902 $85,947,415 $ 84,668,196 $ 96,669,218 $ 92,787,098 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

Net changes for net position in Governmental Activities had a total increase of $2.6 million in 
2016 compared to an increase of$11.3 million in 2015. Net position in Business-type Activities 
resulted in an increase of $1.3 million in 2016 compared to a $1.7 million increase in 2015, 
primarily due to fewer capital contributions received from developers (deeded infrastructure plus 
impact/capacity fees. 

Key Governmental Activities revenue highlights are as follows: Total Program Revenue equaled 
$2.3 million in 2016 (as compared to $8.3 million in 2015), primarily due to less capital grants 
received for Parks and Recreation. General Revenues totaled $10.8 million in 2016 and $12.1 
million in 2015 due to less business licenses revenue. All functional expense categories saw 
increases in 2016, as compared to 2015, primarily due to increases in salary/wages and related 
benefits costs of insurance and pension allocated costs. General government expenses increased 
due to increases in legal-related costs, and Public Safety expenses increased due to a new division 
for patrolling/protecting parks and the riverfront. Planning and Development expenses continued 
to increase due to the NPDES phase II project expenses. 

Changes in Governmental Activities expenses totaled $10.5 million in 2016 and $9.1 million in 
2015. 

Key Business-type Activity revenue highlights are as follows: Total Program Revenue for services 
totaled $16.8 million in 2016 (compared to $14.9 million in 2015) resulting in an increase of$1.9 
million (or 12.6%) while capital grants and contributions decreased primarily due to less capital 
facility charges. Expenses of operation and maintenance increased by $3,056,347 (or 22.7%) due 
to the new wastewater treatment plant, septage and grease center costs to operate. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities - Governmental expenses 
(totaling $10.5 million in 2016) are funded in part by program-specific revenues of fees for 
services, grants and contributions. As shown below, Governmental Activities were overall funded 
by 21.8% 'program revenues', leaving 78.2% to be funded by 'general revenues'. From the 
Statement of Activities, the following table details this activity for the City. 

General government 

Information technology 

Finance 

Public safety 

Public works 

Planning and development 

Parks and museum 
Garage 
Depreciation and 

amot1ization 
Interest 

Totals 

Program 
(Expenses) Revenue 

$ (481,829) $ 30,000 
(84,776) 

(117,820) 

(5,719,168) 900,140 

(1,477,526) 531,233 

(790,776) 212,815 

(804,149) 617,520 
(295,422) 

(708,459) 

(36,977) 

$(10,516,902) $ 2,291,708 
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Net 
(Expense) 

$ (451 ,829) 

(84,776) 

(117,820) 

(4,819,028) 

(946,293) 
(577,961) 

(186,629) 

(295,422) 

(708,459) 

(36,977) 

$ (8,225,194) 

% 
% Required to be 

Funded by Funded by 
Program General 
Revenues Revenues 

6.2% 93.8% 
100.0% 

100.0% 

15.7% 84.3% 
35.9% 64.1% 
26.9% 73.1% 

76.8% 23.2% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

21.8% 78.2% 



Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

As in prior years, depreciation and amortization expenses were not allocated to the City's functions 
due to non-detailed information available and are shown as a single line item in the Statement of 
Activities as "unallocated", while non-departmental service support expenses were allocated by 
function in 2016. 

General Revenues by Som·ce- Governmental Activities 

As shown in a table on the preceding page, General Revenues funded the City's Governmental 
Activities by 78.2% in the following categories. 

Property taxes 
Accommodation and 

hospitality taxes 
State shared revenue 
Licenses and related fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

2016 
$4,066,933 

1,074,154 
425,994 

4,586,377 
674,637 

$10,828,095 

2015 
$3,786,956 

697,654 
501,191 

6,704,824 
382,699 

$12,083,324 

Overall, the City experienced a 10.4% decrease in General Revenues (or $1,255,229 less from 
2015 to 2016) primarily due to prior-period business licenses and related fees collected/settled in 
2015, but the City had substantial increases in the new hospitality tax imposed in 2015 by 
ordinance. 

Expenses and Program Revenues -Business-type Activities - The City's Water and Sewer 
Utility Enterprise Fund that comprises its Business-type Activities is used for all resources 
associated with supplying potable water and providing sewage treatment services to domestic, 
business and industrial customers within the City limits as well as some of the surrounding 
unincorporated areas of Lexington County. Operating revenues totaled $16.8 million in 2016 (as 
compared to $15.0 million in 2015) and includes water sales and connection fees of$5.1 million 
and $10.1 million from sewer services and connection fees. Operating expenses totaled $14.9 
million in 2016 (compared to $13.5 million in 2015) resulting in an increase of 10.4% primarily 
due to increases in treatment costs. Operating income at year ended June 30, 2016, totaled 
$1,961,830 (as compared to $1,477,608 in 2015). Capacity charges, consisting primarily of system 
enhancement, capacity (impact) fees, and capital contributions from developers totaled $1.8 
million in 2016 (as compared to $1.6 million in 2015), or a 11.7% increase. However, the City 
recorded an estimate of$842,659 at June 30,2016 for disputed capacity fees previously paid by a 
customer. Subsequently, in November 2016, the City actually settled the dispute for $806,192. 
The difference between the estimate and actual settlement will be recognized in the 2016-2017 
fiscal year. While the actual number of water and sewer customers grew nominally, the repmted 
the number of sewer customers accounts decreased from 12,146 in 2015 to 11,625 in 2016. The 
number of water customers decreased from 8,436 in 2015 to 7,760 in 2016. These decreases were 
due mainly to the City's new software and the decision to count only active accounts and not 
inactive but available accounts. Consumption and revenue will not be affected. As stated earlier, 
the change in net position of the Water and Sewer Utility Fund was primarily a result of increased 
charges for sewer, septage and grease pretreatment services, a decrease in interest costs, and an 
increase in capital charges and other contributions. 
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General Fund Financial Analysis and Budgetary Highlights 

Of the City's Governmental Funds, the City's General Fund is the primary (and major) fund. As 
compared to 2015, actual General Fund revenues for 2016 decreased by $2.5 million (or 18.7%), 
primarily due to the prior-year business licenses paid in 2015 and less grants and capital 
contributions in20I 6. Actual General Fund expenditures, net of Utility Fund overhead allocations 
and capital outlay, totaled $11,324,664 in2016 compared to $9,259,178 in2015. The General 
Fund's 'final' budgeted revenues totaled $8,813,192 and actual revenues achieved equaled 
$10,801,705, or $1.9 million more than budget. ·n1c City had actual General Fund expenditures 
before Other Financing Sources (Uses) of $11,324,664, compared to a 'final' budget of 
$11,553,345 for a favorable budget to actual variance of$228,681 for the fiscal year ended J\me 
30, 2016. 

Increases that contributed to several line-item expenditures being over final budget amounts in the 
General Fund include the cost of salaries/wages; retirement, insurance and other benefits; and 
maintenance and repairs (which included City Hall interior and exteriors, plus Police/Fire Station 
electrical upgrades, etc.). 

With continued pressures of state-mandated property tax millage 'caps', the City's final budget, 
before adjusting for fund balance appropriations, ref1ected a deficiency of estimated revenues over 
its appropriated expenditures before Other Financing Sources and Uses totaling $2.7 million. The 
General Fund's other financing sources and uses budget included $1.1 million in 2016 tl·om the 
General Fund's portion of State Accommodations and Hospitality Tax plus an installment 
purchase contract. 

The General Fund also allocates $1.6 million in overhead and indirect costs to the Water and Sewer 
Utility Fund. As a final result, actual revenues were above budget, and in total, expenditures were 
below budget. The General Fund had a positive increase in fund balance of $216,482 for the year 
ended June 30,2016. 
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General Fund Financial Analysis and Budgetary Highlights (continued) 

Details of the City's General Fund budget are shown in the section entitled "Required 
Supplementary Information" which follows the "Notes to Financial Statements" in this report. 
Below is a 'condensed' summary budget-to-actual table for fiscal year 2016 compared to 2015 
actual amounts achieved. 

2016 2015 
Variances 

Favorable (Non-
General Fund Final Budget Actual favorable) Actual 

Revenue 
Property taxes $ 2,934,309 $ 3,059,485 $ 125,176 $ 2,935,332 
Licenses and permits 3,842,500 4,799,886 957,386 6,969,845 
Fines and forfeitures 295,500 260,880 (34,620) 329,068 
State shared revenue 343,000 362,805 19,805 362,744 
Current services 818,204 796,448 (21,756) 848,100 
Grants and other 578,079 1,521,125 943,046 1,836,617 
Interest income 1,600 1,076 (524) 1,666 

Total revenue 8,813,192 10,801,705 1,988,513 13,283,372 

Expenditures 
Cunent (net of Utility Fund overhead 

allocations and capital outlay): 
General government 439,874 510,972 (71,098) 418,861 
Information technology 64,176 74,890 (10,714) 78,293 
Finance 84,379 86,021 (1,642) 49,747 
Public safety 5,706,967 5,604,141 102,826 4,972,902 
Public works 1,534,339 1,424,195 110,144 1,309,947 
Planning and community 

development/relations 576,655 654,659 (78,004) 488,942 
Parks and museum 804,717 766,762 37,955 662,474 
Garage 278,436 260,589 17,847 237,940 
Non-departmental and support services 111,008 268 110,740 26,476 

Debt service 158,978 148,351 10,627 242,855 
Capital outlay 1,793,816 1,793,816 770,741 

Total expenditures 11,553,345 11,324,664 228,681 9,259,178 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
(under) expenditures (2,740,153) (522,959) 2,217,194 4,024,194 

Other financing sources and (uses) 1,141,873 739,441 {402,432) 433,272 

Net change in fund balance $ (1,598,280) $ 216,482 $ 1,814,762 $ 4,457,466 
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General Fund Financial Analysis and Budgetary Highlights (continued) 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets- As of June 30, 2016, the City's capital assets for its Govermnental Activities 
totaled $23.9 million, less accumulated depreciation of$10.3 million for a net carrying value of 
$13.6 million. For its Business-type Activities, total capital assets equaled $163.7 million, less 
accumulated depreciation of$39.1 million for a net carrying value of$124.6 million. The City's 
capital assets includes land, buildings, utility system improvements, machinery and equipment, 
park facilities, vehicles and furniture. The City's significant capital asset acquisition for the 
Govermnental Activities included new vehicles, software upgrades, and various building 
renovations and park improvements. In addition to capital infrastructure and plant improvements 
for the Business-type Activities (Water and Sewer Utility Fund), the City continues to maintain a 
strong maintenance and replacement program for infrastructure, machinery and equipment. 
Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt- At the end of the cunent fiscal year, the City had total bonded indebtedness 
outstanding of its Governmental Activities of $491,714, and Business-type Activities of $45.6 
million. Governmental Activities debt consists of a tax increment financing (TIF) bond. Business­
type activities long-term debt consists of State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans totaling $45,114,430, 
and an installment purchase contract payable totaling $507,532 at June 30, 2016. Additional 
information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Nole 6 of this repmt. 

During the year 2015-2016 the City defeased (in substance) its Series 2007A Water and Sewer 
System Revenue bonds with the issuance of the Series 2016A&B revenue bonds. While an 
accounting loss of $872,196 resulted from the refunding, an economic gain of $967,075 was 
realized. 

REQUEST l<'OR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those 
with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional financial infmmation should be addressed to the Office of the City 
Manager, City of Cayce, South Carolina. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

--~--··-·~-- Prima~y Gove1·nment 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net 
Internal balances, net 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

Non~current assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets not subject to depreciation 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 
Other assets, net 

Totalnon-cun·ent assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Defetred outflows related to pensions 
Losses on bond refundlngs, net 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets and deferred ot•tflows of resources 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
Accrued compensated absences cun-ent portion 
Construction contracts & retainages payable 
Unearned revenue, deposits and prepayments 
Installment purchase contracts payable current portion 
Current liuhililies payable from restricted assets 

Total current liabilities 

Governmental Business-type 

$ 

Activities 

5,314,433 $ 
521,393 

93,058 
64,97_2._ 

5 993,863 

3,243,096 
9,301,488 
4,340,765 

95,000 
16 980,349 
22 974,212 

1,749,168 

24,723,38_0_ 

Activities 

3,372,567 
3,022,384 

(93,058) 
159,989 

6,461,882 

8,227,197 
5,436,242 

119,083,758 
422,898 

133,170,095 
1}9,631,977 

790,609 
882,078 

I 672,687 

141,304,664 

65,491 
225,899 

92,572 

123,789 
465,821 
134,715 
72,304 
84,471 40,785 

144,902 
..... 476,793_ .. 3,430,394 
1,357,893 ·- 4,000,043 

~ CONTINUED -
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$ 

Total 

8,687,000 
3,543,777 

224,968 
12,455 745 

I 1,470,293 
14,737,730 

123,424,523 
517 898 

150,150,444 
162,606,189 

2,539,777 
882,078 

3 42l.,~iL 

16~,028,044 

189,280 
691,720 
227,287 

72,304 
125,256 
144,902 

__ 3,2_()},187 
5,357,236_ 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

-CONTINUED 

~.. Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
Liabilities, DefCI'!'ed Inflows and Net Position (continued) 

Long-term (non-current) liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences 259,855 30,257 290,112 
Installment purchase contract payable 362,630 362,630 
Uneamed revetme -·· fumre capacity charges and credits 1,404,862 1,404,862 
SRF loans and revenue bonds payable 14,921 43,257,939 43,272,860 
Net pension liabilities 10,017,523 5,273,622 15,291,145 
Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation I 569 774 794,723 2,364,497 

Total long-term liabilities 11,862,073 51,124,033 62,986,106 
T otalliabilities 13,219,966 55,124,076 68,344,042 

DefeJTed inflows of resources: 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 781,611 1,014,784 

Total defmed inflows of resources 781,611 1,014,784 

Total liabilities and defel'l'ed inflows of resources 14,001,577 55,35.7,249 69,358,826 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 13,078,235 78,314,467 91,392,702 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 996,764 950,557 1,947,321 
Capital projects 735,245 5,978,881 6,714,126 
Community development and tourism 574,080 574,080 
Law enforcement 34,326 34,326 
Pensions 1,749,168 790,609 2,539,777 

Unrestricted (deficit) {6,446,015) {87,099) (6,533,114) 

Total net position $ 10,721,803 $ 96,669,218 

See accompanying nates to financial statements. 
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Functions and Proarams 
Primary Government: 

Govemmentn:l activlttes: 
General government 
Information technology 
Finance 
Public safety 
Public works 
Planning and community development 
Parks and museum 
Garage 
Depreciation and amortization (unallocated) 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

Business·tvpe activities: 
Water and sewer utility 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Pro!!ram Revenue 

Operating Capital 
Fees for Grants and Grants and 

Ex~enses Services Contributions Contributions 

$ (48].829) $ s 30,000 s 
(84,776) 

(117.820) 
(5.719,!68) 534,300 365,840 
(1,477.526) 52&,403 1,250 1.580 

(790,776) 207.330 5.485 
(804,149) 452 617.068 
(295,422) 
(708.459) 

(36,977) 
(10.516,902] 402.575 618.648 

(16,549.533) 16.865.450 948.615 
(16549.533) 16.865.450 948.615 

$ {27.066.435) $ 18.135,935 $ 402.575 $ 1.567,263 

Genera] Revenue 
General Revenue: 

Property taxes 
Accommodation and hospitality ta'Xes 
State shared and unallocated intergovernmental (unrestricted) 
Business licenses, taxes, and penalties 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Gain on sale of property 
Other 

Total general revenue 

Changes in net position 
Net position -beginning of year 

Net position- end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net position 

Business-
Governmental type 

Activities Activities Totals 

s (451.829) $ $ (451,829) 
(84,776) (84,776) 

(117.820) (117,820) 
(4,819,028) (4.819,028) 

(946,293) (946,293) 
(577.961) (577,961) 
(186.629) (186.629) 
(295.422) (295,422) 
(708.459) (708,459) 

(36,977)_ (36,97()_ 
(8,2?5,194) (8.225.194) 

1.264,532 
1.264.532 

{8.225.194) (6,960,662) 

4.066,933 4,066,933 
1.074.154 1.074.154 

425.994 425,994 
4.586.377 4.586.377 

1.201 10.264 11,465 
35.000 (423 39.423 

638.436 638.436 
10.828.095 10.842.782 

2,602,901 3.882,120 
8,ll8,902 92.787.098 

$ 10.721.803 $ 96.669.218 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30,2016 

Other Total 
General Governmental Govemmental 

Fund Funds Funds 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,230,632 $ 83,801 $ 5,314,433 
Receivables, net 248,360 86,788 335,148 
Due from other funds 102,373 102,373 
Inventories 64,979 64,979 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 945,916 2,297,180 3,243,096 

Total assets $ 6,592,260 $ 2,467,769 $ 9,060,029 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 134,610 $ 7,417 $ 142,027 
Accrued liabilities 439,294 3,303 442,597 
Construction contracts and retainages payable 54,066 54,066 
Other liabilities 23,224 23,224 
Deposits and prepayments 84,471 84,471 
Due to other funds 9,315 9,315 

Total liabilities 690,914 64,786 755,700 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable in: 

Inventories 64,979 64,979 

Restricted for: 
Debt service 996,764 996,764 
Tourism and community development 525,625 525,625 
Redevelopment plan 735,245 735,245 
ABC permit 48,455 48,455 
Law enforcement 13,093 13,093 
Victims Rights Assistance 21,233 21,233 

21,233 2,319,182 2,340,415 
Committed for: 

UST program 25,000 25,000 

Assigned for: 
Christmas in Cayce 8,875 8,875 
Congaree Blue Grass Festival 3,259 3,259 
Museum 83,80 I 83,801 
History park 918,466 918,466 

930,600 83,80 I 1,014,401 

Unassigned 4,859,534 4,859,534 
Total fund balances 5,901,346 2,402,983 8,304,329 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 6,592,260 $ 2,467,769 $ 9,060,029 

- CONTINUED-
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

-CONTINUED-

Reconciliation to amounts l'epol'ted fol' Govel'nmental Activities in the 
Statement of Net Position (See Note 13): 
Total fund balances- Governmental Funds 
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 

are not reported in these funds. 

Other assets not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds. 

Certain deferred outflows related to pensions are not available to pay for current 
expenditures and, therefore, are not repmted in the funds. 

Long-termliabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not repotted in these funds. 

Certain deferred inflows related to pensions are not due and payable in the current period 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Net position, end of year- Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 8,304,329 

13,642,253 

281,244 

I, 749, I 68 

(12,473,580) 

(781,61 I) 

$ 10,721,803 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Other Total 
General Governmental Governmental 

Fum! Funds Funds 
Revenue 

Property taxes $ 3,059,485 $ 1,008,560 $ 4,068,045 
Accommodation and hospitality taxes 1,068,426 1,068,426 
Licenses and permits 4,799,886 4,799,886 
Fines and forfeitures 260,880 260,880 
State shared revenue 362,805 63,189 425,994 
Current services 796,448 796,448 
Grants and other 1,521,125 137,664 1,658,789 
Interest income 1,076 125 1,201 

Total revenue 10,801,705 2,277,964 13,079,669 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 510,972 510,972 
Information technology 74,890 74,890 
Finance 86,021 86,021 
Public safety 5,604,141 5,604,141 
Public works 1,424,195 1,424,195 
Community relations 146,529 146,529 
Planning and community development 508,130 186,147 694,277 
Parks and museum 766,762 766,762 
Garage 260,589 260,589 
Non-depmimental and support services 268 268 

Debt service 148,351 491,853 640,204 
Capital outlay I 793,816 530,200 2,324,016 

Total expenditures II 324,664 1,208,200 12,532,864 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (522,959} 1,069,764 546,805 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from sales of assets 35,000 35,000 
Transfers in 704,441 700,000 1,404,441 
Transfers (out) (I ,404,441} (1,404,441} 

Total other financing sources (uses) 739,441 (704,441} 35,000 

Net change in fund balances 216,482 365,323 581,805 

Fund balances, beginning of year 5 684,864 2,037,660 7,722,524 

Fund balances, end of year $ 5,901,346 $ 2,402,983 $ 8,304,329 

-CONTINUED-
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

-CONTINUED-

Reconciliation to amounts reported for Govemmental Activities in the 
Statement of Activities (See Note 13): 

Net change in fund balances- Total Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 

$ 581,805 

exceeded depreciation in the current period. l, 702,518 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities do not provide current financial resources are 
reported as revenues in these funds. 9,086 

Some expenses rep01ted in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not rep01ted as expenditures in these funds. (372,900) 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while repayment of the principal and interest consumes current financial 
resources of governmental funds. This amount is the net effect of these differences in 
the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 682,392 

Change in net position- Governmental Activities $ 2,602,901 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BALANCE SHEET 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

JUNE30,2016 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net: 

\Vater and sewer accounts, net 
Other accounts 

Inventories 
Total current assets 

Non-current assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets not subject to depreciation 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 
Other assets, net 

Total non-current assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred outflows related to pension 
Losses on bond refundings, net 

Total assets and deferred outflows 

CONTINUED 
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Business-type 
Activities­

Enterprise Fund 
Water and Sewer 

m Utility • 

$ 3,372,567 

2,541,637 
480,747 
159,989 

6,554,940 

8,227,197 
5,436,242 

ll9,083, 758 
422,898. 

133,170,095 . 
139,725,035. 

790,609 
882,078 

I 672,687 
$ 141,397,722 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BALANCE SHEET 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

CONTINUED 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accmed payroll and related taxes 
Accrued compensated absences current portion 
Installment purchase contract payable -current pottion 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds (intemal balances) 
Customer prepayments 
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term (non-current) liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences 
Uneamed revenue - future capacity chm·ges and credits 
Installment purchase contract payable 
SRF loans payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Net pension liability 
Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation 

Total long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Deferred inflows related to pension 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital projects 
Pension 

Unrestricted (deficit) 
Total net position 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows ami net position 

See accompanying notes to .financial statements. 
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Business-type 
Activities­

EnterJll:!~~:und 
Water and Sewer 

Utilit ~~=:Y~-

$ 65,491 
224,507 
92,572 

144,902 
1,392 

93,058 
40,785 

~··~3,430,394 
~~4,093,101 

30,257 
1,404,862 

362,630 
30,409,091 
12,848,848 
5,273,622 

794 723 
51,124,033 
55,217 134 

233 173 
~-233173 

78,314,467 

950,557 
5,978,881 

790,609 
~--;;7~(8~7,,{)29L 

85,947,1]5 
$ 141,397,722 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Operating Revenue (pledged as security for loans and revenue bonds) 
Water: 

Sales 
Connection fees 

Sewer: 
Service charges 
Connection fees 

Septage/grease services: 
Sales and permits 
Pretreatment set-up fees 

Re-connection fees 
Penalties 
Grant revenue 
Miscellaneous income 

Total operating revenue 

Operating Expenses 
Administrative 
Utility billing 
Water treatment plant 
Water distribution and maintenance 
Wastewater treatment plant 
Sewer collection and outfall lines 
Septage and grease receiving station 
Non-depat1mental and support services 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 
Interest income 
Gains from sale, dispoal of equipment 
Bond issue costs 
Interest expense 
Amortization of bond refinancing losses 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 

Income before contributions 

Capital Contributions 
Capacity charges and other capital contributions 
Return of disputed contributed capital 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
Water and Sewer 

Utility 

$ 5,129,429 
121,848 

10,140,422 
3,066 

885,674 
99,300 
47,762 

191,671 
18,563 

227715 
16 865 450 

567,592 
698,083 

1,414,384 
1,356,168 
3,026,918 
1,454,361 

371,645 
1,600,000 
4 414 469 

14,903 620 

I 961 830 

10,264 
4,423 

(345,684) 
(1,195,051) 

(I 05, 178) 
(1,631,226) 

330,604 

1,791,274 
(842,659) 
948 615 

1,279,219 

84,668,196 

$ 85,947,415 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from: 

Usage fees 
Tap fees 
Service and miscellaneous charges 

Cash paid to (for): 
Employee salaries and related costs 
Water treatment and distribution costs 
Sewer treatment and collection costs 
Septage and grease treatment and disposal costs 
Other supplies and miscellaneous costs 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Interest, and fiscal agent fees paid on capital related debt 
Bond issue costs paid 
Proceeds from SRF loans and installment purchase contract 
Principal payments on bonds and notes 
Return of 2004 bond escrowed funds 
Capacity charges and other capital contributions 
Deposit for revenue bond defeasement 

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (of which $12,198,579 is 

restricted) 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (of which $8,227, 197is restricted) 

-CONTINUED-
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Business-type 
Activities­

Enterprise Fund 
Water and 

Sewer Utility 

$ 

15,987,691 
124,914 
585,011 

(3,617,925) 
(1,466,662) 
(2,957,089) 

(306,593) 
(1,799,678) 
6,549,669 

23,569 
(6,082,337) 
(I ,879,336) 

(325,293) 
14,225,077 
(2,672,530) 

19,396 
1,072,627 

(14,229,867} 
(9,848,694) 

10,264 
10,264 

(3,288,761) 

14,888,525 

11,599,764 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

-CONTINUED-

Business-type 
Activities­

Enterprise Fund 
Water and 

Sewer Utility 
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating income $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operations: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
Changes in certain assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 
Decrease in inventmy 
Decrease in accounts payable/accrued liabilities 
Increase in amounts due to/from others 
Decrease in customer deposits and prepayments 
Increase in net pension liabilities 
Increase in pension related deferred outflows 
Increase in pension related deferred inflows 
Increase in other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation 
Decrease in accrued compensated absences 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash capital and related financing activities 

$ 

Contributed property by developers $ 
Amortization of revenue bond refinancing losses $ 
Ammtization of revenue bond premium/discount $ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1,961,830 

4,414,469 

(163,539) 
41,532 

195,038 
(56,474) 

(4,295) 
609,816 

(371,839) 
(160,020) 

72,059 
11,092 

6,549,669 

483,147 
105,178 
42,229 



Assets 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLfNA 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30,2016 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Amounts due to others 

Total liabilities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Agency 
Funds 

$ 187,98_0 

$ 187,980 

$ 187,980 

$ 187,980 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Cayce, South Carolina (the "City") was incorporated September 7, 1914, under the Jaws 
of the State of South Carolina for the incorporation of municipal governments and as amended by 
Act 283 of the 1975 Code (Home Rule City Act). The City operates under a Council-Manager form 
of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police 
and fire), streets, sanitation, health, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning 
and general administrative services. 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial repmting principles. The more significant of the 
government's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

Using the criteria ofGASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB 
Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus, the basic financial statements of the 
County present the reporting entity that consists of the primary government and those legally separate 
organizations for which the elected officials of the primmy government is financially accountable 
and for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primmy government are such 
that exclusion could cause, in management's judgment, the City's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. 

Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the separate organization's 
board and either a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or b) the possibility that the 
separate organization will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primmy 
government. "Blended" component units are separate entities that are, substantially, part of the 
primmy government's operations and are combined with financial data of the primmy government. 
"Discretely presented" component units, on the other hand, are repmted in separate columns in the 
Government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the operations 
of the primaty government. 

The City maintains the Cayce Beautification Foundation and the Cayce Public Safety Foundation, 
both organized to enhance the City of Cayce in partnership with local residents, businesses and law 
enforcement. These entities are not material to the City, and therefore, no discretely presented 
component units are presented for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Govemment-Wide ami Fund Financial Statements 
Government-wide Financial Statements - The Government-wide financial statements consist of a 
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities and reports information on all of the non­
fiduciary activities of the government as a whole. Separate columns are used to distinguish between 
the City's governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities are generally those 
activities financed by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. These 
activities are usually reported in Governmental Funds. 

Business-type activities are those activities which are financed in whole or in part by user fees 
charged to external parties for goods and services. These activities are usually rep01ted in Enterprise 
Funds. The primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units 
for which the primmy government is financially accountable. 

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources of the City and reports the 
difference between assets and deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows as "net position" 
not fund balance or equity. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct 
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues and reflects the "net 
(expenses) revenue" of the City's individual functions before applying 'general' revenues. 

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting 
government's taxpayers or citizemy, as a whole, and thus reduce the net cost of the function to be 
financed from the government's general revenues. They include (I) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources are rep01ted as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. All revenues are 'general' revenues unless they 
are required to be reported as program revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietmy funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government­
wide financial statements. The focus of governmental and proprietmy fund financial statements is 
on 'major' funds. M[\jor individual governmental funds and major individual proprietmy funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, with 'non-major' funds being 
aggregated and displayed in a single column. 

The City rep01ts the General Fund as the "major" governmental fund and the Water and Sewer Utility 
Fund as the "major" proprietary fund. A schedule of non-major funds is presented separately as part 
of Other Financial Information. Because of the basis of accounting and reporting differences, 
summary reconciliations to the Government-wide financial statements are presented at the end of 
each applicable fund financial statement. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summal'y of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. Basis ofPI'esentation (Continued) 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are 
legally (or donor) restricted to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital 
projects. The City maintains special revenue funds for continuing grant programs of rental 
rehabilitation, community development, home and law enforcement; state restricted funds of 
accommodation taxes and alcohol permits; restricted hospitality taxes; plus Cayce Museum Fund. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets other than those financed by the 
proprietary fund. The City maintains this fund for its resources and activities in the tax increment 
financing (TIF) district. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial 
resources for the payment of interest and principal on certain general long-term debt of the City, other 
than debt service payments financed by proprietaty fund types. The City maintains this fund for the 
resources of taxes collected in the TlF district used for retirement of long-term debt. 

ProprielmJ' Funds 

Enterprise Funds- The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises- where the intent of the governing body 
is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
goveming body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or 
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, 
or other purposes. The City operates a combined Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund. 

FiducimJ' Funds 

All of the City's fiduciaty activities are repmted in a separate Statement of Fiducimy Net Position 
and (if applicable) a Statement of Changes in Fiducimy Net Position. 

Agency Funds - The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. At June 30, 2016, these 
included Police Fund and Firemen's Fund. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal 
liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. These activities have been 
excluded from the City's Government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use those 
assets to finance its operations. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting is a conceptual description of the timing of 
the accounting measurements made. 

The Government-wide and Proprietaty Fund financial statements use the economic resources 
measmement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with GASB Statement Number 
34. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year 
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as atl eligibility 
requirements imposed by the grantor have been met. 

As a general mle, the effect of interfund activity {i.e. advances or shott-tetm loans) has been 
eliminated from the Govemment-wide financial statements, except for amounts due between the 
City's governmental activities and business-type activities. 

Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the cm1·ent financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis 
concept, revenues susceptible to accrual (e.g. property taxes, franchise taxes, state shared and 
intergovernmental revenues} are recognized when they become measurable (estimable as to the net 
amount to be collected) and available as current assets. Such revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter (not exceeding 60 days) 
lo pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting. 

However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Proprietary Fund statements reflect net position and revenues, expenses and changes in net position 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis concept, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietaty fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are rep011ed as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

When restricted, committed, and/or assigned resources are available for use, it is the government's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then committed resources, then assigned resources, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Budgets ami Budgetary Accounting 

Budgets and Encumbrances -Generally, budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A legal operating budget is prepared annually for the General Fund 
and Water and Sewer Utility Fund. Informal budgetmy controls are maintained for other funds. 

The City Manager is authorized to administer the budget and transfer amounts within and between 
depmtments and funds as necessmy and designate continuing projects from fund balances or 
additional unbudgeted revenue and transfers. Subsequent expenditures (expenses) approved by 
Council shall automatically cany amendments to fund appropriation where applicable. 

The General Fund operated under a final expenditure budget totaling $9,953,345, plus $1,600,000 
Utility Fund indirect costs and overhead allocated to the General Fund depmtments, and other 
financing sources (uses) of $1,141,873. As further described in the "Required Supplementmy 
Information", a budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund is provided. The Water and 
Sewer Utility Fund operated under a budget totaling $11,761,406 (including operation and 
maintenance, capital improvements, debt service principal amounts and coverages). Actual operating 
expenses totaled $14,861,391 (including a charge of$4,372,240 for depreciation and amortization). 

Encumbrances represent outstanding purchase orders or commitments related to unperformed 
contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting- under which purchase orders, contracts 
and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that p01tion of the 
applicable budgeted appropriation- is utilized in the governmental funds. There were no material 
encumbrances at June 30, 20 I 6. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 
Cash includes amounts held in demand deposits. For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City 
considers all savings and short-term investments purchased with maturities of three months or less to 
be cash equivalents. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasmy, 
commercial paper, corporate bonds and repurchase agreements. Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Short-Term lnterfund Receivables/Payables 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions result in loans or advances between 
individual funds. Interfund loans outstanding at year-end are recorded as Interfund 
Receivables/Payables and are expected to be paid within one year. The lending fund reports amounts 
'due from other funds', while the borrowing fund reports amounts 'due to other funds'. These 
interfund receivables and payables are classified as "internal balances" on the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Position and have been eliminated. The City considers all interfund receivables, 
net of any payables to be shott-term. Advances to/from other funds (if any) represent long-term 
interfund loans receivable and payable. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Continued) 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Accounts receivable includes accounts due from other governments and is stated net of their 
allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

Inventmy and Prepaid Items 
Inventory is valued at cost or estimated historical cost on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory 
consists of expendable supplies of the garage and water/wastewater maintenance, held for 
consumption. Reported inventmy expenditures or expenses are recognized when inventories are 
consumed. Additionally, certain payments to vendors reflect costs for services applicable to future 
periods and are reported as prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets 
Restricted accounts include monies or other resources, the use of which is restricted by legal or 
contractual requirements. In the Enterprise Fund restricted assets arise from certain bond and contract 
ordinances. 

Other Assets 
Other assets consists of purchases of intangible assets, or 'contractual rights' to use capital asset 
resources. The Business-type Activities contract rights result from the purchase of expanded 
wastewater collection lines owned by a third-party (Red Bank Line) where the City uses the 
additional line capacity. The purchase price (cost) totaling $563,864 is being ammiized over the life 
of the contract (40 years). Amortization expense for the year ended June 30,2016 totaled $14,097. 
Additionally, the Taylor Road wastewater line expansion totaling $240,019 with amortization 
expense equaling $45,002 for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Governmental Activities rights 
result from the purchase and cost contribution to Lexington County to construct a new animal 
services/shelter services and to provide the City future services. The purchase price (cost) totaling 
$100,000 and is to be ammiized over the life of the contract (20 years). Amortization expense 
incurred for fiscal year totaling $5,000. 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and 
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the Government-wide financial statements. Capital assets of the City that are not specifically 
related to activities reported in proprietmy or fiducimy funds have been reported as assets in the 
governmental funds column of the Government-wide financial statement. Capital assets are defined 
by the City as those assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful 
life in excess of two years. 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost if purchased or constructed, or estimated historical cost 
if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value 
on the date donated. The costs ofnonnal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fmul Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Continued) 

Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued) 
Public domains (rights-of-way and easements) have been capitalized using actual and estimated 
historical costs of such assets that were acquired by the City. The City owns .98 mile of paved 
subdivision streets at June 30, 2016. However, the City is not responsible for maintenance or 
reconstruction costs associated with the roads. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets has been provided based on the estimated useful lives 
of the class of assets, or individual assets using the straight line method with service lives as follows: 
Buildings- 15 to 40 years; Improvements-10 to 30 years; Machinery and equipment- 3 to 20 years; 
Water and sewer systems - I 0 to 50 years. 

Capitalization of Interest 
Interest costs incurred during the construction phase of business-type capital assets are reflected in 
the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the 
same period. 

Long-term Obligations 
In the Government-wide financial statements, and the Proprietary Fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. 
Long-term debt represents unmatured principal of general obligation and revenue bond indebtedness, 
and outstanding pmtions due on long-term contracts. These obligations are reported net of bond 
premiums and discounts, which are amortized over the life of the related bond issue using the straight­
line method. Other long-term obligations represent outstanding net present value portions due on 
capital lease obligations, and long-term pmtions of claims or judgments. Liabilities arising from 
interfund activities do not constitute general long-term liabilities. In the Governmental Fund 
financial statements, bond premium and discounts, as well as bond issuance, costs are recognized as 
expenditures of the current period. The face amount of the debt issued, along with any bond premium 
and discounts, is reported as Other Financing Sources. 

Compensated Absences (Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave) 
City employees are entitled to accrue and cany forward at fiscal year-end accumulated unused days 
of annual vacation leave and sick leave. Typically, employees consume newly-earned increments of 
leave in future periods. Effective July I, 1994, accumulated annual and sick leave is capped at 400 
hours and 720 hours, respectively, per employee. Upon termination of employment, employees are 
entitled to be paid at current salary levels for accumulated unused annual vacation leave. Prior to 
July I, 1994, the City's policy for employees receiving compensation for unused sick leave upon 
termination was as follows: 15 years of service= 25%; 20 years of service= 50%; 25 years of service 
= 75%; 30 years of service= I 00%. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Con tinned) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and .Expenses (Continued) 

Compensated Absences (Accmed Vacation and Sick Leave (Continued) 
In the Government-wide and Proprietaty Fund financial statements, vacation pay is accrued when 
incurred and reported as a current and long-term liability. In the Govemmental Funds, expenditures 
and liabilities related to these obligations are recognized when they mature (become due). Vacation 
pay that is expected to be liquidated, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements, with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fimd 
liability in the General Fund, when applicable. 

Unearned Revenue 
In the Government-wide and Proprietary financial statements, certain assets are not recognized in 
connection with a transaction before the earnings process is complete. These assets are generally 
offset by a corresponding liability entitled unearned revenue and represent various deposits. 
Unearned revenue in the Govemmental Fund financial statements are not yet available to finance 
expenditures for the current fiscal. 

Contract Obligation 
Under an intergovernmental agreement, the City is obligated to provide financial credit to a 
wastewater treatment purchaser of$1,950,000, which resulted from a prior-year receipt of wastewater 
capacity payments. The City applies the credit against future contract charges and services. At June 
30, 2016, the current credit balance outstanding equals $1 ,401 ,672. 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciaty net 
position of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and South Carolina Police Officers 
Retirement System (PORS) and additional to/deductions from the plans' fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the related plan. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value . 

. Net Position and Fund Balances 
In the Govemment-wide financial statements, the difference between the City's total assets and 
deferred inflows, less total liabilities and defened outflows represents net position. Net position for 
both the governmental and proprietary fund types displays three components - net investment in 
capital assets; restricted (distinguished between major categories of restrictions); and unrestricted. 
Unrestricted net position represents the assets available for future operations. In the Fund financial 
statements, governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which the govemment is bound to honor the constraints on the specific 
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. "Nonspendable" fund balances include 
those amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in a spendable form or legally or 
contmctually required to be maintained intact. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Continued) 

Net Position and Fund Balances (continued) 
"Restricted" fund include those amounts that are legally restricted by outside patties, laws, 
governments, or enabling legislation for use for a specific purpose. "Committed" fund balances are 
amounts that can only be used for specific purposes due to constraints imposed by formal action of 
the City Council which is the City's highest level of decision making authority. A formal action by 
Council, typically an ordinance, would be required to rescind a commitment. "Assignments" of fund 
balance present management's intent, but are neither restricted nor committed. Due to its form of 
government (Council-Manager), the City Manager and/or through the annual budget, is authorized 
to assign amounts to a specific purpose. "Unassigned" fund balance is the residual classification for 
the General Fund, or in other governmental funds if expenditures incurred for specific purposes 
exceed the amounts restricted, committed, and/or assigned to those purposed. When other 
governmental funds have deficit fund balances, such deficits, after reducing any assigned, committed 
or restricted balances, are reported as negative unassigned fund balances. In governmental funds, 
other than the General Fund it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance. 

Property Taxes 
The City assesses and levies propetty taxes in accordance with applicable laws of the State of South 
Carolina. Real propetty and personal property of every description owned and used in the City, 
except that which is exempt from taxation under the Constitution and Laws of the State, is subject to 
taxation. An annual ordinance establishing the millage rate associated with the levy is adopted each 
year as a patt of the budget adoption process. 

Real property and all personal property other than vehicles are assessed for propetty tax purposes as 
of December 31 of each year. The basis for value of taxable pro petty within the City is taken from 
the records of the Lexington County Assessor or the Richland County Assessor. Taxes are levied on 
July I with the passage of the fiscal year budget and millage ordinance, billed in October, and are 
due by Januaty 15 in the year following their levy. A penalty of3% is added to the tax bill on January 
16; with an additional 7% added on Februaty 2; and an additional 5% to the tax bill on March 17. 

New vehicle pro petty taxes are assessed and levied within 120 days of the registration date of the 
vehicle and payment is due upon receipt of the property tax notice. Other vehicle property taxes are 
assessed and levied in the month the vehicle is scheduled for license renewal with the South Carolina 
Depattment of Transportation and payment is due before the end of the month of the scheduled 
renewal. 

For Government-wide financial statements, property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for 
which they are levied. For Government Fund financial statements, City property tax revenues are 
recognized for the budget period to which they apply when they become measurable and available. 
Delinquent and unpaid property taxes are reported as receivables, less amounts estimated to be 
uncollectible. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fun!! Equity, Revenue, Expenditures an!l Expenses (Continue!!) 

Program and General Revenue 
The City charges public fees for building permits and inspections, and admission fees for certain 
recreational activities. These fees as well as fines for traffic violations and grant revenues are 
recorded as "program revenue" in the Statement of Activities. "General revenues" repmted by the 
City include property taxes, state-shared taxes, business licenses (which are appropriately not 
classified as program revenue 'fees for services' due to their non-matching characteristics) and other 
govemment imposed non-exchange fees (e.g. franchise fees, which are general revenue fees-in-lieu 
of business licenses). 

Interfund Activities 
Transfers between govemmental and business-type activities on the Govemment-wide statements are 
reported in the same manner as general revenues. Exchange transactions between funds are reported 
as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditure/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or 
goods from one fund to another without the requirement for repayment are reported as interfund 
transfers. Interfund transfers are repmted as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and 
after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for 
particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the 
financial statements. 

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 
Pursuant to GASB Concepts Statement No. 4, "deferred outflow of resources" is a consumption of 
net position (assets minus liabilities) by the government that is applicable to a future period, while an 
'asset' is a resource with present service capacity that the government presently controls. A "deferred 
inflow of resources" is an acquisition of net position (assets minus liabilities) by the government that 
is applicable to a future reporting period, while a 'liability' is a present obligation to sacrifice 
resources that the government has little or no discretion to avoid. Deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources are repmted separate from assets and liabilities, respectively, in the Statement of Net 
Position. 

At June 30, 2016, the City also repmted 'deferred outflow of resources' consisting of pension and 
debt refunding losses (resulting from the difference between the new refunding debt (reacquisition 
price) and the net carrying amount of the old refunded debt). This amount is being amortized over 
the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Fund Equity, Revenue, Expenditures and Expenses (Continued) 

Comparative Data and Reclassifications 
Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in selected sections of the accompanying 
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's financial position 
and operations. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order 
to be consistent with the current year's presentation. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used to determine depreciation expense, 
and the allowance for doubtful accounts among other accounts. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

2. Deposits and Investments 

As of June 30,2016, the City had the following cash and investment balances: 

Cash on hand 
Canying amount of deposits 
Carrying amount of investments 
Funds held in trust by State 

Total 

Statement of Net Position balances: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents- restricted 
Cash and cash equivalents-- fiduciary 

Total 

Investments are categorized as follows: 
State Treasurer's Investment pool 
Money Market Funds 

Total 

Deposits 

$ l ,830 
18,468,869 
l, 159,595 

714,979 

$ 20,345,273 

$ 8,687,000 
11,470,293 

187,980 

$ 20,345,273 

$ 14,979 
), 159,595 

$ 1,174,574 

Custodial credit risk of deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may 
not be returned to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 
2016, the carrying amount of the City's cash deposits with financial institutions was $18,468,869 and 
the financial institution's balances totaled $18,091,876. Of this balance, $758,960 was covered by 
federal depositmy insurance and the remaining balance was covered by collateral held by the 
financial institutions' trust depmiments in the City's name. The City's cash on hand at June 30,2016, 
amounted to $1,750. Accordingly, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

2. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Investments 
Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 

As of June 30, 2016, the City had the following investments subject to interest rate risk: 

State Treasurer's Investment Pool 

Money Market Funds 

Fair Value 

$ 714,979 

$ 1,159,595 

Maturity 
60 days weighted 

average of portfolios 
8 days weighted 

average of pmtfolios 

The South Carolina State Treasurer's Office established the South Carolina Local Government 
Investment Pool (the Pool) pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code of Law. The Pool 
is an investment trust fund, in which public monies in excess of current needs which are under the 
custody of any county treasurer or any governing body political subdivision of the State may be 
deposited. The Pool is a Rule 2a 7-like pool which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) as an investment company, but has a policy that it will operate in a manner 
consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a 7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investment shares 
with the State Treasurer Investment Pool are subject to redemption upon demand by the City. The 
fair value of the City's investment in the Pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Credit Risk. State statute authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States and agencies 
thereof; general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units provided such 
obligations are rated as an "A" or better by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard and Poor's 
Corporation or their respective successors; interest bearing accounts in savings and loan associations 
to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the Federal government; certificates of deposit 
where the certificates are collaterally secured by securities of the type described above, held by a 
third party as escrow agent or custodian, of a market value not less than the amount of the ce1tificates 
of deposit so secured, including interest, provided, however, such collateral shall not be required to 
the extent the same are insured by an agency of the United States Government; or deposit accounts 
with banking institutions insured and secured in the same manner. 

The statutes provide that all authorized investments shall have maturities consistent with the time or 
times when the invested monies will be needed in cash. Statutes also allow the State Treasurer to 
assist local governments in investing funds. The State Treasurer also provides oversight for the State 
Treasurer's Investment Pool, of which, the fair value of the City's investments is the same as the 
value of the pooled shares. The City is under no contractual agreements which restrict investment 
alternatives. The City has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices other 
than its compliance with State Law. The State Investment Pool limits its investments to the same 
State Law requirements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

2. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Investments (Continued) 
The Money Market Funds were rated AAA by Moody's Investors Service December 1998 and AAA 
by Standard & Poors and Fitch Ratings in March 1999. The South Carolina Local Government 
Investment Pool is not rated. 

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk of investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
secmities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment balances were covered by 
collateral held by the financial institution's trust depmtment in the City's name. The City does not 
have an investment policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2016, the City was not exposed to 
custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. 
More than 5% of the City's investments are in money market funds. These investments are 99% 
respectively, of the City's total investments. 

3. Receivables 

Receivables at June 30,2016, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
follows: 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

Property taxes $ 1,792,914 $ 
Hospitality taxes 85,038 
Water and sewer accounts 2,576,637 
Wastewater Treatment Plant contributions due 480,747 
Other 212,675 
Due from other governments: 

General Fund: 
State shared revenue 94,899 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Accommodations tax 32,891 

ABC Permit Fund: 
Due from state government 1,750 

-·~-·~-~--

Gross receivables 2,220,167 3,057,384 
Less, allowance for uncollectible (1,698,774) (35,000) 

Net total receivables $ 521,393 $ 3,022,384 
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-CONTINUED-

4. Due to/from Other Funds (Internal Balances) 

5. 

The Governmental and Business-type short-term interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2016, 
were as follows: 

General Fund 
Water and Sewer Fund 

lnterfund 
Receivable 

$ 102,373 

$ 102,373 

lnterfund 
Payable 

$ 9,315 
93,058 

$ 102,373 

Net internal balances shown on the Statement ofNet Position between Governmental and Business­
type Activities totaled $93,058 at June 30,2016. 

Capital Assets 

A summary of the changes in the City's capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2016, are as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Balance Balance 
June 30, June 30, 

2015 Additions Retirements Transfers 2016 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and rights-of-way $ 7,589,662 $ -$ $ $ 7,589,662 
Construction in progress 275,860 I ,435,966 1,711,826 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 7,865,522 1,435,966 9,301,488 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 5,060,238 5,060,238 
Buildings and improvements 1,515,867 182,073 1,697,940 
Furniture, vehicles, equipment 7,709,544 792,939 (556,417) 7,946,066 

Totals capital assets being depreciated 14,285,649 975,012 (556,417) 14,704,244 

Less, accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements (2,686,892) (251,892) (2,938,784) 
Buildings and improvements (1,175,329) (33,447) (1,208,776) 
Furniture, vehicles, equipment (6,349,215) (423,120) 556,417 (6,215,919) 

Total accumulated depreciation (10,211,436) (708,459) 556,417 (I 0,363,479) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, 
net 4,074,213 266,553 4,340,765 

Net capital assets-
Governmental Activities $ 11,939,735 $ 1,702,519 $ $ $ 13,642,253 
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Capital Assets (Continued) 

Business-Tme Activities: 
Balance 
June 30, 

2015 Additions Retirements 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and rights-of-way $ 330,568 $ $ 
Construction in progress 1,450,182 5,341,860 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 1,780,750 5,341,860 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Water plant and distribution 

system 38,090,461 127,036 
Wastewater plant and collection 

system I 09,692,668 356,112 
Septage & grease facility 1,532,900 
Furniture, vehicles, equipment 5,799,564 1,250,760 (309,257) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 155,115,593 1,733,908 (309,257) 

Less, accumulated depreciation for: 
Water plant and distribution 

system (15,471 ,386) (I ,045,956) 
Wastewater plant and collection 

system (15,879,051) (2,782,963) 
Septage & grease facility (59,423) (51,050) 
Furniture, vehicles, equipment (3,667,735) (475,401) 290,111 

Total accumulated depreciation (35,077,595) (4,355,370) 290,111 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 120,037,998 (2,621 ,462) (19,146) 

Net capital assets-

Transfers 

$ 
(I ,686,368) 

(I ,686,368) 

24,982 

1,661,386 

1,686,368 

1,686,368 

Business-type Activities $121,818,748 $ 2,720,398 $ (19,146) $ 

Balance 
June 30, 

2016 

$ 330,568 
5,105,674 

5,436,242 

38,242,479 

111,710,166 
1,532,900 
6,741,067 

158,226,612 

(16,517,342) 

(18,662,0 14) 
(110,473) 

(3,853,025) 
(39, 142,854) 

119,083,758 

$124,520,000 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, depreciation expense charged to Governmental and Business-type 
Activities above were not allocated to specific functions in the Statement of Activities, as the City 
does not have a reasonable basis for allocation. 

Interest expense in the amount of $43,051 was capitalized as part of the construction for Business­
type Activities at during the fiscal year 2016. 
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-CONTINUED-

Long-term debt of the City at June 30,2016, consisted of the following: 

A. Govemmental Activities 

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Revenue Bond, Series 2002,$5,000,000, dated October 
24, 2002, to develop and improve certain tax district of the City. The bonds mature 
semi-annually on October 24 and April 24, with principal amounts of $148, 199 to 
$483,244, with semi-annual interest at 4.03% per annum. $ 

Less, current p011ions (due within one year): 
TIF Revenue Bond, Series 2002 payable 

Total long-term debt- Governmental Activities 

B. Business-Type Activities 

Clean Water State Revolving Funds (SRF) Loan, Series 2002, $1,650,000, dated 
December I, 2002, principal and interest (3.75% per annum) payable quat1erly, final 

$ 

payment due September I, 2023. $ 

Clean Water State Revolving Funds (SRF) Loan, Series 2009, $33,733,234, dated 
September 15, 2009, interest (2.25% per annum) payable quat1erly, final payment due 
March I, 2032. 

Clean Water State Revolving Funds (SRF) Loan, Series 2015, $3,734,073, dated 
January 29, 2015, interest (2.00% per annum) payable quarterly, final payment due 
August I, 2035. 

Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A (taxable), 
$8,470,000, dated March 29, 2016, principal and interest (.95%- 3.22% per annum) 
payable semi-annually, final payment due July I, 2027. 

Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B (non-taxable), 
$4,500,000, dated March 29, 2016, principal and interest (3.00%- 4.00% per annum) 
payable semi-annually, final payment due July I, 2027. 

Installment purchase contract - (Utility Department Vehicles), $639,000, dated 
September 4, 2015, interest at 1.47% per annum, due on or before September 4, 2019. 

Add/Subtract: 
Series 20 l6A Bond discount ($44,769 net $4,974 accumulated am011ization) 
Series 2016B Bond premium ($660,846 net $47,203 accumulated amortization) 

Less, current portions (due within one year): 
State Revolving Fund Loans (Series' 2002, 2009, and 2015) 
Revenue bonds (Series 20 16) 
Installment purchase contracts payable 

Total long-term debt- Business-type Activities 
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$ 

491,714 

(476,793) 

14,921 

701,885 

27,823,273 

3,619,271 

8,470,000 

4,500,000 

507,532 
45,621,962 

(39,795) 
613,643 

(1,735,339) 
(695,000) 
(144,902) 

43,620,569 
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6. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

B. Business-Type Activities (continued) 

Series 20 16A&B Bonds and Defeasement of Series 2007 A Bonds 
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the City issued Series 2016A&B Water and Sewer System 
Refunding Revenue Bonds to advance refund the outstanding principal amounts of the Series 2007A 
Water and Sewer System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, (original principal amount 
of$18,795,000 dated September II, 2007). Proceeds from the Series 2016A&B bonds were used to 
(i) redeem the callable portion of the Series 2007 A bonds and (ii) establish an irrevocable escrow 
fund (trust account) held by a third-party. The amounts deposited in the trust account are invested in 
U.S. treasury securities and the interest and principal thereof shall be applied to the payment of the 
principal and interest on each of the outstanding Series 2007 A bonds payable through July l, 2020. 
Therefore, Series 2007A bonds are considered defeased 'in-substance' for accounting and financial 
reporting purposes, and the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not 
included in the City's financial statements. 

At June 30,2016, total funds available in the trust account equaled $14,599,760, and the outstanding 
principal and interest due on the Series 2007 A bonds equaled $15,646,475. The Series 20 16A bonds 
shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. The Series 2016B bonds 
maturing on and after July I, 2027 are subject to redemption at any time on and after July I, 2026 at 
a redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

Bond Refunding Gains or Losses 
The defeasance transaction of the Series 2007A bonds resulted in an accounting loss of $872,196, 
which is being amortized over the shmter life of the new refunding debt or the refunded (old) debt, 
with such amount being reported as deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position. 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, amortization expense of the bond refunding loss equaled $105,178. 

At closing, the total cash flows of the Series 2016A&B bonds debt service requirements equaled 
$15,725,667 and the total cash flows of the remaining 2007A bonds equaled $15,812,669, resulting 
in a savings of $87,002. The net present value of cash flows equaled $967,075, resulting in an 
economic gain. 

Amendment of Series 2009 Clean Water State Revolving Funds (SRF) Loan 
On October 27, 2014, the South Carolina State Budget and Control Board amended the Series 2009 
Clean Water State Revolving Funds Loan (Series 2009 SRF Loan) after processing the final draw 
request. The undisbursed loan funds of$1,081,166 were used to reduce the total loan amount to 
$33,793,369. Pursuant to Section 1.4.2 of the Series 2009 SRF Loan Agreement, the quarterly 
payments were recalculated based upon the final loan amount retroactive to the payment initiation 
date. A new amortization schedule with quarterly payment amounts equaling $525,732, took effect 
on Janumy I, 2015. The overpayment of $168,200 was applied as a simple credit to the December 
I, 2014 payment. The Series 2009 SRF Loan balance was $29,995,664 after the December I, 2014 
payment was applied. At June 30,2016, remaining proceed funds held in trust by the State equaled 
$714,979. 
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6. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

B. Business-Type Activities (continued) 

Wastewater System Contracts- State Revolving Fund Loans 
Pursuant to the 208 Water Quality Management Plan developed by the Central Midlands Council of 
Governments, the City has been designated as the wastewater treatment service regional provider. 
Accordingly, the City, in addition to its inside and outside customers, has various intergovernmental 
agreement customers. The following agreements also involves State Revolving Fund loans. 

Springdale Agreement 
On August 30, 2001, the City and the Town of Springdale entered into an agreement where the 
City provides sewer services to certain residents within the municipal limits of Springdale. 
Pursuant to the terms, Springdale pays the City an amount equal to all debt service and related costs 
associated with the Series 2002 SRF Loan. Annual remittances total $105,194, and under the terms 
of the contract, have been accounted for as sewer service revenue. Such contract and receipt of 
revenues shall be required for all periods that the Series 2002 SRF Loan is outstanding, but are 
contingent based on the annual budget appropriated by the Town of Springdale. The Series 2002 
SRF Loan matures on September I, 2023. 

Lexington and Commission Agreement 
On August 28, 2009, the City entered into a Wastewater Services Agreement with the Town of 
Lexington and the Lexington County Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission, which has a 
stated term of 30 years and may be automatically renewed for 2 successive I 0 year periods 
thereafter. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Commission pays the City principal, interest and debt 
service coverage for 30.183% of the Series 2009 SRF Loan debt service requirements (in addition 
to other rates and charges). The monthly payment amount is $52,894, or $634,728 annually, plus 
an additional 15% of such amount for debt service coverage. The Series 2009 SRF Loan matures 
on March I, 2032. According to the Agreement, revenue generated by the Debt Service Charge 
(as defined in the Agreement) shall be considered operating revenue for the City. 

Installment Purchase Contracts 
During FY 2015-2016, the City entered into an installment purchase contract totaling $639,000, and 
is collateralized by certain equipment used in the Water and Sewer Utility Fund. At June 30, 2016, 
total outstanding balance totaled $507,532. 
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6. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

C. Changes in Long-Term Debt 

Changes in the long-term debt of the City during the year ended June 30,2016, were as follows: 

Govermnental Activities: 
TIF Revenue Bonds- Series 2002 

Installment purchase contracts 

Accrued compensated absences 

Business~ty~c Activ!ties: 
Clean Water State Revolving 

Funds Loan- Series 2002 

Water and Sewer System 
Refunding and Improvement 

Date of 
Issue 

10/24/02 

Various 

12/01/02 

Outstanding 
6/30/15 

$ 949,858 $ 

$ 224,242 $ 

$ 358,395 $ 

$ 811,774 $ 

Outstanding 
Additions Retirements 6/30/16 

$ (458,144) $ 491,714 

$ (224,242) $ 

53,814 $ (17,639) $ 394,570 

- $ (109,889) $ 701,885 

Revenue Bonds- Series 2007A 9/11/07 $ 13,945,000 ;:;$~~~~ $(13,945,000) ;:;$~~~= 

Clean Water State Revolving 
Funds Loan- Series 2009 

Clean Water State Revolving 
Funds Loan- Series 2015 

Water and Sewer System 
Refunding Revenue Bonds­
Series 2016A (Taxable) 

Water and Sewer System 
Refunding Revenue Bonds­
Series 2016B (Non-taxable) 

Installment purchase contract 

Accrued compensated absences 

9/15/09 $ 29,279,642 ~$==~ $ (1,456,369) $ 27,823,273 

1/29/15 $ 3,734,073 ;:;$==~ $ (114,802) $ 3,619,271 

3/29/16 ;:;$~~~~ $ 8,470,000 ;;;$===~ $ 8,470,000 

3/29/16 ;:;$~~~~ $ 4,500,000 ;;;$===~ $ 4,500,000 

9/04/15 ;:;$~~~~ $ 639,000 $ (131,468) ;:;$=~5,;;07~,5~3~2 

$ 111,737 $ 44,769 $ (33,677) ;:;$=~1;;;22;;;,8;;;2~9 

Accrued compensated absences due within one year for the Govemmental Activities total $134,715 
and for Business-type Activities total $92,572 at June 30,2016. 
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Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

D. Annual Requirements for Long-Term Debt 

The annual debt service requirements to amortize all of the City's long-term debt, except accrued 
compensated absences, are summarized below: 

Total 
Interest Pl'inci!lal Reguirements 

Governmental Activities: 
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2002: 
2017 (due within one year) $ 15,060 $ 476,793 $ 491,853 

2018 302 14,921 15,223 

$ 15,362 $ 491,714 $ 507,076 

Total 
Interest Principal Reguirements 

Business-type Activities: 
SRF Loan, Series 2002 

2017 (due within one year) $ 15,035 $ 90,159 $ 105,194 
2018 12,990 92,204 I 05,194 
2019 10,898 94,296 I 05,194 
2020 8,758 96,436 105,194 
2021 6,570 98,624 105,194 

2022-2024 6,522 230,166 236,688 
$ 60,773 $ 701,885 $ 762,658 

SRF Loan, Series 2009 
20 17 (due within one year) $ 613,516 $ 1,489,414 $ 2,102,930 

2018 579,720 1,523,210 2, I 02,930 
2019 545,157 1,557,773 2,102,930 
2020 509,811 1,593,119 2,102,930 
2021 473,662 1,629,268 2,102,930 

2022-2026 1,796,709 8,717,941 10,514,650 
2027-2031 761,720 9,752,929 10,514,649 

2032 17,579 I ,559,619 1,577,198 
$ 5,297,874 $ 27,823,273 $ 33,121,147 

47 



6. 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-CONTINUED-

Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

D. Annual Requirements for Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Interest Princi1ml 
Business-type Activities (continued}: 

SRF Loan, Series 2015 
20 17 (due within one year) $ 7I,222 $ I55,765 

2018 68,083 158,904 
20I9 64,88I 162,106 
2020 61,614 I65,373 
202I 58,282 168,705 

2022-2026 239,029 895,906 
2027-2031 145,051 989,884 
2032-2036 42,073 922,628 

$ 750,235 $ 3,619,271 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A 
20 17 (due within one year) $ I30,996 $ 695,000 

20I8 159,922 I,675,000 
2019 138,24I 1,245,000 
2020 120,I33 765,000 
2021 103,708 780,000 

2022-2026 199,415 3,310,000 
$ 852,415 $ 8,470,000 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 
20 I 7 (due within one year) $ I34,376 $ 

2018 177,850 
2019 I77,850 
2020 177,850 
2021 177,850 

2022-2026 859,275 I,230,000 
2026-2031 198,200 3,270,000 

$ I ,903,25 I $ 4,500,000 

Installment Purchase Contract 
20 I 7 (due within one year) $ 5,973 $ 144,902 

2018 4,274 I60,3I6 
2019 1,902 162,689 
2020 100 39,625 

$ I2,249 $ 507,532 
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Total 
Reguirements 

$ 226,987 
226,987 
226,987 
226,987 
226,987 

I,I34,935 
I, 134,935 

964,701 
$ 4,369,506 

$ 825,996 
1,834,922 
1,383,241 

885,133 
883,708 

3,509,415 
$ 9,322,4I5 

$ 134,376 
177,850 
177,850 
177,850 
I77,850 

2,089,275 
3,468,200 

$ 6,403,251 

$ 150,875 
I64,590 
I 64,59 I 
39,725 

$ 519,781 
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6. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

D. Annual Requirements for Long-Term Debt (Continue!!) 

Revenue Bond Covenants 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the City's revenue bond ordinances 
and indentures. In 2016, the City adopted a Bond Ordinance where it requires, among other 
requirements, for the City to prescribe and maintain rates and charges for services and facilities 
furnished by the Water and Sewer Utility system which, together with other income, are reasonably 
expected to yield annual Net Earnings (as defined in the Bond Ordinance) in the current fiscal year 
equal to at least the sum of 115% of the Annual Principal and Interest Requirement in such fiscal year 
for all bonds outstanding. Net Earnings under the Bond Ordinance includes Capital Facility Charges. 

Prior to the Bond Ordinance, the City's outstanding bonds were governed by an indenture oftmst 
(Supplemental and Amended Indenture of Trust, dated July 15, 2004), where the City was required 
to meet rate covenant tests (i) where the City's Net Revenues without Capital Facility Charges would 
be at least I I 5% of Combined Debt Service, or (ii) where the City's Net Revenues without Capital 
Facility Charges would be at least I I 0% of Combined Debt Service plus at least 120% of Net 
Revenue with Capital Facility Charges to Combined Debt Service. 

The pledge and liens securing the SRF Loans (Series' 2002, 2009 and 20 15) are on parity in all 
respects with the pledges and liens securing the revenue bonds (Series 2016A&B). The City was in 
compliance with its covenant requirements at June 30, 20 I 6. 

7. Net Position 

Net position of the Government-wide and Proprietaty Fund financial statements represent the 
difference between assets and deferred outflows, less liabilities and deferred inflows. Reported 
amounts for net investment in capital assets and restricted net position were as follows: 

Govemmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

Net Investment in Capital Assets: 
Net capital assets $ 13,642,253 $ 124,520,000 
Less, revenue bonds and loans payable (491,714) ( 45,62 I ,962) 
Add, back pmtion of debt proceeds reported as 

restricted 714,979 
Less, construction and retainages payable (72,304) (791,018) 
Less, installment purchase contracts (507,5322 

Total net investment in capital assets $ 13,078,235 $ 78,314,467 
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Net Position (continued) 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Restricted: 
Restricted assets: 

Debt service $ 1,000,067 
Project and construction funds 789,311 
Tourism related 518,849 
Community development and housing 14,193 
Pensions and employee benefits 1, 749,168 
Law enforcement 13,093 
ABC permit activities 48,455 
Victim's Rights Assistance 21,233 

Less, liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Debt service related (3,303) 
Hospitality related (7,417) 
Capital projects related {54,066} 

Total restricted net position $ 4,089,583 

Employee Retirement 

The City's retirement program for its employees follows: 

Plan Description 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 1,159,595 
5,978,881 

790,609 

{209,038} 

$ 7,720,047 

The state of South Carolina provides retirement plans for employees of state agencies, public and 
charter school districts, public higher education institutions and other local subdivisions of 
government through the South Carolina Retirement System (the "Systems"). 

All City employees, excluding public safety employees (police and fire officers), are eligible for 
membership in the South Carolina Governmental Employees' Retirement System (SCRS). Public 
safety employees are covered by the South Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System (PORS). 
Both are cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement plans administered by the South 
Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA). The Systems' provisions are established under 
Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws. Actuarial determinations are made by the administrators for the 
Systems. 

Benefits 
The SCRS and PORS offers retirement and disability benefits, cost of living adjustments on an ad­
hoc basis, life insurance benefits and survivor benefits, and are established by State statutes. 
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8. Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Benefits (continued) 
Under current statutes, member employees who retire at age 65 or after 28 years (public safety 
employees after 25 years) of credited service are entitled to an annual full service retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, equal to !.82% of the employee's highest twelve consecutive quarters of 
compensation for non-public safety employees and 2.14% for public safety employees. 

Member employees who are at least 55 years of age may elect early retirement with reduced benefits. 
In either case, any unrecovered contributions are payable upon death and benefit payments increase 
4% each year following an increase in the Consumer Price Index of at least 3%. Full service or early 
retirees may elect other optional methods of benefit distributions, including lump stun distributions, 
benefit levels coordinated with the retiree's social security benefits, and distributions to a named 
beneficimy. Benefits are fully vested on reaching five years of service. The retirement plans also 
provides death and disability benefits to all member employees. 

Funding Policy 
The City's total pensionable wages ("covered payroll") for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 
2014, were approximately $8,359,967, $7,923,045, and $7,612,085 respectively, while total wages 
("covered-employee") were $8,565,569, $7,985,444, and $7,668, I 05, for the years ended 2016, 2015, 
and 2014, respectively. State statutes also determine the levels of contributions required by both 
employers and employees. 

For the year ended June 30,2016, SCRS contribution rates were 8.16% and 1!.06% for non-public 
safety employees and the employer, respectively. PORS contribution rates were 8.74% and 13.74% 
for public safety employees and the employer, respectively. Effective July I, 2016, for non-public 
safety employees, the employee contribution rate will be 8.66% and the employer required 
contribution will be 11.06%, which includes .15% of group life coverage. Effective July I, 2016, for 
public safety employees, the employee contribution rate will be 9.24% and the employer contribution 
rate will be 13.84%, which includes .2% of group life and .2% of accidental death coverage. The 
City contributed I 00% of the required contribution for each of the plans for the years ending June 
30,2016,2015, and 2014, as shown in the following table. 

SCRS PORS 
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 

Wages: 
Covered payroll $ 5,443,028 $ 5,133,635 $ 4,849,702 $ 2,916,939 $ 2,789,410 $ 2,762,383 

Contribution rates: 
Employees 8.16% 8.0% 7.5% 8.74% 8.41% 7.84% 
Employer 11.06% 10.9% 10.6% 13.74% 13.41% 12.84% 

Contributions: 
Employees $ 444,152 $ 427,593 $ 363,728 $ 254,942 $ 217,686 $ 216,571 
Employer $ 635,004 $ 557,599 $ 514,069 $ 406,098 $ 374,067 $ 354,690 
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8. Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
At June 30,2016, the City repmted a liability of$15,291,145 for the measurement period June 30, 
2015 for its propmtionate share of the net pension liabilities, of which $10,383,791 was for SCRS 
and $4,907,354 was for PORS. The net pension liabilities were measured by PEBA as of June 30, 
2015 and the total pension liabilities used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of July I, 2014 and rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The City's proportion 
share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all patticipating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, PEBA reported the City's proportion of the 
collective net pension liability was 0.0547510% for SCRS and 0.225160% for PORS. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,228,556, of which 
$808,399 was for SCRS ($404,073 in Governmental Activities and $404,326 in the Business-type 
Activities) and $420, !57 for PORS (all Governmental Activities), respectively. 

Comgonents of Change in Net Pension Liability (NPL) 
Changes in the net pension liability for the 

measurement period, June 30,2015, follows: 
SCRS PORS Total 

Pension expense: 
Service cost $ 407,456 $ 346,976 $ 754,432 
Interest on total pension liability 1,723,611 980,185 2,703,796 
Changes in plan benefits 
Plan administrative costs 6,873 4,369 11,242 
Plan member contributions (392,076) (240,592) (632,668) 
Expected return on plan assets (1,036,769) (666,886) (1,703,655) 
Recognition of deferred outflows - current year 

amortization 76,748 33,010 109,758 
Recognition of deferred inflows- current year 

amortization 21,829 (34,518) (12,689) 
Other 727 (2,387) (I ,660) 

Total pension expense 808,399 420,157 1,228,556 

PEBA employer contribution (559,562) (374,130) (933,692) 

Changes in deferred items (net of amortization): 
Outflow- Plan performance (76,563) (19,719) (96,282) 
Outflow- Assumption changes 
Inflow- Investment experience 576,368 427,770 1,093,304 
Inflow- Allocated proportion 171,241 171,241 
Inflow- Plan performance (18,570) (18,570) 
Inflow- Assumption changes 
Inflow- Investment experience 180,663 133,160 313,823 
Inflow- Allocated propmtion change (63,654) (63,654) 

Total change in net pension liability $ I,I7I,l42 $ 523,584 $ 1,694,726 
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Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Exgenses, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued) 
At June 30, 20 I 6, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

SCRS PORS Total 
Differences between expected and actual plan 

performance $ 184,485 $ 97,266 $ 281,751 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 576,368 427,770 1,004,138 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
City contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 171,241 171,241 

City contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 635,004 406,098 I ,041,102 

Employer differences 41,545 41,545 

Total $ 1,608,643 $ 931,134 $ 2,539,777 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Relate(! to Pensions 

SCRS PORS Total 
Differences between expected and actual plan 

performance $ 18,570 $ $ 18,570 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 506,864 374,074 880,938 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
City contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 63,654 63,654 

Employer differences 4,448 47,174 51,622 

Total $ 529,882 $ 484,902 $ 1,014,784 
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8. Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued) 
The $1,041,102 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Fiscal year ended June 30: 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Fiscal year ended June 30: 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Actuarial Assumptions 

$ 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

SCRS PORS Total 

287,990 $ 
224,841 
224,841 
235,967 

140,080 $ 
140,080 
140,080 
104,796 

428,070 
364,921 
364,921 
340,763 

$ 973,639 $ 525,036 $ 1,498,675 

$ 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

SCRS PORS Total 

176,645 $ 
176,645 
176,592 

155,090 
155,090 
154,696 
20,026 

$ 331,735 
331,735 
331,288 

20,026 

$ 529,882 $ 484,902 ~::;;;;;:;~~ ,;:;~~~ $ I ,0 14,784 

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 20 IS actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Cost Method 

Inflation 

Projected salary increases 

Benefit adjustments 

Investment rate of return 

SCRS 
Entty Age Normal 

2.75% 

3.5% to 12.5% 
(varies by service) 

lesser of I% or $500 annually 

7.5%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, 
including inflation 
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PORS 
Entry Age Normal 

2.75% 

4.0% to 10.0% 
(varies by service) 

lesser of I% or $500 annually 

7 .5%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, 
including inflation 
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8. Employee Reth·ement (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 
M01tality rates were based on the RP-2000 M01tality Table for Males or Females, by job class, as 
appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA, projected from the 
year 2000. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 20 IS valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study on data through June 30,2010. The next actuarial experience study is scheduled to 
be conducted after the June 30, 2016 annual valuation is completed. 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments, as used in the June 30, 2015, 
actuarial valuations, was based upon the 30 year capital market outlook at the end of the fourth quatter 
2013, as developed by the Retirement Systems Investment Commission (RSIC) in collaboration with 
its investment consultant, A on Hewitt. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions 
developed using an arithmetic building block approach, reflecting observable inflation and interest 
rate information available in the fixed income markets as well as Consensus Economics forecasts. 
Long-term assumptions for other asset classes are based on historical results, current market 
characteristics, and professional judgment. 

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset 
allocation as adopted by the RSIC for fiscal year 2015. The long-term expected rate of return is 
produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.50% 
assumed annual investment rate of return set in statute and used in the calculation of the total pension 
liability includes a 4.75% real rate of return and a 2.75% inflation component. 
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8. Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return (continued) 
The RSIC has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds' assets. As co­
fiducimy of the SCRS and PORS plans, statutmy provisions and governance policies allow the RSIC 
to operate in a manner consistent with a long-term investment time horizon. The expected real rates 
of investment return, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset 
allocation adopted annually by the RSIC. For actuarial purposes, the long-term expected rate of 
return is calculated by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation 
percentage and then adding the actuarial expected inflation which is summarized in the table on the 
following page. For actuarial purposes, the 7.50% assumed annual investment rate of return, used in 
the calculation of the total pension liability includes a 4.75% real rate of return and a 2.75% inflation 
component as adopted by the RSIC for 2015. 

Expected Long Term 
Arithmetic Expected 

Target Asset Real Rate of Portfolio Real 
Allocation Retum Rate of Return 

Asset Class 
Short Term: 

Cash 2.0% 1.90% 0.04% 
Shott Duration 3.0% 2.00% 0.06% 

Domestic Fixed Income: 
Core Fixed Income 7.0% 2.70% 0.19% 
Mixed Credit 6.0% 3.80% 0.23% 

Global Fixed Income: 
Global Fixed Income 3.0% 2.80% 0.08% 
Emerging Markets Debt 6.0% 5.10% 0.31% 

Global Public Equity 31.0% 7.10% 2.20% 
Global Tactical Asset Allocation 10.0% 4.90% 0.49% 
Alternatives: 

Hedge Funds (Low Beta) 8.0% 4.30% 0.34% 
Private Debt 7.0% 9.90% 0.69% 
Private Equity 9.0% 9.90% 0.89% 
Real Estate (Broad Market) 5.0% 6.00% 0.30% 
Commodities 3.0% 5.90% 0.18% 

Total expected real return 100.0% 6.00% 
Inflation for actuarial purposes 2.75% 

Total expected nominal return 8.75% 
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8. Employee Retirement (Continued) 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities at June 30, 2015, was 7.50%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
participating employers in SCRS and PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates 
based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, each System's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity Analysis 
Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.5%) 
or one percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

SCRS 
PORS 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liabilities to 
changes in the discount rate 

1% Decrease 
(6.5%) 

$ 13,090,994 
$ 6,685,051 

$ 
$ 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.5%) 
10,383,791 
4,907,354 

1% Increase (8.5%) 
$ 8,114,811 
$ 3,318,313 

Pension Plans Fiducimy Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiducimy net position is available in the separately 
issued PEBA financial report. A comprehensive annual financial report containing financial 
statements and required supplementaty information for the SCRS and PORS, which is issued and 
publicly available on the website www.retirement.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting 
in writing a request to the South Carolina Retirement System, P. 0. Box 11960, Columbia, SC 29211-
1960. 
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9. Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension 

Plan Description 
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the City maintains a policy whereby an 
employee who was hired prior to July I, 2009 and who qualifies under the South Carolina Retirement 
System's regular service retirement and who has 15 years of service with the City will have the 
opportunity to patiicipate in the City's single employer defined benefit other post-employment 
benefit (OPEB) plan, hereafter referred to as "OPEB" or the "Program". The plan offers retired 
employees' premium payments for the employee group health insurance plan (including dental) at 
no cost. The City's policy premium rates were $680.94 for the retiree and $677.34 for the spouse for 
the year ended June 30, 2016. The retiree pays nothing for retiree only coverage and pays the full 
premium rate of $677.34 for spouse coverage. The program covers the retired employee until the 
earlier of (I) the retired employee reaches age 65, or (2) the retired employee qualifies for health 
insurance under another plan. The City (through the Mayor and Council) currently administers the 
program and maintains the authority for establishing benefits and funding policy. The program does 
not issue separate stand-alone financial statements and is not included in the financial statements of 
another entity. 

Funding Policy 
The City's contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis and therefore, no trust fund has been 
established which would maintain plan assets. At June 30, 2016, the City had 5 retired employees 
with an average age of 57 years covered by the program with monthly premium costs averaging 
$680.94 per patiicipant. Total expenses funded by the City for the year ended June 30, 2016 were 
$43,573 (or 16.7%) of the annual required contribution; all which have been funded by the General 
Fund and none have been funded by the Proprietary Fund. For prior fiscal years 2015 and 2014, total 
funding expenses were $36,153 and $30,728 respectively. 

Annual Other Post-Employment Benefit COPEB) Cost 
The annual required contribution ("ARC") represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities 
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The City's annual other post-employment 
benefit (OPEB) cost for the current year and the related information for the program is as follows: 

Employer normal costs $ 106,014 
Amortization ofUAL 151,490 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 257,504 
Interest on net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation 93,160 
Adjustment to required annual contribution (12,803) 
Annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost 337,861 
Contributions made ( 43,573) 
Increase in net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation 294,288 
Net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation- beginning of year 2,070,209 

Net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation- end of year ,;;$_;;2,~3,;;6,;,4,;,;4,;,9::7= 
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9. Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension (continued) 

Annual Other Post-Employment Benefit COPEB) Cost (continued) 
The City's annual other post-employment benefit cost was $337,861, $218,751, and $429,977, for 
the fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The City's net other post-employment benefit 
(OPEB) obligation was $2,314,497, $2,070,208, and $1,887,611, for the fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 
2014, respectively. The City contributed 12.9%, 16.5%, and 7.1%, of the annual other post­
employment benefit cost for the years ended June 30,2016,2015, and 2014, respectively. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,259,061 as of the last actuarial valuation as of July 
I, 2015, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered 
by the plan at February 20 15) was $3,249,099, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
to the covered payroll was 70% . The covered payroll in the plan as of June 30, 2015 was $7,985,444, 
and $8,565,569 at June 30,2016. 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repmted amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the other post­
employment benefit (OPEB) and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary 
information provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of other 
post-employment benefit (OPEB) assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits are based on the substantive program (the program as understood by the City 
and patticipants) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of 
sharing benefit costs between the City and the participants to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect 
a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce shmt-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued other post-employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities and the actuarial 
value of other post-employment benefit (OPEB) assets. 

In the actuarial valuation dated July I, 2015, the Entty Age Normal cost method and the Level Dollar 
Amount Open amortization method were used. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL") 
ammtization payment is the level percentage of payroll required to fully amortize the UAAL over a 
30 year period. The remaining ammtization period is 29 years. The actuarial assumptions included 
an estimated investment rate of return of 4.50% (which is the annual return net of both administrative 
and investment related expenses) and a healthcare inflation rate of9.5% to 5% at a constant rate over 
ten years for fiscal years 2015 and later. The health care trend rate used in the actuarial study was 
medical= 9.5%, dental= 2.00%, and life= 0.00%. The three year average medical trend was 9.0% 
as of June 30,2015. 
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The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries 
commercial propetiy insurance coverage; general liability coverage; inland marine and automobile 
liability; professional and public official's liability; and various Fidelity bond coverages for its 
employees. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the current year, and 
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. 

During the fiscal year, the City's business risk insurance provides building and content coverage up 
to $114,062 million general liability for prope1iy and casualty and up to $!million general liability 
for persons or property per occurrence. 

11. Capacity Chat·ges and Other Capital Contributions 

Capacity charges and capital contributions in the Water and Sewer Utility Fund for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, has been recognized as non-operating revenue. A summary of cash receipts, 
receivables, and system contributions received fi·om developers during the year ended June 30, 2016, 
were as follows: 

Contributed propetiy by developers 
Capacity charges 
Return of disputed capital contributions 
Total capacity charges to customers under agreement and other 

capital contributions recognized 

12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

$ 483,147 
1 ,308,127 
(842,659) 

$ 948,615 

The City is party to legal proceedings that normally occur in governmental operations. City officials 
believe the legal proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the affected funds 
of the City. 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 
In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal and state 
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of 
which is to insure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. 

Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. However, management 
believes that any required refunds would be immaterial and no provision has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 
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13. Reconciliation of Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanations of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 

The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance amounts and 
Net Position- Governmental Activities. The details of the reconciled amounts are as follows: 

Capital assets in governmental activities are not fincmcial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements: 

Capital assets $ 24,005,732 
Less, accumulated depreciation (I 0,363,479) 

Net amount repmted ;;;,$-~13;;,:•:;;6,;,42;;,~2;;;5;;;3_ 

Other assets not available to pay for current period expenditures ancl, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

State shared (local government fund) and accommodation tax revenue $ 127,789 
Contractual rights for animal services 95,000 
Property taxes revenue 58,455 

Net amount repmted $~ __ ;;;2;;;8;;1':;;2,;4,;4_ 

Deferred outflows related to pensions are not included in the pension 
liability as of the measurement date, and, therefore are reported in the 
fund financial statements but deferred at the government-wide level. ;:;$ __ ,;;1 '!,;7,;4,;;91,;, 1:::6;;;8_ 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in 
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the fimd financial 
statements: 

Revenue bond and installment purchase contracts $ (491,713) 
Accrued compensated absences (394,570) 
Net pension liabilities (10,017,523) 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) (1,569, 774) 

Net amount reported ;;;,$_,):(1;,;2::1,,4,::7;;;3~,5:;;8;;;0~)= 

Deferred inflows related to pensions are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the fimd financial statements. ;:;$ __ :!(:;7;;;8,::1 '1,;;6;;;1,;1'=) = 
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13. Reconciliation of Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

B. Explanations of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

The Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance and Changes in Net Position -
Governmental Activities. The details of the reconciled amounts are as follows: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as e.\]Jenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the current period: 

Capital outlay expenditures $ 2,409,397 
Donated equipment I ,580 
Depreciation expense (708,459) 

Net amount repmted ;:;$ __ ,;1~,7;;0;;2;~,,5;;,1;;8;,_ 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are reported as revenues in these funds: 

Prope11y taxes and state shared revenue ,$ ____ ~920,0'-'8"6'--

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds: 

$ 9,086 

Change in accrued compensated absence $ (36, 175) 
Animal control service agreement expense (5,000) 
Pension expenses (109,496) 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) (222,229) 

Net amount repmted ;;;$ __ d;(3;,;7;;;2;;,9;;;0;;;0l"== 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while repayment of principal and interest consumes current 
financial resources of governmental funds. This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items: 

Principal repayments -Installment purchase contracts $ 224,248 
Principal repayments- TIF Bonds 458,144 

Net amount repmted $ 682,392 
==~~~ 
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The City has a commitment from the state of South Carolina for the issuance of a Clean Water State 
Revolving Funds Loan in an estimated principal amount not to exceed $26,000,000. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events which may require disclosure through the date of the 
auditor's report. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
(With comparative actual amounts for year ended June 30, 2015) 

2016 2015 
Variance 

Budget Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual 

Revenue 
Property taxes $ 2,934,309 $ 2,934,309 $ 3,059,485 $ 125,176 $ 2,935,332 
Licenses and permits 3,842,500 3,842,500 4,799,886 957,386 6,969,845 
Fines and forfeitures 295,500 295,500 260,880 (34,620) 329,068 
State shared revenue 343,000 343,000 362,805 19,805 362,744 
Current services 818,204 818,204 796,448 (21,756) 848,100 
Grants and other 1,853,400 578,079 1,521,125 943,046 1,836,617 
Interest income 1,600 1,600 1,076 (524) 1,666 

Total revenue 10,088,513 8,813,192 10,801,705 1,988,513 13,283,372 

ExJlenditures 
General Government 

Legislative 126,089 126,089 122,910 3,179 97,212 
Administrative 646,906 647,332 704,994 (57,662) 591,618 
Recorder's Court 179,469 179,469 167,983 11,486 157,968 
Legal 73,575 73,575 I 01,676 (28,101) 148,333 

Total 1,026,039 1,026,465 1,097,563 (71,098) 995,131 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (586,591) (586,591) (576,270) 

Net general government 1,026,039 439,874 510,972 (71 ,098) 418,861 

Information Technology 
Administrative 210,704 210,704 221,418 (10,714) 222,904 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (109,625) (109,625) (105,252) 
Less capital outlay (36,903) (36,903) (39,359) 

Net information technology 210,704 64,176 74,890 (10,714) 78,293 

Finance 
Finance and accounting 287,774 287,774 289,326 (1,552) 257,891 
Tax collection 21,110 21,110 21,200 (90) 20,857 

Total 308,884 308,884 310,526 (1,642) 278,748 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (224,505) (224,505) (229,001) 

Net finance 308,884 84,379 86,021 (I ,642) 49,747 

Public Safety 
Administrative 494,538 494,538 500,811 (6,273) 464,540 
Police -Detectives 683,763 683,763 683,974 (211) 602,601 
Police - Traffic 3,270,381 3,270,668 3,140,642 130,026 3,204,498 
Fire 1,169,762 1,717,221 1,760,522 (43,301) 915,290 
Animal services 147,248 147,248 133,326 13,922 126,837 
Parks 296,470 296,470 287,807 8,663 

Total 6,062,162 6,609,908 6,507,082 102,826 5,313,766 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (89,826) (89,826) (91,796) 
Less, capital outlay (576,584) (813,115) (813,115) (249,068) 

Net public safety 5,485,578 5,706,967 5,604,141 102,826 4,972,902 
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2016 

Budget 
Original Final Actual 

Expenditures (Continued) 
Public Wori<S 

Street lighting 232,000 236,410 291,850 
Sanitation I ,072,451 1,109,782 1,067,010 
Public buildings 98,964 545,760 422,948 

Total 1,403,415 1,891,952 1,781,808 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (43,392) (43,392) 
Less, capital outlay (314,221) (314,221) 

Net public works I 403 415 I 534 339 1,424,195 

Community Relations 
Promotions and events 95,578 119,178 146,529 

Total community relations 95,578 119,178 146,529 

Planning and Development 
Planning and zoning 457,477 816,277 866,930 
Less, capital outlay (358,800) (358,800) 

Total planning and 
development 457,477 457,477 508,130 

Parks and Museum 
Parks 649,241 851,816 815,480 
Museum 223,678 223,678 222,059 

Total 872,919 1,075,494 1,037,539 
Less, capital outlay (270,777) (270,777) 

Net parks and museum 872,919 804,717 766,762 

Garage 
Garage 379,232 379,428 361,581 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (I 00,992) (I 00,992) 

Net garage 379,232 278,436 260,589 

Non-departmental and 
Support Services 
Non-departmental and 

support services 154,313 154,313 43,573 
Less, Utility Fund overhead (43,305) ( 43,305) 
Less, capital outlay 

Net support services 154,313 111,008 268 
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2015 
Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) Actual 

(55,440) 331,136 
42,772 1,177,801 

122,812 111,415 
110,144 1,620,352 

(49,957) 
(260,448) 

110,144 1,309,947 

(27,351) 143,347 
(27,351) 143,347 

(50,653) 352,961 
(7,366) 

(50,653) 345,595 

36,336 714,032 
1,619 145,247 

37,955 859,279 
(196,805) 

37,955 662,474 

17,847 341,575 
(I 03,635) 

17,847 237,940 

II 0,740 49,253 
(5,082) 

(17,695) 
110,740 26,476 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

-CONTINUED-

2016 2015 
Variance 

Budget Positive 
Original Final Actual {Negative) Actual 

_E;xl'enditures {Continued) 
Debt Service 

Principal retirement 227,877 227,877 224,248 3,629 376,613 
Interest and fiscal charges 10,286 10,286 3,288 6,998 10,222 

Total debt service 238,163 238,163 227,536 10,627 386,835 
Less, overhead allocated-

Utility Fund (79, 185) (79,185) (143,980) 
Net debt service 238,163 158,978 148,351 10,627 242,855 

Capital Outlay 576,584 1,793,816 1,793,816 770,741 

Total expenditures 11,208,886 11,553,345 11,324,664 228,681 9,259,178 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenditures (1,120,373) (2,740,153) (522,959) 2,217,194 4,024,194 

Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 

Installment purchase contract 466,104 466,104 (466,104) 
Proceeds from sale of assets (10,000) (10,000) 35,000 25,000 16,972 
Transfers in: 

Accommodations Tax Fund 39,000 60,500 99,172 38,672 67,484 
Hospitality tax 605 269 605,269 605,269 348,816 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 1,120,373 1,141,873 739,441 (402,432) 433,272 

Net change in fund balance (1,598,280) 216,482 1,814,762 4,457,466 

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,684,864 5,684,864 5,684,864 1,227,398 

Fund balance, end of year $ 5,684,864 $ 4,086,584 $ 5,901,346 $ 1,814,762 $ 5,684,864 

See Notes to Budgelm)' Comparison Schedule 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30,2016 

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

A legal operating budget is prepared annually for the General Fund and Water and Sewer Utility 
Fund. Informal budgetmy controls are maintained for other funds, and accordingly budgetary 
comparisons to actual are not presented. Generally, budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles. If applicable, project length financial plans are adopted for 
all capital project funds. 

The City follows the procedures described below in establishing its annual budget. 

By April I, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the 
fiscal year commencing the following July I. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures (expenses) and the means of financing them. 

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

By June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance to set the tax levy 
(millage) for the fiscal year. 

Appropriations lapse, except for encumbered amounts, at the end of each fiscal year. 

The City Manager is authorized to administer the budget and transfer amounts within and between 
depattments and funds as necessary and designate continuing projects from fund balances or 
additional unbudgeted revenue and transfers. Subsequent expenditures approved by Council shall 
automatically carry amendments to fund appropriation where applicable. Accordingly, the legal level 
of budgeting control is made by fund appropriation. 

Budgeted amounts presented in the schedule are as originally adopted, or as amended. If budgeted 
expenditures exceeded estimated revenues, these deficits were funded (if necessary) by unreserved 
and applicable reserved fund balances, additionalunbudgeted revenue and transfers. 

The General Fund operated under a final expenditure budget totaling $9,953,345, plus $1,600,000 
Utility Fund overhead allocations, which have been netted against departmental expenditures in the 
comparison schedule, and other financing sources (uses) of $1, 141,873. 

Budget to Actual Deficits 
Should actual General Fund expenditures exceed final budget, such differences would be funded by 
unreserved and reserved fund balances, additionalunbudgeted revenue, and transfers as applicable. 

B. Pensions 

Changes of benefit terms: None 
Changes to assumptions: None 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
7101/08 
7101112 
7101115 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

OTHER POST -EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Funded 
Value Liabllity (AAL)- Unfunded AAL Ratio 

Assets {a) Entry;\ge (b) (UAAL) (1>-a) ~<<tll>L 
$2,477,000 $2,477,000 0% 
$1,807,942 $1,807,942 0% 
$2,259,061 $2,259,061 0% 

UAALas a 
Percentage of 

Covered Covered Pa)TOII 
Payroll [(b-a)lc] 

$5,161,000 48% 
$6,927,435 26% 
$3,249,099 70% 

Note: The City obtains triennial valuations. The next scheduled valuation date is July 1, 2018. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

2016 
City's proportion of the net 

pension liability N/A 

City' s proportion share of the net 
pension liability N/A 

City's covered pa)Toll 
(pensionable) $ 5.443.028 

City' s proportion share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage 
of its covered payroii N/A 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability N/A 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SCRS) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*C1l 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 

0.54751% 0.53510% N/A N/A N/A 

$ 10.383.791 $ 9.212.648 $ 9.597.785 N/A N/A 

$ 5,133.635 $ 4.849.702 $ 4.933.520 N/A N/A 

202.3% 190.0% 194.5% N/A N/A 

57.0% 59.9% N/A N/A N/A 

2010 

NIA 

NIA 

N!A 

N/A 

NIA 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year determined as of measurement year that occurred within the fiscal 

(I) Because prior year data is unavailable, the City has elected to present information prospectively. 
Nl A- Not available 

2009 

NIA 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

year. 

2008 2007 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 
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2016 
Contractually required 

contribution $ 635.004 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required 
contribution $ 635.004 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 

City's covered payroll 
(pensionable) $ 5,443.028 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 11.7% 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTII CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SCRS) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEA.RS(l) 

2014 2013 2012 

$ 591.529 $ 514.069 $ 486.663 NIA NIA 

$ 591.529 s 514.069 s 486.663 NIA NIA 

$ s s N/A N/A 

$ 5,133.635 $ 4.849,702 $ 4.933.520 NIA N/A 

11.5% 10,6% 9.9"/o NIA N!A 

(IJ Because prior year data is unavailable, the City has elected to present information prospectively. 
N/ A- Not available 

2010 2009 2008 2007 

NIA N/A NIA NIA 

~/A 'II A "!/A 1'/A 

NIA N/A N/A NiA 

N/A N!A N/A N/A 

)4/A ~/A :<f/A ":'1./A 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PORS) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*CII 
(Dollar amount in thousands) 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 
City" s proportion of the net 

pension liability (asset) N/A 0.225160% 0.22899% N/A N/A N/A N/A NIA 

City· s proportion share of the net 
pension liability (asset) N/A $ 4.907.354 $ 4.383.771 $ 4.746.817 NIA N/A N/A NIA 

City" s covered payroll 
(pensionable) $ 2.916.939 $ 2.789.410 $ 2.762.383 $ 2.267.964 NIA NIA N/A NIA 

City" s proportion share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered payroll NIA 175.9% 158.7% 209.0% N/A NIA N/A NIA 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability N/A 64.6% 67.5% NIA NIA N/A N/A NIA 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year determined as of the measurement year that occurred within the fiscal year. 

(I) Because prior year data is unavailable, the City has elected to present information prospectively. 
N/ A- Not available 

2008 2007 

N/A N/A 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PORS) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARSl1l 

(Dollar amount in thousands) 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2tll!_ ___ :l_Q10 
Contractually required 

contribution $ 406.098 $ 374.067 $ 354.690 $ 321.072 N/A NIA 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required 
contribution s 406.098 $ 374,067 $ 354,690 $ 321.072 NIA N/A 

Contribution deficiency (e.'<cess) $ ----$ -$ $ - NIA NIA 

City' s covered payroll 
(pensionable) $ 2.916.939 $ 2,789.410 $ 2. 762,383 $ 2,267,964 N/A NIA 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covere<J payroll 13_9% 13.4% 12.8% 14.2% N/A N/A 

(!)Because prior year data is unavailable, the City has elected to present information prospectively. 
N! A- Not available 

NIA 

NIA 

N/A 

NIA 

N/A 

2009 2008 2007 -- ----·-·-·-

NIA NIA N/A 

N/A NIA N/A 

N/A N/A N/A 

NIA N/A NIA 

N/A NIA N/A 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



COMBINING 'NON-MAJOR' GOVERNMENTAL 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Unrestricted 

Restricted 
Hospitality taxes receivable 

Other receivables 
Total assets 

Liabilities and Fum! Balances 
Liabilities: 

Total 
Special Debt 

Revenue Service 
Funds Fund 

$ 83,801 $ $ 

Capital 
Projects 

507,802 1,000,067 789,311 

85,038 

... 1,750 
$ 678,391 

Total 
Non-Major 

Govemmental 
Funds 

$ 83,801 
2,297,180 

85,038 

1,750 

Accounts payable $ 7,417 $ 7,417 
3,303 

··--c::~::- _ __;:5~4.>.;:, 0.;;66:;- __ --;54,0§§ 

$ $ 
Accrued interest 
Construction and retainages payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 

Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Tourism and community 

development 

ABC penni! activities 

Redevelopment plan 
Law enforcement 

Total restricted 

Assigned for: 

Museum 
Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

3,303 

7 417 54 066 64 786 

996,764 

525,625 

48,455 

735,245 

13,09}_ ~-···- - ~~~- ·······~13,093._ 

996,764 

525,625 

48,455 

735,245 

587,173 996 764 --~~~.245 2,319,182 

83,801 83,801 

§70,974 ~0J.~' ........... 2,402,983 

$ 678,391 $ 1,000,067 $ $ 2,467,769 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Revenue 
Property taxes 
Accommodation and hospitality taxes 
State shared revenue 
Federal, state and other grants 
Interest income 

Total revenue 

Expenditures 
Planning and community development: 

Tourism related 
Housing 
Miscellaneous 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenne over 
expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in (out) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

$ 

Total 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds 

1,068,426 
17,250 

621 

1,086,297 

100,719 
9 

85,381 
186 109 

900,188 

_17Q~,441) 

195,747 

475,227 

$ 670,974 

74 

Total 
Debt Non-Major 

Set"Vice Capital Governmental 
Fund Pr()j~c~ Funds 

$ 1,008,560 $ $ 1,008,560 

$ 

45,939 
137,043 

125 ........ ~ -- ~ ·-----
1,054,624 __ 1_37,043 

458,144 
33,709 

491,853 

562,771 

(700,000) 

(137,229) 

1,133,993_ 

996,764 $ 

38 

530,200 
530,238 

(393,195) 

7QQ,OOO 

306,805 

428,440 - ,,,,,, 

735,245 $ 

1,068,426 
63,189 

137,664 
125 

2 277,964 

100,719 
9 

38 

458,144 
33,709 

615,581 
1,208,200 

1,069,764 

(704,441) 

365,323 

2,037,660 

2,402,983 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



INDIVIDUAL FUND 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



GENERAL FUND 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2016 
(With comparative figures June 30, 2015) 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Prope1ty taxes receivable 
Other receivables 
Less, allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 
Inventory- supplies (at cost) 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and wages 
Other liabilities 
Deposits and prepayments 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Nonspendable in: 

Inventories 
Prepaid items 

Restricted for: 
Victims Rights Assistance 

Committed for: 
UST program 

Assigned for: 
Christmas in Cayce 
Congaree Bluegrass Festival 
Histmy Park 

Unassigned 
Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

75 

Current Year 

$ 5,230,632 
945,916 

1,482,714 
212,675 

(1,447,029) 
102,373 

64,979 

$ 6,592,260 

$ 134,610 
439,294 

23,224 
84,471 
9,315 

~~~~690,914 

64,979 

64,979 

21,233 

25,000 

8,875 
3,259 

918,466 
930,6()Q_ 

4,859,534 
5,901,346 

$ 6,592,260 

Prior Year 

$ 4,044,255 
920,777 

1,410,246 
206,940 

(1,357,431) 
260,716 
505,935 

53,208 

$ 6,044,646 

$ 

$ 

213,331 
50,324 
23,224 
59,447 
13,456 

359,782 

53,208 
505,935 
559,143 

52,783 

25,000 

5,144 

918,466 
923,610 

4 124 328 
5,684,864 

6,044,646 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES·­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative actual amounts year ended June 30, 20 15) 

.G~rrent Year Prior Year 
Final VariaJt-ce-

Budget Actual Pos. (Neg.) Aetna I 
Revenue 

Property taxes $ 2,934,309 $ 3,059,485 $ 125,176 $ 2,935,332 
Licenses and ~ermits 3,842,500 4,799,886 957,386 6,969,845 
Fines and for eitures 295,500 260,880 (34,620) 329,068 
State shared revenue 343,000 362,805 19,805 362,744 
Current services 818,204 796,448 (21,756) 848,100 
Grants and other 578,079 1,521,125 943,046 1,836,617 
Interest income I 600 1,076 ..... ___ c~w~ 1,666 

Total revenue -88T:l'm-- W SOl 705 
...... ~ 

_!,9885 13,283,372 

Expenditures 
Cu11'ent (net of Utility Fund overhead 

a/localious and capital outla)~: 
L~islative 73,637 70,458 3,179 69,602 
A ministrative 142,548 200,210 (57,662) 78,309 
Recorder~s court 179,469 167,983 11,486 157,968 
Lefoal 44,220 ~~:~~6 (28,101~ 112,982 
In ormation technology 64,176 10,714 78,293 
Finance and accounting 63,269 64,821 (1,552 28,890 
Tax collector 21,110 21,200 (90 20,857 
Public safety: 

Administrative 443,118 449,391 (6,273l 411,712 
Detectives 657,476 657,687 (211 602,601 
Police 3,098,962 2,968,936 130,026 2,922,697 
Fire 1,134,108 1,177,409 {43,301) 909,055 
Animal services 137,965 124,043 13,922 126,837 
Parks 235,338 226,675 8,663 

Street lighting 232,000 287,440 (55,440) 249,684 
Sanitation 1,084,834 1,042,062 42,772 1,001,242 
Public buildin~s 217,505 94,693 122,812 59,021 
Community re ations 119,178 146,529 (27,351) 143,347 
Planning and development 457,477 508,130 50,653 345,595 
Museum 160,890 159,271 !,619 145,247 
Parks 643,827 607,491 36,336 517,227 
Gmage 278,436 260,589 17,847 237,940 
Non-departmental and support services lli,008 268 110,740 26,476 

Debt service 158,978 148,351 10,627 242,855 
Capital outlay 1,793,816 1,793,816 770,741 

T o!al expenditures ......11553 345 11,324,6()4 22868r- 9259 178 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures ......Jb71(),illL ~~4,{)~4 194 

Other Financing Sources (uses) 
Installment purchase 466,104 (466,104) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 10,000 35,000 25,000 16,972 
Transfers in: 

Accommodation lax 60,500 99,172 38,672 67,484 
Hospitality tax 605,269 605,269 348 816 

Total other financing sources (uses) 114-1.~ 'JH 441 :...._!.<Hl2,432) 433'2n--

Net change in fund balance (1,598,280) 216,482 1,814,762 4,457,466 

Fund balance, begiMing of year 5 684 864 ~~1,§§.1_ I 22[,3'JL_ 

Fund balance, end of year $ 4,086,584 $ $ !,814,762 $ 5,684,864 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Revenue 
Property taxes: 

Property tax- current (Lexington County) 
Property tax-- current (Richland County} 
Penalties- current 
Property tax- delinquent 
Penalties- delinquent 
Other property tax collections 
Fees in lieu of taxes 

Licenses and permits: 
Business licenses -current 
Business licenses prior year 
Penalties business licenses 
Building permits 
Electrical permits 
Plumbing permits 
Rental registration fees 
Gas permits 
Garage sale permits 
Miscellaneous permits 

Fines and forfeitures: 
Criminal fines 
Traffic fines 
Parking fines 
Victims assistance 

State shared and other revenue: 
Local government fund 
Merchants inventory tax 
Local option sales tax 
County municipal revenue fund 

CONTINUED 
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Final Budget 

$ 1,938,309 
100,000 

3,000 
50,000 

8,000 
105,000 
730,000 

2,934,309 

3,700,000 
15,000 

5,000 
100,000 

8,000 
8,000 

1,500 
1,000 
4,000 

3,842,500 

60,000 
200,000 

500 
35,000 

295,500 

270,000 
55,000 
13,000 
5,000 

343,000 

Actual 

$ 2,038,492 
86,983 
3,760 

18,159 
I 0,213 

127,640 
774,238 

-----

3,059,485 

4,577,334 
2,378 
7,729 

171,006 
20,053 
14,221 

1,600 
450 
745 

4,370 
-4,799,886 

70,070 
147,872 

IS 
42,923 .. 

260,880 

270,262 
71,566 
16,067 
4,910 

362,805 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Final Budget 
Revenue (Continued) 
Current services: 

Fire hydrant service fees 190,000 
Special fire protection fees 
Animal control fees 500 
Special services- SRO officers 70,000 
Duplication services 2,800 
Residential sanitation 554,904 

818,204 

Grants and Other: 
Miscellaneous 50,000 
Legal settlement 
Sale of plastic bags 4,000 
Donated revenue- Christmas in Cayce 2,100 
Donated revenue- Congaree Bluegrass Festival 
Admission and rents 400 
Recycling revenue 40,000 
LRADAC/AET agreements 4,000 
Grant revenue: 

FEMA grant 
SCPRT 150,000 
SCM IT grant 
State C-funds 5,000 
Other federal grants 
Other grants 

Utility Fund fees 322,579 
578,079 

Interest income 1,600 
Total revenue 8,813,192 

Other Financing Sources 
Installment purchase contract 466, I 04 
Proceeds from sale of assets 10,000 
Transfers in: 

Accommodations tax- General Fund portion 60,500 
Hospitality tax- General Fund pmtion 605,269 

Total other financing sources 1,141,873 

Total revenue and other financing sources $ 9,955,065 

78 

Aetna! 

191,531 
350 
210 

76,492 
4,838 

523,027 
796,448 

160,560 
150,000 

5,295 
1,850 
3,635 

452 
31,218 

261 

465,025 
30,000 
4,000 

330,000 
1,250 

15,000 
322,579 

1,521,125 

1,076 
10,801,705 

35,000 

99,172 
605,269 
739,441 

$ 11,541,146 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Departments 
Legislative: 

Salaries and wages 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Telephone 
Advertising 
Employee training 
Awards 
City election expense 
City events/special meetings 
Other 

Total legislative 
Less, overhead allocation Utility Fund 

Net legislative 

Administrative: 
Salaries and wages 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Publications 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Telephone 
Safety supplies 
Advettising expense 
Insurance- vehicles 
Insurance - general 
Employee training 
Professional services - human resources 
Service contracts 
Other 

Total administrative 
Less, overhead allocation Utility Fund 

Net administrative 

- CONTINUED-
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Final Budget 

79,500 
15,877 
1,000 

300 
2,882 

10,650 
2,000 

250 
5,930 
5,200 

1,500 
1,000 

440,755 
142,292 

5,500 
1,000 

100 
3,812 

11,243 
13,026 
8,500 
2,200 

2,000 
4,500 
6,154 
3,300 
1,200 
1,750 

--647,332 
~-J504,784) 

H2,548 

Actual 

79,500 
15,687 

730 
300 

1,685 
7,800 
2,062 

512 
5,609 
5,361 
2,565 

427 
672 

122,910 
~---'(~52£1~ 
~~--'-'70£1~ 

489,243 
149,001 

15,189 
1,000 

367 
5,989 

11,744 
2,951 
8,244 

597 
2,951 
2,202 
4,498 
5,166 
2,970 
3,781 
1,526 

704,994 
_(504,7!:!1_ 

200 210 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL F!IND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED 

Departments (Continued} 
Recorder's Comt: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Juror fees 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Employee training 
Telephone 
Insurance - general 
Special contracts 
Special department supplies 

Total recorder's comt 

Legal: 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Professional services 
Professional services - Prosecutor fees 
Codification of City code 

Total legal 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 

Net legal 

Information Technology {IT): 
Salaries and wages 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Publications 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Telephone 
Service contracts 
Equipment repairs 
Soft:ware and licenses 
Employee training 
Insurance - general 
Website maintenance 
Professional services 
Computer network equipment, non-capital 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 
Other 

Total IT 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 
Less, capital outlay 

Net IT 
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Final Budget 

106,550 
1,250 

38,643 
2,000 
3,500 
6,500 

226 
3,500 
1,550 
2,500 
1,750 

10,000 
1,500 

179 469 
-----------~·· 

75 
500 

55,000 
16,500 

__ ,I,~QQ_ 
73,575 

(29,355) 
44,220 

87,080 
26,800 

1,000 
140 
50 

300 
1,100 
2,122 
4,000 
1,000 

24,750 
4,900 
2,000 
3,500 
3,750 

10,809 
36,903 

500 
210,704 

(109,625) 
--";(3"i'6, 9.Q:ll_ 

64 176 

Actual 

107,305 
640 

33,265 
135 

3,116 
6,500 

75 
1,685 

720 
2,029 
1,898 
9,798 

817 
167,983 

500 
81,194 
16,896 
3,086 

---,;1 O>'CJ ,676 
(29,355)~ 
72,32L . 

90,805 
27,422 

1,064 
140 
20 

246 
1,334 
1,601 
3,341 
1,559 

23,969 
4,750 

637 
3,428 

986 
22,567 
36,903 

646 
221,418 

(109,625} 
(36,903) 
74 890 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

CONTINUED 

Depa•·hncnts (Continued) 
Finance and Accounting: 

Salaries and wages 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Memberships and dues 
Telephone 
Service contracts 
Insurance- vehicles 
Insurance- general 
Employee training 
Professional services 

Total finance and accounting 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 

Net finance and accounting 

Tax Collector: 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Professional services 

Total tax collector 

81 

Fiual]Judgct 

176,500 
61,504 

5,000 
760 
530 

2,600 
ll,980 

500 
2,000 

900 
25,500 

287,774 
-=<27-i24~;;Q~L 
__ _,6~,269 

50 
60 

21,000 
__ =:c2L1fo 

Actual 

181,158 
64,636 
4,161 

760 
725 
24 

2,029 
5,947 

2,233 

27,653 
289,326 

~--"<2-;-24 ,505) 
_ _()4,821 

60 
21,140 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Public Safety- administrative: 

Salaries and wages 
Reti1·ement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Electric and gas 
Telephone 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Building repairs 
Uniforms 
Janitorial supplies 
Medical supplies and physician expense 
Advertising 
Insurance -vehicles 
Insurance - general 
Employee training 
Community relations 
Special contracts 
Explorer Scouts 

Total public safety- administrative 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 

Net public safety- administrative 

Public Safety- police/detectives: 
Salaries and wages 
Ove1time 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Machinmy and equipment repairs 
Radio supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Insurance -vehicles 
Insurance- general 
Employee training 
Specialized department supplies 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 

Less, capital outlay 

Total public safety- police/detectives 

82 

Final Budget 

238,775 
96,094 

7,500 
3,000 

585 
2,000 
5,750 

45,000 
51,400 
10,000 
I 0,000 
1,200 

600 
9,775 

500 
1,000 
4,384 

600 
750 

5,125 
500 

494,538 
(51,420) 
443,118 

381,390 
14,000 

176,116 
650 

1,000 
32,000 
7,348 

300 
350 

4,800 
7,500 
8,607 
1,500 
3,000 

45,202 
683,763 
(26,287) 

657,476 

Actual 

237,505 
96,159 

7,803 
3,000 

570 
1,016 
2,346 

39,624 
63,737 
15,536 
5,914 

600 
323 

8,037 
414 

1,591 
5,245 

25 
381 

I 0,985 

500,8!1 
(51 ,420) 
449,391 

389,970 
14,044 

182,367 
290 
356 

24,726 
4,114 

301 
322 

4,142 
7,587 

10,329 
955 

2,588 
41,883 

683,974 
(26,287) 

657,687 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Public Safety police/traffic: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
SCMIT/DOJ vest grant expense 
Automotive operating 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Machinery and equipment repairs 
SLED equipment 
Small hand tools 
Radio supplies 
Safety supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Jail detention 
Laundry and linen service 
Insurance···· vehicles 
Insurance general 
Employee training 
Victim's assistance 
Victim's assistance grant 
Department of Juvenile Justice fees 
Specialized department supplies 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 

Total public safety- police/traffic 
Less, overhead allocation-- Utility Fund 
Less, capital outlay 

Net public safety- police/traffic 

83 

}'ina! Bmlget 

1,711,090 
160,000 
854,799 

1,150 
1,200 

10,000 
130,687 
20,000 

9,500 
2,185 

500 
500 

2,600 
40,000 

600 
100 

22,000 
41,000 
14,150 
53,556 

7,100 
28,000 

-~159,951 
3,210,668 

(31,877) 
_(139,829) 
~3,098,962 . 

1,647,309 
112,999 
812,425 

800 
759 

12,705 
127,922 
22,567 

7,706 
834 

477 
2,535 

32,315 
25 

26,184 
57,862 
14,282 
74,473 

4,205 
1,250 

16,591 
164,417 

3,140,642 
(3 1,877) 

(139,8E}_ 
2,968,936 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED -

Departments (Continued) 
Public Safety- fire: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Fire department ove1time- responses 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Memberships and dnes 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Machine1y and equipment repairs 
Building repairs 
Small hand tools 
Radio supplies 
Safety supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Janitorial supplies 
Air pack and fire extinguisher 
Insurance- vehicles 
Insurance - general 
Employee training 
Specialized depa1tment supplies 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 

Total public safety -fire 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 
Less, capital outlay 

Net public safety- fire 

84 

Final Budget 

640,925 
30,000 
30,000 

318,500 
885 

1,000 
50,095 

8,110 
3,500 

2,000 
500 

3,776 
16,250 

600 
6,460 
5,000 

12,036 
7,500 
3,500 

576,584 
1,717,221 

(6,529) 
(576,584) 

1,134,108 

Actual 

675,804 
37,498 
42,625 

309,944 
365 

36,339 
9,871 
3,252 
3,910 
1,279 

!58 
3,633 

11,531 
148 

3,270 
7,584 

18,016 
6,822 
3,800 

584,673 
1,760,522 

(6,529) 
(576,584) 

I, 177,409 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Public Safety- animal services: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Memberships and dues 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Electric and gas 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Machinery and equipment repairs 
Building repairs- dog pound 
Radio supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Janitorial supplies 
Advettising 
Insurance- vehicles 
Insurance- general 
Employee training 
Specialized depmtment supplies 
Animal control supplies 
Lexington County Animal Shelter 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 

Total public safety- animal services 
Less, capital outlay 

Net public safety- animal services 

85 

Final Budget 

65,000 
4,000 

34,710 
250 
400 
500 

6,000 
5,000 
7,000 
1,500 
1,500 

100 
1,038 

250 
1,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,500 
2,500 

10,000 
147,248 

(9,283) 
137 965 

Actual 

35,491 
1,026 

18,089 
10 
20 

6,961 
4,555 
3,752 

37 

1,224 
2,583 

213 
82 

50,000 
9,283 

133,326 
(9,283) 

124,043 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Final Budget 
Departments (Continue(!) 

Public Safety- parks: 
Salaries and wages 133,370 
Overtime 10,000 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 70,790 
Printing and office supplies 100 
Memberships and dues 80 
Automotive operating 2,500 
Electric and gas 500 
Maintenance and service contracts 240 
Machinety and equipment repairs 2,500 
Radio supplies 250 
Uniforms and clothing 3,500 
Janitorial supplies 250 
Insurance -vehicles 1,000 
Insurance - general 2,000 
Employee training 290 
Specialized depmtment supplies 1,000 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 68,100 

Total public safety- parks 296,470 
Less, capital outlay (61,1322 

Net public safety- parks 235,338 

Street Lighting: 
Electricity 232,000 
Blossom Street lighting project 4,410 

Total street lighting 236,410 
Less, capital outlay (4,410} 

Net Street lighting 232,000 

86 

Actual 

147,989 
12,284 
62,793 

25 
80 

826 

1,220 

24 

1,339 

95 
61,132 

287,807 
(61,1322 
226,675 

287,440 
4,410 

291,850 
(4,4102 

287,440 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Sanitation: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Postage 
Memberships and dues 
Travel expense 
Automotive operating 
Telephone 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Equipment repairs 
Waste disposal and tipping fees 
Small hand tools 
Safety supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Cleaning and sanitation supplies 
Medical supplies and physician expense 
Insurance - vehicles 
Insurance - general 
Employee training 
Special supply- garbage bags 
Special supply- recycle bins and leaf bags 
Machinety and equipment- capital outlay 

Total sanitation 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 
Less, capital outlay 

Net sanitation 

87 

Final Budget 

579,360 
750 

292,986 
700 

1,000 
420 
895 

161,329 
6,000 

900 
5,000 

250 
5,000 
5,228 
6,800 

450 
1,000 
9,000 
9,000 

440 
4,500 
3,000 

15,774 
I, I 09,782 

(9,174) 
(15,774) 

1,084,834 

Actual 

571,614 
70 

312,488 
385 

1,000 
330 
299 

115,0 I 5 
5,425 

930 
3,345 

2,566 
3,596 
6,847 

125 
1,167 
9,543 

10,542 
400 

3,083 
2,466 

15,774 
1,067,010 

(9,1 74) 
(15,774) 

1,042,062 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED 

Fi!jjd Budget 
Departments (Continne!l) 

Public Buildings: 
Salaries and wages 31,275 
Overtime 700 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 16,364 
Electric and gas 32,000 
Telephone 1,300 
Maintenance and service contracts 200 
Equipment repairs 1,500 
Building repairs 
Landscaping 
Paint supplies 100 
Electric/light supplies 500 
Uniforms 300 
Janitorial supplies 3,500 
Vehicle related 2,000 
Insurance- vehicle 500 
Insurance- general 1,300 
Copy machine/contract 5,325 
Capital Outlay: 

Machine1y and equipment 28,796 
City Hall renovations 250,000 
Parks and Sanitation building 170,000 
Public Safety building renovations 
Other 100 

Total public buildings 545,760 
Less, overhead allocation Utility Fund (34,218) 
Less, capital outlay (294,037} 

Net public buildings 217,505 

Community Relations: 
Central Midlands Council of Governments 9,398 
Central Midlands Regional Transportation Association 25,080 
Municipal Association of SC 5,500 
Lexington County Municipal Association 500 
River Alliance 10,000 
Professional services 17,400 
Christmas decorations and citizen's drop-in 4,400 
Employee/family Christmas party 2,800 
Community programs 6,500 
City newsletter 14,000 
Cayce centennial 
Christmas in Cayce festival 23,600 
Congaree Bluegrass festival 

Total community relations 119,178 

88 

Actual 

32,992 
102 

18,065 
26,816 

516 
10,844 

1,054 
25,568 

2,400 
198 
569 
168 

3,277 
230 
612 

1,125 
1,694 

28,915 
263,476 

1,540 
225 

2 562 
422,948 
(34,218) 

(294,037) 
94,693 

9,396 
21,720 

5,402 

10,000 
18,775 
5,276 
2,677 
3,552 

15,808 
19 

16,618 
37,286 

146,529 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Final Budget 
Departments (Continued) 

Planning and Development: 
Salaries and wages 270,525 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 98,385 
Printing and office supplies 2,250 
Postage 282 
Memberships and dues 1,190 
Travel 3,825 
Automotive operating 2,600 
Telephone 5,900 
Building repairs 4,500 
Knoxx Abbott road intersection 300,000 
Stormwater Study 58,800 
Small hand tools 500 
Uniforms 300 
Advettising 1,000 
Insurance- vehicles 500 
Insurance- general 2,600 
Employee training 3,200 
NPDES phase II project 40,000 
Professional services- other 12,300 
Special contract- copier 2,000 
Special department supplies 5,620 
Fa9ade grant program 
Healthy initiative- SC grant 

Total planning and development 816,277 
Less, capital outlay (358,800) 

Net planning and development 457,477 

Museum: 
Salaries and wages 99,280 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 35,248 
Printing and office supplies 600 
Postage 150 
Memberships and dues 200 
Travel 500 
Electric and gas 7,300 
Telephone 4,000 
Service contracts 1,200 
Equipment repairs 500 
Building repairs 9,912 
Insurance- general 2,000 
Capital outlay 62,788 

Total museum 223,678 
Less, capital outlay (62,788) 

Net museum 160,890 

89 

Actual 

287,316 
102,540 

4,713 
1,061 
1,971 
1,461 
1,592 
6,260 

220 
300,000 

58,800 
53 

717 
612 

2,733 
1,195 

40,608 
28,542 

1,677 
3,548 

16,700 
4,611 

866,930 
(358,800) 
508,130 

99,080 
33,908 

125 
150 

24 
6,219 
4,567 

737 

12,434 
2,027 

62,788 
222,059 
(62,788) 
159,271 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Parks: 

Salaries and wages 
Ovmihne 
Retirement, insurance and other benetlts 
Memberships and dues 
Postage 
Telephone 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Electric and gas 
Service contracts 
Software and licenses 
Machine1y and equipment repairs 
Building repairs 
Small hand tools 
Printing and office supplies 
Signs and sign supplies 
Safety supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Cleaning supplies 
Chemicals 
Medical supplies and physician expense 
Insurance vehicles 
Insurance- general 
Employee training 
Specialized depat1ment supplies 
Beautification board 
Park expenses 
Capital Outlay: 

Riverbank Park pr«iects 
Machinery and equipment 

Total parks 
Less, capital outlay 

Net parks 

90 

]?i_nal Bmlget 

347,365 
1,500 

173,840 
600 
140 

4,600 
851 

30,000 
20,000 
4,500 

500 
10,089 
3,256 
2,500 

400 
1,000 
5,287 
5,800 
2,200 

950 
850 

7,500 
8,670 
1,575 
4,104 

750 
5,000 

!77,340 
~~c;;3.iJ&4'l~~w• 

851,816 
(207,989) 
643,827 

Actual 

352,655 
1,848 

158,191 
520 
140 

4,300 
299 

19,468 
11,137 
3,212 

9,167 
2,723 
2,152 

249 
770 

4,994 
5,274 
1,474 

712 
904 

8,565 
9,199 

530 
3,772 

405 
4,831 

177,340 
30,649 

815,480 
ww(?iJ? ,989) 

§()7,491 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Departments (Continued) 
Garage: 

Salaries and wages 
Overtime 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 
Printing and office supplies 
Travel 
Automotive operating 
Electric and gas 
Telephone 
Maintenance and service contracts 
Machinery and equipment repairs 
Building repairs 
Small hand tools 
Electrical supplies 
Uniforms and clothing 
Insurance- vehicles 
Insurance- general 
Employee training 
Specialized department supplies 
Machinery and equipment- capital outlay 

Total garage 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund 

Net garage 

91 

Final Bmlget 

223,475 
500 

99,957 
400 

1,500 
6,500 
6,500 
3,000 
4,500 
5,000 
6,127 
5,069 

100 
2,300 
1,000 
3,500 
2,000 
8,000 

379,428 
(100,992) 
278 436 

Actual 

217,830 

92,398 
328 

1,420 
6,541 
6,060 
3,685 
5,308 
4,761 
2,273 
5,147 

57 
1,539 
1,224 
3,656 

936 
8,418 

361,581 
(100,992) 
260,589 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Final Bmlget 
Departments (Continued) 

Non-depmtmental and Suppm1 Services: 
Retiree insurance expense 23,823 
GASB 45-0PEB 130,490 

Total non-depmtmental and suppot1 services 154,313 
Less, overhead allocation -Utility Fund ( 43,305) 

Net non-depm1mental and suppot1 services 111,008 

Debt Service: 
Note and lease payments 227,877 
Interest and fiscal agent charges 10,286 

Total debt service 238,163 
Less, overhead allocation- Utility Fund (79,185) 

Net debt services 158,978 

Capital Outlay 1,793,816 

Total expenditures $ 11,553,345 

92 

Actual 

43,573 

43,573 
(43,305) 

268 

224,248 
3,288 

227,536 
(79, 185) 
148,351 

1,793,816 

$ 11,324,664 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
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Aceom-

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative total figures at June 30, 2015) 

ABC Law 
modations Hospitality Community Permit Ho-me Enforcement 

Tax Tax Deve1oement Fund Grant Grant Fund 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Unrestricted $ -$ $ - $ $ -$ 
Restricted 59,314 374,497 2,630 46,705 11,563 13,093 

Hospitality taxes receivable 85,038 - -
Other receivables - -

Total assets $ 459,535 $ 13,093 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ -$ 7,417 $ - $ --- $ -$ -
Due to other funds - - -

Total liabilities 7,417 

Fund balance: 
Restricted for: 

Tourism and conununity 
development 59,314 452,!!8 2,630 11,563 

ABC permit activities - 48,455 -
Law enforcement - - 13.093 

Total restricted 452,118 48,455 13 093 

Assigned for: 
~useurairaprovernent - - -

Total fund balances 59,314 2,630 1 1.563 

Total liabilities and fund balances$ 59,314 $ 459,535 $ 2,630 $ 48,455 $ 11,563 $ 13,093 

Museum Totals 
Fund 2016 20!5 

$ 83,801 $ 83,801 $ 
- 507,802 

85,038 
1,750 

$ 83,801 $ 678,391 

$ - $ 7,417 $ 
- 104,728 

7 417 __!2_1,_ 728 

525,625 347,749 
48,455 31,205 
13,093 12,472 

587.173 391,426 

83,801 83,801 
83,801 475,227 

$ 83,801 $ 678,391 $ 579,955 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SPECIAL REVENlJE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENlJE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative total figures year ended June 30, 2015) 

A<:com- ABC Law 
modations Hospitality Community Permit Home Enforcement Museum Totals 

__ J:_l!.L__ Tax Develo2ment Fund Grant Grant Fund Fund 2016 2015 

Revenue 
Accommodations and 

hospitality taxes $ 103,350 $ 965,076 $ $ $ $ $ $! ,068,426 $ 787,971 
Federal grants 621 621 3,258 
State grants 4,016 
State shared revenue 17,250 17,250 17,401 

Total revenue 103 350 17,250 621 1,086,297 812,646 

\0 
Expenditures ..,. Planning and community 

development: 
Tourism related 37,901 148,199 186,100 104,746 
Less, capital outlay (85,381} {85.381) 

Net tourism related 37,901 62,818 100,719 104,746 
Housing 9 9 24,742 
Capital outlay 85.381 85.381 

Total expenditures 37 901 148 199 186,109 129.488 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenditures 65,499 816,877 17,250 (9): 621 900,188 683,158 

Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 
Transfers in (out) {66.324} {638,117} {704,441} (423,300) 

Net change in fund balances {875} 178 760 17J50 (9} 195,747 259,858 
Fund balances, beginning of 

60,189 273,358 2,630 3 11,572 83,801 year 475:2~7 215.369 

Fund balances, end of year $ 59,314 $ 18 $ 2,630 $ 48,455 $ 11,563 $ 13,093 $ 83,801 $ 670,974 s 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 



DEBT SERVICE FUND 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative amounts for June 30, 2015) 

Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Property taxes receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities: 

Accrued interest payable 

Fund balance: 
Restricted for debt service 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Current Year ___ ...... ~~-~-~-----

$ 1,000,067 

$ 1,000,067 

$ 3,303 

95 

Prior Year 

$ 1,137,102 
194 

$ 1,137,296 

3,303 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative figures year ended June 30, 2015) 

CmTent Year Prior Year 
Revenue 

Current prope1iy taxes $ 1,008,560 $ 840,763 
State shared revenue 45,939 26,563 
Interest on investments 125 111 

Total revenue 1,054,624 867,437 

Expenditures 
Debt Service: 
Principal 458,144 440,224 
Interest and fiscal charges 33,709 45,595 

Total expenditures 491,853 485,819 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 562,771 381,618 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer (out) to Capital Projects Fund (700,000) 

Net change in fund balance (137,229) 381,618 

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,133,993 752,375 

Fund balance, end of year $ 996,764 $ 1,133,993 

96 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative figures at June 30, 2015) 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities: 

Construction and retainage payable 

Fund balance: 
Restricted for redevelopment plan 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Current Year Prior Year 

$ 789,311 $ 421,440 
----- -~-},000 
$ 

$ 54,066 $ 

97 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
(With comparative figures year ended June 30, 2015) 

Current Year Prior Year 
Revenue 

State grants $ 137,043 $ 100,000 
Local grants 10,000 

Total revenue 137,043 110,000 

Expenditures 
Capital outlay: 

Park 444,585 382,359 
Infrastructure 85,615 60,899 

Other: 
Infrastructure 38 

Total expenditures 530,238 443,258 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (393,195) (333,258) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer in from Debt Service Fund 700,000 
Transfer in from Hospitality Tax Fund 7,000 

Net change in fund balance 306,805 (326,258) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 428,440 754,698 

Fund balance, end of year $ 735,245 $ 428,440 

98 
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WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative figures at June 30, 2015) 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year 
Assets and Deferred Outflows Liabilities~ Deferred Inflows and Net Position 

Current assets: Current liabilities: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,372.567 $ 2.689,946 Accounts payable '$ 65,491 $ 47,229 
Receivables: Accrued salaries and wages 224,507 48,117 

Water and sewer accounts (net of Accrued compensated absences ~current portion 92.572 73.126 
allowance for doubtful accounts.. Installment purchase contract payable current portion 144,902 -
$35,000 in 2016 and 2015) 2,541,637 2,344,763 Construction contracts payable - 5,128 

Other accounts 480.747 1.523,441 Retainagc payable - 60,508 
Inventories 159:989 201521 Other liahnities 1.392 1.006 

T otai current assets 6.554,940 6,759,671 Due to other funds (internal balances) 93,058 149.532 
Customer deposit$ and prepayments 40.785 45.080 

662.707 429.726 
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Current restricted assets: Accrued interest payable 156.423 434.213 

"" Cash and cash equivak'llts: Contract liability- Springdale 52,614 54,987 

"" Employee benefit accounts 5,252 4,002 SRF and bonds payable- current portion 2.430,339 2.568,836 
Cayce wastewater facilities replacement & Construction contracts and payable 791.018 258,149 

renewal fund 1.083.469 550.000 Total current liabiHtics payable from restricted assets 3.430.394 3,316,185 
Bond and interest redemption 1.159.595 3,995,124 Total current liabilities 4,093,101 3,745,911 
Project and construction funds 5,978.881 7.649.453 

Total current restricted assets 8,??7,197 12.198.579 Long-term liabilities; 
Accrued compensated absences 30.257 38.6ll 

Capital assets: Unearned revenue- future capacity charges 3.190 238.690 
Land and rights--of-way 330.568 330.568 Unearned revenue- contract obligation credit 1,401.672 1,675,836 
Equipment 6.741.067 5,799,564 Installment purchase contract payable 362.630 
Utility pJants in service 151.485,545 149,316,029 SRF loans payable 30.409,091 32,166.654 
Construction In process 5,105,674 1.450.182 Revenue bonds payable ($12.275.000 +/-bonds 

163.662.854 156.896.343 premium/discount net of amortization) 12,848,848 13.479,263 
Less. accumulated depreciation [39.142,854) (35.077,595) Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation 794.723 722.664 

Net capital assets 124.520.000 121.818.748 Net pensions liability 4.663,806 
Totallong~term Habilitics 52.985,524 

Other asset.<:: Total liabilities 56.731.435 
Cost of purchased water/sewer rights 803,883 803.883 
Less. accumulated amortization (380.985) (321.886) Deferred inflows of resources; 

Net other asset~ 422.898 481,997 Deferred pension related inflows 233.173 
Total dderred inflows of resources 233.173 

Total assets 
Net position: 

Deferred outflows of :resources: Net investment in capital assets 78,314.467 77.071.693 
Deferred outflows related to pension 790,609 418,770 Restricted for debt and capital projects 6,929,438 11,155.377 
Losses on bond refundtngs: 1.266.428 394.231 Restricted for pension 790,609 418,770 
Less. accumulated amortization (384.350) (279.172) Unrcstrict<-d (deficit) (87.099) (3.977.644) 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1.672.687 533,829 Total net position 85.947.415 84.668.196 
Total assets lllld deferred outflows $ 141.397,722 $ 141,792,824 Total liabilities, deferred in±1ows and net position $ 14!.397,722 $ 141.792.824 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative figures year ended June 30, 20 15) 

Current Year Prior Year 
Operating Revenue (pledged as security for loans and revenue bonds) 

Water: 
Sales $ 5,129,429 $ 4,913,144 
Connection fees 121,848 78,897 

Sewer: 
Service charges 10,140,422 8,898,796 
Connection fees 3,066 5,633 

Septage/grease services: 
Sales and permits 885,674 472,451 
Pretreatment set-up fees 99,300 89,460 

Reconnection fees 47,762 37,605 
Penalties 191,671 181,935 
Grant revenue 18,563 
Miscellaneous income 227,715 293,173 

Total operating revenue 16,865,450 14,971,094 

Operating Expenses 
Administrative 567,592 456,049 
Utility billing 698,083 593,048 
Water treatment plant 1,414,384 1,377,415 
Water distribution and maintenance 1,356,168 1,250,139 
Wastewater treatment plant 3,026,918 2,386,593 
Sewer collection and outfall lines I ,454,361 1,269,759 
Septage and grease receiving station 371,645 196,661 
Non-departmental and supp011 services 1,600,000 1,629,953 
Depreciation and amortization expense 4,414,469 4,333,569 

Total operating expenses 14,903,620 13,493,186 

Operating income 1,961,830 1,477,908 

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 
Interest income 10,264 II ,223 
Gains (losses) from sale, disposal of capital assets 4,423 23,227 
Bond issue costs (345,684) 
Interest expense (1,195,051) (I ,346, 158) 
Ammtization of bond refinancing losses (105,178} (28,765} 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (I ,631 ,226} (I ,340,4732 

Income before contributions 330,604 137,435 

Capital Contributions 
Capacity charges and other capital contributions 1,791,274 1,604,279 
Return of disputed contributed capital (842,659} 

948,615 1,604,279 

Change in net position 1,279,219 1,741,714 
Net position, beginning of year 84,668,196 82,926,482 
Net position, end of year $ 85,947,415 $ 84,668,196 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative actual figures year ended June 30, 2015) 

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 
Departments 

Administrative: 
Salaries and wages $ 256,790 $ 267,502 $ (10,712) $ 
Overtime 1,000 29 971 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 91,120 89,806 1,314 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 4,810 6,872 (2,062) 
Printing and office supplies 5,000 4,824 176 
Postage 6,000 6,000 
Memberships and dues 665 639 26 
Travel 3,540 2,299 1,241 
Automotive operating expenses 10,000 4,684 5,316 
Telephone 7,500 4,906 2,594 
Maintenance and service contracts 18,972 11,028 7,944 
Machinery and equipment repairs 900 267 633 
Safety supplies 3,500 2,998 502 
Uniforms and clothing 550 334 216 
Doctor and medical expenses 4,100 2,355 1,745 
Advertising 1,000 1,000 
Insurance - vehicle 2,000 I,469 531 
Insurance - general 5,200 2,123 3,077 
Employee training- continuing education 3,035 800 2,235 
Professional services 40,000 42,783 (2,783) 
Professional services -legal 55,000 20,619 34,381 
Professional services- engineering 25,000 29,526 (4,526) 
Professional services - consultant fees 50,000 53,811 (3,811) 
Special contracts- CSX 
Special contracts- copier 2,675 1,737 938 
Special contracts- collection expense 
Fiscal agent fees 8,000 4,741 3,259 
Machines and equipment -non-capital 3 725 5,440 (1,715) 

610,082 567,592 42,490 

-CONTINUED-
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Prior Year 
Actual 

192,591 

76,345 

2,651 
5,375 

290 
2,029 
2,752 
5,697 

15,179 

2,388 
205 

2,296 
739 

1,698 
1,977 
1,282 

39,218 
13,846 
29,245 
47,710 

100 
2,104 

142 
7,112 
3,078 

456,049 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive Prior Year 

Budget Actual (Negative} Actual 
Departments 

Utility Billing: 
Salaries and wages 329,905 322,526 7,379 264,972 
Overtime 16,000 15,962 38 15,924 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 153,985 161,747 (7,762) 129,550 
Printing and office supplies 5,070 12,093 (7,023) 3,266 
Postage 49,000 45,200 3,800 38,900 
Memberships and dues 1,465 !55 1,310 430 
Travel 1,560 473 1,087 75 
Automotive operating expenses 17,671 10,202 7,469 12,417 
Telephone 8,977 5,928 3,049 5,510 
Maintenance and service contracts 29,250 15,221 14,029 18,458 
Equipment repairs 9 
Machinery and equipment repairs 1,200 I 0,069 (8,869) 5,476 
Hand tools and supplies 2,000 2,099 (99) 72 
Safety supplies 1,815 752 1,063 397 
Uniforms and clothing 1,750 1,671 79 1,208 
General insurance (property and contents) 2,500 2,814 (314) 1,943 
Insurance - general 5,000 5,094 (94) 4,141 
Employee training- continuing education 6,500 1,291 5,209 700 
Special contracts- collection expense 85,000 84,724 276 89,600 
Machines and equipment- non-capital 62 (62} 

718,648 698,083 20,565 593,048 

Water Treatment Plant: 
Salaries and wages 438,340 462,597 (24,257) 407,214 
Ove1time 41,377 43,144 (1,767) 45,129 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 195,911 229,247 (33,336) 196,628 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) II ,884 (11,884) 
Printing and office supplies 650 618 32 634 
Postage 275 275 318 
Permit fees 24,000 23,269 731 23,315 
Memberships and dues 857 850 7 884 
Travel 2,600 938 1,662 2,728 
Automotive operating expense 4,000 4,465 (465) 3,803 
Electric and gas 345,000 302,896 42,104 336,788 
Telephone 6,933 7,999 (1,066) 7,632 
Lubrication supplies 950 1,040 (90) 820 
Maintenance and service contracts 52,472 49,464 3,008 48,508 
MachineJy and equipment repairs 65,000 18,910 46,090 58,069 
Building repairs 6,500 4,742 1,758 53 
Small hand tools 900 824 76 826 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive Prior Year 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 
Departments 

Water Treatment Plant (continued): 
Electrical and lighting supplies 600 455 145 374 
Safety supplies 1,600 1,704 (104) 1,956 
Uniforms and clothing 2,400 2,484 (84) 2,194 
Cleaning and sanitation supplies 600 411 189 549 
Chemicals 229,000 185,146 43,854 171,542 
Laboratmy supplies 29,000 28,50 I 499 23,827 
Insurance- vehicle 1,560 2,324 (764) 1,214 
Insurance- general 17,432 19,225 (1,793) 17,538 
Employee training 2,750 1,125 1,625 1,851 
Consultant lab tests 8,500 8,980 (480) 7,721 
Machines & equipment -non-capital 159,853 867 158,986 15,300 

1,639,060 1,414,384 224,676 1,377,415 

Water Distribution and Maintenance: 
Salaries and wages 510,035 494,750 15,285 439,934 
Overtime 46,067 48,196 (2,129) 43,175 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 240,061 250,710 (I 0,649) 215,442 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 12,710 (12,710) 
Printing and office supplies 2,500 2,709 (209) 2,229 
Memberships and dues 1,374 1,137 237 225 
Travel 4,080 3,920 160 1,998 
Automotive operating expense 50,000 42,114 7,886 47,005 
Electricity and gas 50,000 51,968 (1,968) 53,632 
Telephone 12,000 8,512 3,488 7,389 
Maintenance and service contracts 210,185 210,068 117 209,053 
Machine1y and equipment repairs 25,000 26,372 (1,372) 15,000 
Building repairs 500 397 103 189 
Small hand tools 8,000 7,329 671 5,892 
Masonry supplies 4,500 5,564 (1,064) 2,997 
Asphalt supplies 45,000 35,405 9,595 43,700 
Radio supplies 250 250 
Safety supplies 7,000 6,939 61 5,272 
Uniforms and clothing 6,500 7,580 (1,080) 5,866 
Chemicals 736 736 
Utility repair supplies and meters 65,000 92,367 (27,367) 114,505 
Insurance- vehicle 6,500 8,932 (2,432) 6,802 
Insurance- general 9,700 12,678 (2,978) 10,350 
Employee training 9,034 4,811 4,223 9,633 
Water distribution equipment meters 15,000 15,016 (16) 5,885 
Machines & equipment - non-capital 15,500 5,984 9,516 3,966 

1,344,522 I ,356,168 (11,646) 1,250,139 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive Prim· Year 

Budget Actual (Negative} Actual 
Departments 

Wastewater Treatment Plant: 
Salaries and wages 574,150 584,128 (9,978) 502,061 
Ovettime 20,000 33,825 (13,825) 17,026 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 242,845 289,699 ( 46,854) 237,356 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 6,615 15,004 (8,389) 
Printing and office supplies 688 999 (311) 677 
Postage 270 270 270 
Permit fees - DHEC 3,250 3,045 205 3,170 
Memberships and dues 1,500 1,070 430 625 
Travel 5,000 1,502 3,498 2,655 
Automotive operating expense 37,000 41,282 (4,282) 41,659 
Electric and gas 939,000 931,401 7,599 788,583 
Telephone 27,700 24,933 2,767 22,305 
Lubrication supplies 3,000 1,405 1,595 1,392 
Maintenance and service contracts 135,301 118,579 16,722 91,023 
Machinery and equipment repairs 172,818 295,240 (122,422) 139,760 
Building repairs 500 925 (425) 264 
Sludge disposal fees 200,000 311,942 (111,942) 216,023 
Small hand tools 2,000 2,036 (36) I, 191 
Electrical and lighting supplies 2,000 1,281 719 2,080 
Radio supplies 200 200 
Safety supplies 6,005 30,163 (24,158) 6,154 
Uniforms and clothing 5,600 6,394 (794) 5,531 
Cleaning and sanitation supplies 1,000 587 413 864 
Water 430,000 36 429,964 
Chemicals 152,405 173,583 (21,178) 145,671 
Laborat01y supplies 35,900 37,044 (1, 144) 27,496 
Insurance 6,900 9,298 (2,398) 6,797 
Insurance- general 86,000 86,236 (236) 82,478 
Employee training 6,000 2,375 3,625 3,410 
Professional services- lab 25,100 21,357 3,743 20,195 
Professional fees 1,500 (I ,500) 
Machines and equipment- non-capital 57,000 (221} 57,221 19,877 

3,185,747 3,026,918 158,829 2,386,593 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive Priot· Year 

Budget Actual (Negative} Actual .... 
DeJJartments 

Sewer Collection and Outfall Lines: safadesand wages -- 545,470 531,245 14,225 460,787 
Ovettime 55,000 67,804 (12,804) 56,130 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 258,366 280,314 (21,948) 226,279 
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 13,648 ( 13,648) 
Memberships and dues 1,390 1,800 (410) 2,495 
Travel 3,140 2,330 810 5,197 
Automotive operating expense 60,000 51,122 8,878 62,058 
Electricity and gas 115,000 137,434 (22,434) 117,221 
Telephone 40,000 32,959 7,041 28,985 
Lubrication supplies 300 300 279 
Maintenance and service contracts 17,878 9,140 8,738 8,379 
Machinery and equipment repairs 159,606 150,887 8,719 83,338 
Small hand tools 8,000 7,296 704 4,921 
Cement and masomy materials 1,500 3,104 (1,604) 700 
Asphalt and grading supplies 25,000 I 0,933 14,067 26,175 
Radio supplies 250 250 
Safety supplies 7,500 7,413 87 5,788 
Uniforms and clothing 6,200 7,580 (1,380) 6,071 
Cleaning and sanitation supplies 500 365 135 621 
Chemicals 18,687 7,358 11,329 13,880 
Utility repair supplies 86,688 85,611 1,077 115,653 
Transmission line operations and maintenance 5,000 5,000 
Insurance- vehicle 8,850 12,600 (3,750) 
Insurance- general 15,000 16,457 (I ,457) 8,260 
Employee training 4,418 3,590 828 13,726 
Professional services 9,278 
Machines & equipment 29,500 13,371 16,129 13,538 
K Avenue sewer line replacement 35,000 35,000 

1,508,243 53,882 1,269,759 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

-CONTINUED-

Current Year 
Variance 
Positive Prior Year 

Budget Actual (Negative} Actual 
Departments 

SeJ)tage and Grease Receiving Station: 
Salaries and wages 133,460 142,283 (8,823) 93,215 
Overtime 3,000 8,070 (5,070) 1,833 
Retirement, insurance and other benefits 47,901 56,721 (8,820) 29,172 
Electricity and gas 4,000 2,164 1,836 2,494 
Telephone 3,280 1,939 1,341 1,792 
Printing and office supplies 1,000 946 54 657 
Postage 600 600 300 
Memberships and dues 315 160 !55 185 
Travel 1,829 678 I, 151 482 
Auto operating 5,000 1,688 3,312 1,408 
Chemicals 78,000 46,204 31,796 17,730 
Sludge disposal fees 98,000 58,061 39,939 22,738 
Lubrications 700 117 583 222 
Hand tools and supplies 2,000 2,614 (614) 1,377 
Electric/light supplies 500 275 225 70 
Safety program and supplies 1,100 2,026 (926) 315 
Uniforms and clothing 2,000 1,095 905 838 
Janitorial supplies 500 423 77 21 
Employee training 925 1,020 (95) 286 
Professional services- lab testing 8,214 15,223 (7,009) 3,242 
Professional fees - other 750 750 
Insurance -vehicle 1,000 612 388 486 
Insurance - general 2,400 3,119 (719) 1,499 
Building repairs 1,000 28 972 372 
Equipment repairs 6,190 25,579 (19,389) 14,707 
Machine and service contracts 1,440 1,440 
Machines & equipment- non-capital 1,220 

405,104 371,645 33 459 196,661 

Non-deJ)artmental and sugport services: 
Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) exp. 29,953 
O&M indirect costs 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000 
Capital improvement/project reserve 100,000 100,000 
Capital equipment reserve 100,000 100,000 

1,800,000 1,600,000 200,000 1,629,953 

Depreciation 550,000 4,355,371 (3,805,371) 4,243,409 
Amortization 16,869 (16,869} 90,160 

550,000 4,372,240 (3,822,240) 4,333 569 

Total operating expenses $ 11,761,406 $ 14,861,391 $ (3,099,985) $ 13,493,186 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Balance, Balance, 
Jnue 30, June 30, 

2015 Additions Deletions 2016 
-····---.. -·--

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Firemen's fimd $ 105,870 $ 52,368 $ (36,506) $ 121,732 
Police fw1d 56,26~ 14,070 (4,087) 66,248 

Total assets $ 162,135 $ (40,593) $ 187,980 

Liabilities 
Amounts due to others: 

Firemen's fund $ 105,870 $ 52,368 $ (36,506) $ 121,932 
Police fund 56,265 14,070 (4,087) 66,248 

·~ -~·••-•we 

Total liabilities $ 162,135 $ (40,593) $ 187,980 
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATIONS OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances (which includes land, buildings, betterments, 
and equipment owned by the City) related to Governmental-type funds. Accordingly, the capital 
assets reported in Proprietary-type funds (Enterprise Fund) are excluded from these amounts. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATIONS OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

General capital assets and construction-in-progress, June 30, 2015 

Add, expenditures by General Fund and Capital Projects Fund: 
Land, buildings, other improvements, furniture and equipment 

Deduct, surplus sales and other deletions by General Fund: 
Land, building, furniture and equipment 

General capital assets and construction-in-prog1·ess, June 30,2016 
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$ 22,151,171 

2,410,978 

-~6,417) 

$ 24,005,732 



SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

This schedule is used to account for the changes in long-term debt of the City including general 
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and installment debt. Long-term liability amounts of 
compensated absences are excluded from this schedule. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH C..i\ROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF BONDS, NOTES, M'D OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT OUTSTANDING 

YE . .i\RENDED JUNE 30,2016 

&nds and Notes DebtSeniee 
Outstanding Requirements 

Due Interest Outstanding Long--Term June 30, 1'\ext Fiscal Year 
DakS Rates Julv I~ 2615 Borrowing Matured Paid 2016 PrinciJ!!l Interest 

General LongM Term ~bt 
Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond, Series 2002 2003~2017 4,03% $ 949,858 $ $ 458,144 $ (458,144) $ 491,714 $ 476.793 $ 15,060 

lnstallment purchase contracts, monthly payments of principal and interest v<trious l.SS%-4.95% 224.242 224242 (224242) 

Total generallong~tenn debt $ ],174.100 $ - $ 6823&6 $ (682,386) $ 49L714 $ 476.793 $ 15,060 

\Yater and Sewer Utility Fund Debt 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan. Series 2002, interest and principal 

- payable quarterly 2003-2023 2.25% $ 811,774 $ s 109,889 $ (109,&89) $ 701.885 $ 90,159 $ 15.035 

0 

"" Clean Watct State Revolving Fund Loan, Series 2009. interest a.-'ld principal 
payable quarterly 2009-2032 2.25% 29,279,642 1.456369 (1,456369) 27.823,273 !,489,414 613,5!6 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loon, Series 2015. interest and principal 
payable quarterly 2015-2035 2.00% 3.734,073 114,802 (114,802) 3.619.271 155,765 7!,222 

Water and Sev.·er System Revenue Bonds. Series 2016A&B. interest payable 
semi~annually, principal payable annually 2016-2027 3.(){1%-4.00% 12.970.000 12.970,000 695,000 265372 

Installment purchase contracts, monthly pa)ments of principal and interest 2015-2019 1.47"/o 639.000 119,219 (119,219) 144.902 5.973 

Total water and sewer utility fund debt $33,825.489 $13,609,000 $1,800279 $(1,800,279) $ 45.621.961 $2.575.240 $ 97U18 



VICTIM'S RIGHTS ASSISTANCE 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF COURT FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016 

Court Fines and Assessments 
Court fines and assessments collected 
Comi fines and assessments remitted to State Treasurer 

Total court fines and assessments retained by the City 

Surcharges and Assessments retained by City 
Total surcharges collected 
Total assessments 

Total surcharges and assessments retained by City 

Funds Allocated to Victims Services 
Can·yover funds from prior year 
Surcharges and assessments retained 
Expenditures for victims services 

Total unexpended victims rights assistance funds 
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$ 610,924 
(350,044) 

$ 260,880 

$ 28,051 
-~14,~71____ 

$ 42,923 

$ 52,783 
42,923 

(74,473) 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

Financial Trends- These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time .......................... 111-117 

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 
affecting the City's ability to generate its property tax revenue ........................................... 118-121 

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the 
future. 122-126 

Demographic and Economic Information -These schedules offer demographic and economic 
indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City's financial 
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other govemments. 127-130 

Operating Information- These schedules contain information about the City's operations and 
resources to help the reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services 
the City provides and the activities it performs ...................................................................... 131-132 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOCTH CAROLINA 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 20ll 2010 2009 2008 2007 
GQvernmenta1 Activities 

Net investment in capital 
assets $ 13.078.235 s 11.187,075 $ 4.809.369 $ 4.317.009 $ 3.847.244 s 3.542.010 $ 4.797.026 s 4.607.6% $ 5.651.516 $ 5,093,684 

Restricted 4.089.583 2.900.003 2,329.686 1.688.336 1.630.222 !.2!5.170 1,548.803 1.421.780 268.554 300.873 
Unrestricted (deficit) (6.446.015) (5.968,176) (1 0.307,729) (1.149.730) (858,419) (985.075) (493.433) (190.606) (40.898) (589.783) 
Total governmental 

activities net position $ 10,721.803 s 8.118,902 $ (3.168.674) $ 4.855,615 $ 4.619.047 $ 3,772.105 $ 5.852.396 $ 5.838.870 $ 5.879.172 $ 4.804,774 

Business-type Activities 
Net investment in capital 

assets s 78.314.467 $ 79.196.265 s 73.208.919 $ 67.123.141 $ 66.405.669 $ 58.750.650 s 43.931.424 $ 35.843.888 $ 32.372.962 $ 34.549.212 
Restricted 7,220.047 8.302.471 11.443,354 12.94!.313 12.186.134 8300.588 5,872.577 1.598.531 1.575,172 1.337.240 
Unrestricted (deficit) (87,099) (2.830.540) (1.725.791) 6.271.966 3.377.568 4,663.182 7.903.032 9,766.255 10,206.822 5.741.910 
Total business type 

activities net position $ 85.947.415 $ 84.668.196 $ 82.926.482 $ 86.336.420 $ 81.969.371 $ 71.714.420 $ 57.707.033 $ 47.208.674 $ 44.154,956 $ 41,628.362 

Primary Government 
Net investment in capital 

assets $ 91.392.702 $ 90.383.340 $ 78,018.288 $ 71.440.150 $ 70.252.913 $ 62.292.660 $ 48,728.450 s 40.451,584 $ 38.024.478 $ 39.642.896 
Restricted 11.809.630 11.202.474 13.773.040 14.629.649 13.816.356 9.515.758 7A21,380 3,020.311 1.843,726 1.638.113 
Unrestricted (deficit) (6.533.114) (8,798. 716) (12.033,520) 5.122.236 3.678,107 7.409.599 9.575.649 10.165.924 5.152.127 

Total primary government 
net position $ 96.669.218 $ 92,787.098 $ 79.757.808 $ 91.192.035 $ 86.588.418 $ 75,486,525 $ 63.559.429 $ 53.047,544 $ 50.034.128 $ 46.433.136 

Note: GASB 65 was implemented for the fiscal year ended 6/30/14. GASB 68 was implemented for fiscal year ended 6130115 and restatements 
were posted effective 6/30/14. Effects of implementing these statements are not reflected in fiscal years prior to 2014. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION <6l 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Expenses 
Governmental activities:<J) 

General government $ 481,829 $ 434.485 $ 340.913 $ 255.392 $ 224.912 $ 497.316 $ 656.284 $ 565.029 $ 530.042 $ 495.970 
Information technology 84.776 85.962 92.887 106.544 73.396 
Finance 117.820 56.868 61,747 70.355 82.275 101.476 127.862 194.352 190.399 191.106 
Public safety 5.719.168 4.976.924 4.964.652 4.758.297 4.514.375 3.878.041 4.122.059 4.271.262 3.895.074 3.745.640 
Public works 1,477.526 1.331,873 1.307.718 1.398.634 1.305.014 1.187.652 1.186.723 1.027.091 1,290.153 836.595 
Planning and community 

development 790.776 675.085 575.489 628.271 595.472 3.297.107 609.701 591.283 441,026 411.118 
Parks and museum 804.149 636.000 669.385 576.023 541.286 469.933 514.635 878.374 485.703 462.343 
Garage 295.422 243.925 245.638 262.443 244.377 200.620 214.446 177.478 298.751 240.133 
Depreciation and amortization - (unallocated) C7> 708.459 651.325 671,572 721,268 671,692 593.095 599.090 605.353 532.900 497.515 -"' Non-departmental and support 

services (l) 

Interest 36.977 55.817 84.250 109.691 123.814 128.429 145.968 166.919 173.679 188.205 
Total governmental activities 10.516.902 9.148.264 9.014.251 8.886.918 8.376.613 10.353.669 8.176.768 8.477.141 7.837.727 7.068.625 

Business-we activities: 
Water and sewer utility(?) 16.549.533 14.627.939 12.501.119 11.733.001 10.873.285 10.075.440 9.258.516 8.752.480 7.738.967 

Total business~type activities 16.549.533 14.627.939 12.501.119 11.733.001 10.873.285 10.075.440 9.258.516 8.752.480 7.738.967 

Total primary government expenses $ 27.066.435 $ 24.016.373 $ 23.642.190 $ 21.388.037 $ 20.109.614 $ 21.226.954 $ 18.252.208 $ 17.735.657 $ 16.590.207 $ 14.807.592 

Program Revenue 
Governmental activities: 

Fees for services <4) $ 1.270.485 $ 1.460.765 $ 948.157 $ 1.014.772 $ 1.053.270 $ 1.006.202 $ 1.070.167 $ 1.385.124 $ 1.353.981 $ 1.276.434 
Operating grants and contributions (Z) 402.575 242.087 66.562 25.727 163.049 387.123 445.491 129.259 3.242 206.008 
Capital grants and contributions 618.648 6.649.664 4.249 100.000 267.131 49,323 33.833 192.342 127.349 47.700 

Total governmental activities 2.291.708 8.352.516 1.018.968 1.140.499 1.483.450 1.442.648 1.549.491 1.706.725 1.484.572 1.530.142 

Business-we activities: 
Fees for services (S) 16.865.450 14.971.094 14.566.496 13.053.768 12.113.231 I I.113.085 9.949.750 9.722.466 9.279.771 8.703.224 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 948.615 1.604.279 1.233.547 8.768.596 9.848.764 13.721.503 10.191.975 2.871.370 2.644.723 2.681.105 

Total business~type activities 17.814.065 16.575.373 15.800.070 21.822.364 21.961.995 24.834.588 20.141.725 12.593.836 11.924.494 I 1.384.329 
Total primary government program 

revenue $ 20.105.773 $ 24.927.889 $ 16.819.038 $ 22.962.863 $ 23.445.445 $ 26.277.236 $ 21.691.216 $ 14.300.561 $ 13.409.066 $ 12.914.471 

-CONTINUED-
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHAl\GES IN NET POSITION (6) 

(Accrual basis of accounting) 

-CONTINUED-

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2010 2009 2008 2007 
General Revenue and Other Changes 
Government!! activities: 

Property ta'<cs s 4.066.933 $ 3.786.956 s 3.783.478 $ 3.616.400 $ 3.756.223 s 3.408.455 $ 2.975,601 $ 2.619.710 $ 2.452.705 $ 2.222,653 
Accomodation and hospitality taxes 1.074.154 787.971 98.941 90,033 86.297 76.682 87.502 107.809 108.570 112.667 
State shared and unallocated 

intergovernmental 425.994 410.874 370.738 400.669 326.500 363.225 397.125 452.427 479.420 437.619 
Business licenses and other ta'{es 4.586.377 6,704,824 4.043.886 3.344.898 4.087.220 2.909,802 3.124.799 3.090.229 3.193,603 2.830.976 
Unrestricted investment earnings 1.201 1.777 1.813 2.309 4.053 9.497 9.485 21.309 96.838 144.116 
Gain from sale of assets 35,000 171.314 22,854 
Other 638.436 390.922 422.976 514,157 520.318 63.069 46,291 17,875 52,940 45232 
Transfers 420.757 

Total governmental activities 10,828.095 12.083.324 7.991.320 6.830.730 6,730.114 5.793.263 

Business~tvne activities: 
Unrestricted investment earnings 10.264 11.223 14.426 20,799 26.801 41.837 61.639 135.795 388.896 312.364 
Gain from sale of assets 4.423 23,227 (844) 
Other 14.619 4.247 370.435 3.360 9.161 6.760 
Transfers (420,757) (!,043.477) 

Total business·type activities 14,687 34,450 14.426 35.418 46.084 (281.602) (645,420) 319.124 
Totat primary government general 

revenue and other changes $ 10.842:782 $ 12.117.774 $ 8,907,572 $ 8.026.738 $ 8,806.568 $ 6.876.814 $ 7.072.877 $ 6.448.512 $ 6.782.133 $ 6.112.387 

Extraordinary Item- Fire $ $ $ (1,040.506) $- $ 

Special Item- Wastewater Treatment 
Plant disposarldecommissioned s - $ $ ( 4.488.481) $ $ - $ - s 

Changes in Net Position 
Governmental activities $ 2.602.901 S 11,287.576 $ 897.863 $ 244.901 $ 846.942 $(2.080.291) S 13.526 $ (40.302) $ 1,074,398 S 254.780 
Busir.ess-typeactivities 1.279.219 1.186.557 4,868.182 10.254.951 14.007.387 10.498.359 3.053,718 2.526.594 

Total primary government changes in 
net position S 3.882.120 $ !3.029.290 S 2.084.420 $ 5,113.083 $11.101.893 $11.927.096 $10.511.885 $ 3.013,416 $ 3.600.992 $ 4.219.266 

(1) Beginning in 2007. the City allocated non-departmental and support services to functional activities for its Governmental Activities. 
(2) Beginning :in 2007~ the City reported expenses reimbursed by the Water & Sewer UtiHty Fund net of reimbursement. 
(3) Beginning in 2007. the City allocated overhead costs associated with its Utility Fund to the functional areas of Governmental Activities. 
(4) Fees for services for the governmental activities primarily consist of police fines. fire hydrant service fees. sanitation and tapping fees and other special service fees. 
(5) Fees for services for the business--type activity consist primarily of sales for water and sewer services. 
(6) Beginning in 2013. the City implemented GASB Statement #63 and recla.<>Sified "·net assets" to "'net position.-
(7) Beglnning in 2014. the City implemented GASB Statement #65 and Gl\SB #68 which restated bond issue costs as expenses and r~--tated pension liabilities and related deferrals. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PROGRAM REVENUE BY FUNCTION 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Function/Program 
Governmental Activities: 

General government (I) $ 30,000 $ 149,968 $ $ $ $ 51,694 $ 2,527 $ $ $ 
Information technology 
Finance 
Public safety 900,140 822,249 626,967 545,554 752,605 924,772 926.953 741,906 553,521 793,932 
Public works 531.233 832,971 381,066 472.833 432,704 414,308 501,847 769,983 678,163 619,535 
Planning and community 

development 212,815 8.467 6.200 121,286 27.757 31,120 51,550 51,556 
Parks and museum 617,520 6,538.861 4,735 826 270,384 20.754 66,614 143,280 252.888 116,675 
Garage - Total governmental activities 2.291,708 8,352.516 1,018.968 1,140,499 1,483,450 1,442.648 1.549.491 1,706.725 1,484,572 1,530,142 -,.,.. 

Business-~Qe activities: 
Water and sewer utility 17.814,065 16,575,373 14,629.867 21.822.364 21,961,995 24,834,588 20,141,725 12,593.836 11,924,494 11,384,329 

Total business-type activities 17.814.065 16,575,373 14.629,867 21,822,364 21,961,995 24.834,588 20,141,725 12,593,836 I 1,924,494 11,384,329 
Total program revenue by function and 

program $ 20,105.773 $ 24,927,889 $ 15.648,835 $ 22.962,863 $23,445,445 $ 26,277.236 $ 21,691,216 $ 14,300,561 $ 13,409,066 $ 12,914.471 

(!) Beginning in 2007, the City reported governmental expenses reimbursed by the Water and Sewer Utility Fund net of such reimbursement. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

FUl\1]) BALANCES 
GOVERJ\TMENTAL FUNDS 

(Modified accrual basis of accounting) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 20ll 2010 2009 2008 2007 
General Fund 

Nonspendable $ 64.979 s 559,143 $ 48,921 $ 51,930 $ 41,613 $ 35,177 $ $ -$ s 
Restricted 21,233 52,783 58,560 69,493 113,698 133.512 
Committed 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 
Assigned 930,600 923,610 4,107 9,944 17,261 20,267 
Unassigned 4,859,534 4,124,328 1,090,810 476,052 694,031 430,901 
Reserved 187,280 194,005 195,913 205,925 
Unreserved (209.352) (4.412) (123,661) (640.160) 

Total general fund 1,227.398 632.419 866,603 619.857 (??,072) 189.593 72.252 (434235) 

- All Other Governmental Funds 
VI Restricted, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 587.173 391,426 131,568 149,493 246,509 406,477 
Debt service funds 996,764 1,133,993 752,375 794,432 497,847 620,592 
Capital projects funds 735,245 428,440 754,698 655,607 717,567 173,606 

Assigned, reported in: 83,801 
Special revenue funds 83,801 83,801 83,801 636 

Reserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 82,207 82.673 82,651 82,627 
Debt service funds 1,349,255 1,215,761 1,143,438 1,017,411 
Capital projects funds 2.277,644 2,356.749 2,590,056 3,047,680 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 323,318 352,489 374,364 365,716 
Capital projects funds 

Total all other governmental funds 2.402,983 2,037,660 1,722.442 1.683,333 1,461,923 1,20L311 4.032,424 4.007,672 4.190,509 4,513,434 

T otaJ primary government $ 8.304,329 $ 7,722,524 $ 2,949,840 $ 2,328,526 $ 1,821,168 $ 4,010,352 $ 4,197,265 $ 4,262,761 $ 4,079,199 

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement #54 in 2011 and prepared this schedule prospectively. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

(Modified accrual basis of accounting) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Revenue 

Property taxes $ 4,068,045 $3,776,095 $ 3,794,008 $ 3,610,099 $ 3,721,458 $ 3,351,690 $ 2,899,938 $ 2,624,276 $ 2,383,985 $ 2,227,451 
Hospitality taxes 1,068,426 697,654 
Licenses and permits 4,799,886 6,969,845 4,182,122 3,401,971 4,145,714 2,945,593 3,296,449 3,511,330 3,534,887 3,116,879 
Fines and forfeitures 260,880 329,068 268,380 223,204 316,604 328,356 282,399 284,215 239,960 337,679 
State shared revenue 425,994 497,025 470,411 504,646 447,544 489,425 541,999 613,976 625,855 594,905 
Current services 796,448 848,100 534,410 692,536 658,095 620,316 601,501 668,994 636,283 625,946 
Grants and other 1,658,789 1,953,891 502,037 697,009 970,574 504,317 494,349 366,262 327,625 1,310,757 
Interest income ],?01 1,777 1.813 2.308 4,054 9,497 9,485 21,309 96,836 144,116 

Total revenue 13,079,669 15,073,455 9,753,181 9,131,773 10,264,043 8,249,194 8,126,120 8,090,362 7,845,431 8,357,733 --0\ Expenditures' 
Current: 

General government 510,972 418,861 335,743 257,965 237,577 243,093 322,933 334,079 410,300 456,196 
Information technology 74,890 78,293 90,231 106,187 73,396 
Finance 86,021 49,747 62,061 69,766 87,707 69,582 68,791 132,174 133,598 196,415 
Public safety 5,604,141 4,972,902 5,020,310 4,752,127 4,566,632 3,342,951 3,377,945 3,267,295 2,990,865 2,902,975 
Public works 1,424,195 1,309,947 1,289,663 1,397,514 1,321,336 1,085,494 1,025,127 1,204,368 1,031,851 1,005,933 
Planning and community 

development/relations 840,806 618,430 569,700 625,823 603,295 3,253,279 498.344 496,265 390,710 332,888 
Parks and museum 766,762 662,474 661,278 590,580 549,481 407,817 407,097 396,719 355,486 385,507 
Garage 260,589 237,940 249,836 261,917 250,402 165,610 154,796 118,365 135,652 238,020 
Non-department and support 

services 268 26,476 15,601 24,853 511,974 863,085 1,504,764 1,559,494 1,518,150 1,397,835 
Debt service and other financing: 

Principal 603,207 672,857 666,678 664,914 685,536 573,730 581,740 580,340 882,569 518,350 
Interest 36,997 55,817 89,405 109,691 123,814 128,430 145,968 166,919 176,465 193,663 

Capital outlay 2,324,016 1,213,999 323,518 473,210 460,431 804,800 381,641 510,656 1,019,876 834,374 
Total expenditures 12,532,864 10,317,743 9,374,024 9,334,547 9,471,581 10,937,871 8,469,146 8,766,674 9,045,522 8,462,156 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures 546,805 4.755 712 379,157 (202,774) 792,462 (2,688,677) (343,026) (676,312) (1,200,091) (104,423) 

-CONTINUED-



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
(Modified accrual basis of accounting) 

-CONTINUED-

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Proceeds from sales of assets 35,000 16,972 254,931 
Installment purchase contracts 190,000 755,402 499,493 156,113 190,059 340,176 
Transfers in 1,404,441 423~300 456,887 42,589 437,747 939.470 38326 459,522 1,082,135 38,533 
Transfers (out) {1 ,404,441) {423,300) (456,887) {42,589) (437,747) {939,470) (38,326) {38,765) (38,658) (38,533) 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 35.000 16,972 254,931 190,000 755,402 499,493 156.113 610,816 1,383,653 

Net change in fund balances 
before extraordinary item 581,805 4,772,684 634,088 (12.774) 1,547,864 (2,189,184) (186,913) (65,496) 183,562 {104,423) --_, 

Extraordinary Item- Fire (I ,040,506) 

Net change in fund balances 581,805 4,772,684 634,088 {12,774) 507,358 {2,189,184) (186,913) (65,496) 183,562 {104,423) 

Fund balances, beginning of year 7,722,524 2,949,840 2,315,752 2,328.526 1.821,168 4,010,352 4,197,265 4,262,761 4,079,199 4,183.622 

Fund balances, end of year $8,304,329 $7,772,524 $2,949,840 $2,315,752 $2.328,526 $1,821,168 $4,010,352 $4.197,265 $4,262,761 $4,079,199 

Debt service as a percentage of non-
capital expenditures 5% 8% 9% 10% 10% 15% 10% 

(!) Beginning in 2007. the City reported governmental expenditures reimbursed by the Water and Sewer Utility Fund net of such reimbursement 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

ASSESSED VALlJE AND ESTL\1A TED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXA.BLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Real and Personal Pro12erty 
Manufacturing/ Less: 

Commereiall Tax Exempt Total Taxable Total Direct Estimated 
Fiscal Year Residential Industrial Motor V chicles (FIWT) Assessed Value Tax Rate (1) Actual Value 

2007 $ 25,396,160 $ 12,567,235 $ 5,402,340 $ (5,792,520) $ 37.573,215 42.50 $ 767,801,614 
2008 26,418,340 13~044,310 5,289,010 (5,921,020) 38,830,640 44.50 769,750,286 
2009 27,142,680 18,481,310 5,383,210 (1 0,944,250) 40,062,950 46.00 887,7ll,l38 
2010 27,497,250 20,681,250 5,012,660 (ll,267,780) 41,923,380 46.00 938,592,286 
2011 * 32,002,480 31,373,060 4,414,160 (20,893, I 60) 46,896,540 41.25 818,978,882 
2012 32,995,290 27,666,827 4,801,730 (!8,539,870) 46,923.977 46.93 823,005,284 
2013 33,861,520 31,369,790 5~033)320 (22,674,050) 47,860,580 43.27 834,372,162 
2014 33,707,440 31,406,130 5,646,490 (22,208,610) 48,551,450 44.17 849,135,496 
2015 34,138,570 34,547,080 5,994,890 (24,197,850) 50,482,690 44.17 873,465,498 
2016 33,944,810 35,766,070 6,442,250 (24,673,760) 51,479,370 45.36 877,639,579 

Source: Lexington County Auditor, Final Tax Year Assessments. 

(1) Direct tax rate reflects the millage assessed by the City to which applied per $1,000 of total assessed values. 

*Results due to reassessment year. 

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 

Value to 
Estimated 

Actual Value 
4.9"/o 
5.0% 
4.5% 
4.5% 
5.7% 
5.7% 
5.7% 
5.7% 
5.9% 
5.9% 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PROPERTY TAX RATES- DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

City County School District All Other Total Millage 
Fiscal Year Millage II) Millage Millage Districts ---·-·-----

2007 42.500 67.132 173.150 21.022 303.804 
2008 44.500 70.692 178.600 25.113 318.905 
2009 46.000 73.931 178.600 23.617 322.148 
2010 46.000 74.238 178.600 22.468 321.306 

*2011 41.250 70.428 176.210 22.013 309.901 
**2012 46.930 71.709 176.210 22.690 317.539 

2013 43.270 73.768 176.210 22.402 315.650 
2014 44.170 76.728 176.210 22.502 319.610 
2015 44.170 77.178 176.210 24.002 321.560 
2016 45.360 76.968 225.960 22.443 370.731 

Source: Lexington County Auditor, Final Millage Reports. 

* Reassessment year effect on City Millage. 
**For 2012 City Millage increase was due mainly to a one year only increase of 5 mills to help with the 
prior year budget deficiency as allowed by State law. 

(1) Section 6-1-320 of Act 388 of the South Carolina Code of Laws establishes millage caps for local 
governing bodies equal to the increase in the average of the twelve monthly consumer price indexes for the 
most recent twelve-month period (January- December of the preceding calendar year), plus beginning in 
2008, the percentage increase in the previous year in population growth as determined by the Office of 
Research and Statistics of the State Budget and Control Board. The 2012 Municipal millage increase was 
due mainly to a one year only increase of 5 mills to help with the prior year budget deficiency. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

COMPARISON OF 2016 TO 2007 

2016 2007 
Percentage of Percentage of 
Total Assessed Total Assessed 

Tax~a:yer Assessment Rank Valuation Assessment Rank Valuation 
SCfu'IA.Inc (SCE&G included) $ 24,294,490 1 31.90"1<> $ 3,499,060 2 9.09% 
Owen Electric Steel Co. of S.C. 6.287.220 2 8.26% 4.259.470 11.07% 
SN Riverside LLC Apartments 1,065.6()0 3 1.40"1. 
PEP-USC LLC (Point We>.'<) Apartments 735.750 4 0.97% 549.750 4 1.43% 
Farm Bureau Insurance of S.C. Insurance 684.720 5 0.90"/o 437.450 6 U4% 
Bell South Telecommunication. Inc. Telecommunication 684.520 6 0.90% 1.387.990 3 3.61% 
Granby Crossing. L.P. Apartments 516,150 7 0.68% 406.200 7 L06% 
Parkland Partnership Shopping Center 508,330 8 0.67% 473,230 5 1.23% 
PS Southeast Two LLC Mlnj \Varehousing 342,010 9 0.45% I 
Cayce Commons: Shopping Ctr Shopping Center 286.280 10 0.38% 
Cole CV Cayce SC LLC Real Estate 270.000 II 0.35% 
Southern First Bank National Banking 261,040 12 0.34% 

~ A VTX Edenwood Associates LLC Real Estate 241,820 13 0.32% 
N Vv'RH Edenwood LID Apartments 230.370 14 0.30% 172.310 12 0.45% 
0 WED Properties LLC Real Estate 214,780 15 0.28% 

W.P. Hylton. LLC (Park Place 440) Real Estate 210.000 16 0.28% 165.900 14 0.43% 
Brick-works i\ssociates LLC Land Development !96,820 17 0.26% 
Bi-LoLLC Grocer !95,820 18 0.26% 
OT ARRE Point Realty Partners LLC Real Estate 188,140 19 0.25% 
Efron Family LLC Real Estate !81.090 20 0.24% 
Virginia American Industries l\1anufacturer, Tanks !65,880 167,410 13 0.44% 
Sou1heastern Concrete Products Manufacturer. Concrete 149,670 259.040 9 0.67% 
Cayce Crossin~ L.P. Shopping Center 148,350 174,710 11 0.45% 
Love Chevrolet Car Dealership 131.840 148.430 15 0.39% 
Time Warner Bnt.- Advance Newhouse Tciccommunication !19.46() 139.610 17 0.36% 
Pilot Travel Centers. LLC Gasoline Stations 94.270 131.860 19 0.34% 
Indigo i\ssociates. LTD Real F~"'lte 65,810 144,420 16 0.38% 
Shealy Environmental Services Laboratory Testing 41350 12Ll60 20 0.31% 
University Commons Apartments 0 332,760 8 0.86% 
The BOC Group, Inc. Real Estate 0 137.890 18 0.36% 
Small, Jr .. RobertS. Real Estate 0 196.470 10 0.51% 

Total $ 38,511.580 

Total Assessed Value (Inc! odes FILOT) s 76.153.130 
Total Assessed Value (Not Including FILOT) $ 51,479.370 

Source: Lexington County Auditor's Office. 
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Fiscal Year Taxes Levied for 
Ended June 30, the Fiscal Yea~ 

2007 $ 1,584,077 
2008 1,692,004 
2009 1,843,767 
2010 1,897,309 
2011 1,826,802 
2012 2,165,282 
2013 2,027,828 
2014 2,068,820 
2015 2,162,503 
2016 2,265,998 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Amounts Collected within tbe Fiscal Year 
by Year of Levv 

Current Delinquent 
Amount Amounts Total 

$ 1,362,656 $ 107,696 $ 1,470,351 
1,480,304 19,519 1,499,823 
1,591,476 62,372 1,653,848 
1,691,680 109,438 1,801,118 
1,624,572 121,708 1,745,280 
1,878,733 65.402 1,944,135 
1,788,626 84.273 1,872,899 
1,832,965 67,261 1,900,227 
1,912,049 48,445 1,960,494 
2,000,127 38,030 2,038,157 

Total Collections 
Received in Fiscal 

Year for All Levies3 

Percentage 
of Levy Total 

93% $ 1,422,356 
89% 1,542,832 
90% 1,650,292 
95% 1,854,051 
96% 1,873,739 
90% 1,945,144 
92% 1,884,856 
92% 1,926,015 
91% 2,007,323 
90% 2,066,543 

1) Collections do not include applicable penalties, interest, motor carriers, and fees-in-lieu-of-taxes (PILOT), payments from Richland 
County, or property taxes received from redevelopment areas for Tax Increment Financing bonds. 

2) Information from the Lexington County Treasurer's Office, inclusive of abatements and supplements. 
3) Property taxes are billed and collected by county governments. Real property taxes are reported by the county on a calendar-year 

and levy-year basis, while personal property taxes are levied on a monthly basis. Total collected amounts reported by the county 
differ slightly to amounts reported by the City. 

Source: Lexington County Treasurer. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 
June30 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

R.A. TIOS OF OUTSTANDING LONG-TER.VI. DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
Tax Promissory 

Increment l'\otes and Water and 
Financing Installment Sewer Clean Water Installment 

General (TIF) Purchase System State Purchase Total 
Obligation Revenue Contracts Revenue Revolving Contracts Primary 

Bonds Bonds Pavable Bonds Fund Loans Payable Government 
$ $ 4,025,450 $ 434,142 $ 20,880,000 $ 1,387,786 s $26,727,3 78 

3,692,501 565,406 26,125,000 1,324,508 226,764 31,934,179 
3,346,000 520,650 24,720,000 1,258,823 138,220 29,983,693 
2,985,394 455,631 23,240,000 1,190,640* *46,809 27,918,474 
2,610,109 756,680 21,705,000 1,119,864* 26,191,653 
2,219,547 1,217,108 20,110,000 35,574,548 59,121,203 
1,813,087 1,002,799 18,445,000 34,104,337 55,365,223 
1,390,082 600,862 16,715,000 32,609,883 51,315,827 

949,858 224,242 13,945,000 33,825,489 48,944,589 
491,714 12,970,000 32,144,429 507,532 46,113,675 

*The 2009 State Revolving Fund Construction Loan of approximately $35 million not included in this amount. 
Note: See "Demographic and Economic Statistics" table for personal income and per capita data. 

Percentage 
of Personal Amount Per 

Total Capita 
Income (Poeulation} 
12.4% 2,133 
14.8% 2,525 
13.9% 2,295 
12.9% 2,137 
10.1% 2,091 
21.7% 4,640 
19.2% 4,367 
17.0% 3,990 
16.1% 3,779 
15.0% 3,563 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Total General 
Fiscal Yeat• Boncled Indebtedness 

Pet·centage of 
Assessed Value of 
Taxable I't:()Jlcrty 

2007 
2008 
2009 
20!0 
20! I 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

···~-~.~ 

The City has no current general obligation bonds outstanding. 

Source: City of Cayce Finance Department. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

JUNE 30,2016 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Political Subdivisions 

Lexington County 
Lexington School District 2 
Lexington Recreation District 
Riverbanks Zoo 

Total Overlapping General Bonded 
Debt 

Direct City Debt Outstanding 
Governmental Activities: 

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Revenue Bonds 

Installment Purchase Contracts 

Business-type Activities: 
Water and Sewer System Revenue 

Bonds 
Clean Water State Revolving 

Fund Loans (SRF) 
Installment purchase contracts 

Total Direct & Overlapping Debt 

Assessed Value 
$ I ,214,040,260 

288,845,600 
914,317,130 

1,214,040,260 

Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 42,193,795 
146,254,000 
34,115,000 
14,743,768 

$ 237,306,563 

Percentage 
Applicable 

to Cayce 
Ta:.;payers2 

5.94% 
24.97% 

7.89% 
5.94% 

Cayce's 
Taxpayers 

Share of Debt1 

$ 2,506,311 
36,519,624 

2,691,674 
875,780 

$ 42,593,389 

$ 491,714 

$ 491,714 

$ 

$ 

$ 

12,970,000 

32,144,429 
507,732 

45,621,962 

88,707,065 

Source: Lexington County Finance Department and City of Cayce Finance Department. 

1Per Lexington County, the City does not tax or share in the outstanding debt of others, 
and is not responsible for any of the 'overlapping' debt outstanding by other political 
subdivisions. 

2The percentage applicable to Cayce Taxpayer's is based on the percentage of assessed 
valuation of property located within the City as compared with the County. 

124 



-N 
V> 

2016 2015 

Total Assessed Valuation $51.479,370 $50.482.690 
Maximum General 

Obligation Debt limited 
to 8% of total assessed 

valuation (1) 4.118.350 4,038,615 

Outstanding bonds 
chargeable to bond limit 

Legal debt margin $4.118.350 $ 4.038.615 

Total net debt applicable to 
the limit as a percentage 

of debt I imit 0% 0% 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTII CAROLINA 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

$48.551.450 $47.860.580 $46,923.977 $46,896.540 $41,923,380 

3.884.116 3.828.846 3,753,918 3.751.723 3.353.870 

s 3.884.116 $ 3.828.846 s 3.753,918 $ 3.751.723 $ 3.353.870 

il"!. 0% 0% 

2009 2008 2007 

$40,062,950 $38.830.640 $37.573,215 

3.205.036 3.106.451 3,005.857 

$ 3.205.036 $3.106.451 $3.005.857 

0% 0% 

1) Article 10, Section 14.7 of the South Carolina Constitution limits general obligation debt to 8% of the assessed value of all taxable 
property. Does not include FILOT. 

Source: Lexington County Auditor's Office. 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PLEDGED REVENUE- REVENUE BOND COVERAGE WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 
2016 2015 2014(2) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Gross Revenues $16.880.13 7 $15.005.544 $14.580.922 $13.899.383 $12.140.032 $11J59.169 $10.381.824 $ 9.861.621 $ 9.677.828 

Capital Facility Charges 465.468 1.604.279 1.592.759 5.145.064 9.848.764 13.721.503 7.168.737 1.580.790 1.486.154 
Expenses of Operating and 

Maintaining the System (J) (1 0.489,151) (9.!59.617) (9.089.535) (7.886.067) (8.014.258) (7,391,785) (6.630.334) (6.352.267) (6.509.486) 

Net Earnings/Net Revenues<1l$ 6.856.454 $ 7.450.206 $ 7.084.146 $11.158.380 $13.974.538 $17.488.887 $10.920.227 $ 5.090.144 $ 4.654.496 
Combined Debt Service 

Requirements<4l $ 4.551.866 $ 4.774.334 $ 4.835.493 $ 4.881.806 $ 3.240.906 $ 2.707.437 $ 2.709.725 $ 2.818.044 $ 2.212.235 

Debt Service Coverage<5l 151% 156% 147% 229% 431% 646% 403% 180% 210% 
Debt Service Coverage 

Without Capital Facility 
Charges<5l N/A 122% 114% 123% 127% 139% 138% 124% 143% 

2007 

$ 9.022.348 

1.058.798 

(4.927.517) 

$ 5.153.629 

$ 2.216.564 

236% 

185% 

1) Effective 2016, the City's 2016 Bond Ordinance replaced the prior bond indentures of trust and requires Net Earnings (as defined 
in the ordinance and inclusive of Capital Facility Charges) to be at least 115% of the Annual Principal and Interest Requirements 
for all bonds. Previously, debt service coverages under the then effective indentures were based on Net Revenues computed both 
with and without Capital Facility Charges. 

2) For 2014, gross revenues include debt service reserve account savings as allowed under the prior indenture of trust. 
3) Expenses of operating and maintenance of the system are exclusive of depreciation, amortization and other non-cash items. 
4) Includes annual principal and interest payments on revenue bonds and state revolving funds loans. 
5) Under the 2016 Bond Ordinance, debt service coverage to be at least 115%. Previous year's coverage tests required Net Revenues 

without Capital Facility Charges to be at least 115%, or Net Revenues (without Capital Facility Charges) to be at least 110%, plus 
Net Revenues with Capital Facility Charges to be at least 120%. 



Occurrence 

Alterations 

Additions 

New Construction 

Sub-total: 

N 
Signagc 

-.) 
Commercial Totals 

Occurrence 

Alterations 

Additions 

Muiti~Family 

Single-Family 

Residential Totals: 

Yearly Grand Total: 

2Gl6 2015 

$ 3.663,392 $ 2.024.358 

1.067,481 

8,158.486 205,910 

12.889.359 2.230.268 

85,224 63.914 

$ 12.974.583 $ 2.,294.182 

2016 2015 

$ 1.722,156 $ 1.227.438 

132.4&5 311,499 

35,670,684 

9.431,975 6,684,947 

s 1!.286,616 $ 43.894.568 

CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CONSTRUCTION VALUES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

COMMERCIAL PERMITS VALUES TEN FISCAL YEAR REPORT 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

$ 1.433.524 $ 4.355.520 $ 583.%4 $ 1.485,764 $ 1.445.301 

1,159.300 Ll71,SSO 368.348 94.692 74.256 

9.812,:173 1.084.624 78.420 105,830 62,060,078 

12,465,097 6.612.024 1,030,732 1.686,2&; 63,579.635 

78A30 73.417 44,130 88.105 169.376 

$ 12,483,527 s 6.685,441 s 1.074.862 s 1,774.391 $ 63,749,011 

RESIDENTIAL PERMITS VALUES TEN FISCAL YEAR REPORT 

2014 2013 2012 201! 2010 

$ 959,069 $ 1,553,973 $ 976,387 s 804,757 $ 2.236.743 

258.552 297.543 192,946 226.930 225550 

1,354,057 

8.230.264 7,917,316 4,105.918 676.678 3.518.000 

$ 9,447,885 s 9.773.832 s 6,629.308 $ 1.708.365 s 5.980.293 

2009 2008 2007 

$ 5,027581 $ 1.124,891 s 2.346.231 

565.615 9,311,921 31.860 

42.184.Q48 62.749.070 53.319.654 

47~777.244 73.185.88:! 55,697.745 

93.959 84.372 111.034 

s 47.871.203 $ 73.270.254 s 55.808.779 

2009 2008 2007 

s 832,040 $ 926.205 $ 1,699.842 

201.607 826.408 565,569 

9.898,625 5.075.670 8.989,979 

$ 10.982.272 $ 6.82&.283 s 11.255.390 

s 24.261.199 $ 46,188,750 s 21.931.4!1 $ 16.459,273 s 7.704.170 $ 3,4ll2.756 s 69.729.304 $ 58.853.475 $ 80.098.'137 $ 67,%4.169 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST AVAILABLE YEARS 

Per Year 2010 Census 1 

Total Population (20 12 estimate) 
Per Capita Income (in 2010 dollars) 
Median Household Income (in 2010 dollars) 
Median Family Income (in 2010 dollars) 
Total Personal Income (in 2010 dollars) 

Population Estimates' (July I, 2015) 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
20I4 
2015 

Unemployment Rates' (Annual Average) 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
20I2 
2013 
2014 
2015 
20I63 

__ C_a~ce5 
12,9:':'44::------

$ 23,690 
$ 43,186 
$ 55,012 
$ 306,643,360 

_______ Ca)-"'c._e __ 
12,478 
12,533 
12,646 
13,062 
12,528 
12,626 
12,772 
12,860 
12,951 
12,944 

Cayce 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Households 

Lexington County~ 
281,833 

$ 28,411 
$ 55,227 
$ 70,069 
$ 8,007,157,363 

Lexington County 
237,957 
242,797 
248,518 
255,607 
262,391 
266,547 
270,272 
273,752 
277,888 
28I,833 

Lexington County 
4.1 
4.9 
8.0 
8.2 
8.0 
7.0 
5.8 
5.0 
4.8 
4.4 

South Carolina' 
4,896,146 

$ 25,627 
$ 47,238 
$ 59,282 
$ 125,473,533,542 

South Carolina 
4,324,799 
4,404,914 
4,479,800 
4,561,242 
4,625,364 
4,673,509 
4,723,417 
4,774,839 
4,832,482 
4,896,146 

South Carolina 
5.7 
6.8 
11.2 
I 1.2 
10.6 
9.2 
7.6 
6.4 
6.0 
5.4 

Families 
Cayce's Income DemQgraphics5 Number Percentage Number Percentage 

$0-$10,000 
I 0,000- 14,999 
15,000-24,999 
25,000-34,999 
35,000-49,999 
50,000- 74,999 
75,000-99,999 

100,000- I49,999 
150,000- 199,999 
200,000 and over 

Totals 

500 
314 
737 
641 
787 

1,053 
770 
396 
8I 
74 

5,353 

9.3% 
5.9% 
13.8% 
12.0% 
14.7% 
19.7% 
14.4% 
7.4% 
1.5% 
1.4% 

100.0% 

Sources: 1 U.S. Bureau of the Census. Census 2010.2015 latest estimates. 
2 S.C. Department of Employment and Workforce. 
3 Six month average fi·om January I, 2016 through June 30, 20 I 6. 

294 10.0% 
76 2.6% 

242 8.2% 
289 9.8% 
396 13.5% 
711 24.2% 
498 17.0% 
326 11.1% 

54 1.8% 
__ __.4"9'-- I. 7% 

--~2,~93;,;5~ 100.0% 

4 State demographic information for all categories, updated as of July l, 20I5. 
5 Income demographics for the City are based on estimates fi·om the Bureau of the Census, American 

Community Survey, latest year 2015. 
N/ A ~Not Available 
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CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

JUNE 30,2016 
(With comparative data from that first reported in CAFR, June 30, 2007) 

2016 
Percentage of 

Total City 
Taxeayer Emelo;rees Rank EmJ:!IO>'lllent Emelo,Yees 
SCANA, Inc Electric Utility 1,873 1 22.0% 200 
SMI Steel Manufacturer, Steel 385 2 4.5% 593 
Lexington School District 2 Public School System 271 3 3.2% 
Bi-Le, LLC Grocer 189 4 2.2% 
Farm Bureau Insurance of S.C. Insurance 160 5 1.9% 175 
CINTAS Uniform Provider 106 6 1.2% 
Genuine Parts Co. Parts Distributor 65 7 0.8% 
Love Automotive Co. Car Dealership 50 8 0.6% 
Southeastern Concrete Manufacturer, Concrete 50 9 0.6% 55 
Krispy Kreme Doughnut Co. Retail 10 0.5% 65 

Total 3,193 37.56% 1,088 

Approximate number employed within the City limits 8,500 6,725 

Note: Information obtained from Business License applications and phone calls to businesses. 
Information does not include Governmental Institutions such as the City itself. 

2007 
Percentage of 

Total City 
Rank Emelo;rment 

4 3.0% 
I 8.8% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

5 2.6% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

8 0.1% 
7 1.0% 

15.8% 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Employees by Function/Program 

Governmental Activities 
General government: 

Legislative 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Administrative 6 6 5 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 
Recorder's court 3 3 2 2 I I I I I I 
IT*** I I I I N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Finance: 
Accounting 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 

Public safety: 
Animal control I 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Dispatchers 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Administrative 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Detectives 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 8 
TrafficNictim's Advocate** 39 41 38 38 39 47 48 47 45 44 
Fire** 15 15 12 9 9 

~ Parks 4 2 N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A w Planning and community development: 0 
Administrative 5 4 4 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Public works: 
Public buildings I I I I I I I I I I 
Sanitation 15 17 17 17 17 16 16 16 16 16 
Garage 

Parks and museum: 
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 

Museum 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Parks 12 10 10 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 

Subtotals 134 134 124 122 119 119 120 118 116 114 

Business-type Activities 
Water and sewer utility: 

Administrative* 4 4 12 8 8 7 7 6 6 6 
Water billing* 8 8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Water treatment plant 10 10 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 
Water distribution and maintenance 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 13 12 12 
Sewer collection and outfall lines 13 13 12 12 12 10 9 9 9 9 
Wastewater treatment plant 12 12 12 12 12 II II II 10 10 
Wastewater Pre-treatment Plant**** 3 3 I 

Subtotals 63 63 59 56 56 52 51 49 47 47 
Total 197 197 183 178 175 171 171 167 163 161 

Source: City of Cayce Finance, Budget and Personnel Departments. 
Note: Schedule is based on budgetedfoll-time positions. N!A represents "Not Applicable··. 

*Water billing was spit out from Water Administration as of July 1, 2014. 
**Fire personnel were split out from Public Safety Traffic starting July 1, 2011. 

***F:irst year with Full-Time IT person started July 1, 2012. 
****New Septage/Grease Pre-Treatment Plant started operation in February 2014. 



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

OPERATING Il'.TIICATORS AND CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTIONiPROGR>\..\1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Function/Program 

Qovernmental Activities 
General government: 
Area in Square Miles 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2 15 
Population of City1 12.944 12.951 12.860 12.679 12.743 12.528 13.062 12.646 12.556 12.382 

Public safety: 
Number of stations 4 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 
Number of Police Officers I I 2 2 2 2 2 I 1 I 
Number of Firefighters 6 6 12 9 9 7 7 7 7 5 
Number of Public Safely 

Officers* 57 54 48 47 47 50 51 52 49 49 
Dispatchers and Victim's - Advocate 8 8 8 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

w Number of arrests 700 685 1121 887 728 830 523 992 898 938 - Number of emergency incidents 5.800 8.470 6.800 2.968 5.295 9.388 10.494 8.781 2,403 4.535 
Planning and community 

development: 
Permits issues 452 744 300 917 276 239 341 376 349 317 
Estimated cost of construction 24.261.198 46.188.750 2].931.411 16.459.273 7.704.170 3.482.756 69.725,305 58.853.475 80.098.537 67,064.169 

Public works; 
Active vehicles in vehide 

replacement plan 168 156 146 152 149 130 i22 122 120 119 
Refuse collected (average tons 

per day) 24.5 25.0 23.19 44.4 35.3 48.0 47.8 17.58 13.43 14.10 
Recyelables collected (avemge 

tons per day) 2.5 2.0 1.26 1.18 1.06 1.05 1.04 !.14 1.40 3.00 
Parks and museum: 

Number of parks 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 s 6 6 
Number of playgrounds 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 3 3 

Museum complex l 1 1 1 1 I 1 1 1 1 

'Based on latest U.S. Census or estimates 

*Excludes Animal Control, Dispatchers, and Victim's Advocate personneL 

CONTI~'. l.JED-



CITY OF CAYCE, SOUTH CAROLINA 

OPERATING IN'DICATORS AND CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

-CONTINUED-

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 ~ 2008 
·~·-

Busincss~:tx:Qc activities: 
Water and sew(."f utility: 

Number of water customers 
end of period2 7.760 8A36 8.245 8.222 8.490 K337 7.329 7.248 7.230 7.098 

Number of sewer customers-
end of period2 !!.625 12.146 11.595 11.893 1V50 10.812 10.757 10,651 10.629 8.424 

Water plant filtration capacity 
per day gallons (GPD) 9.600.000 9,600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 9.600.000 

Maximum daily pumping 
capacity of water- ga11ons 10,000.000 10.000.000 10.000.000 10,000,000 10.000.000 10.000,000 10,000,000 10,000.000 10,000.000 10.000.000 

Average daily filtration flow-
waterGPD 3.000.160 2.790.000 2,790.000 2,730,000 3,070,000 3.090.000 3,050.000 3.000.000 3.310,000 4.530,000 - Pe-dk average filtration flow-

w waterGPD 3.721.000 3,740.000 3.740.000 3.750.000 4.300,000 3,790.000 3.440,000 3.300,000 3.300,000 4,530.000 t-.> 
Peak daily filtr4tion flow 

waterGPD 4.408.000 4,771,900 4.771.900 4.020,000 4,389.000 4.130,000 4.410,000 5.199.000 5.393.000 5,500.000 
Wastewater plant treatment 

capacity pt."r day gallons 25.000.000 25,000.000 25,000,000 25.000.000 9.500,000 9,500.000 9.500.000 9.500.000 9.500.000 9.500.000 
Average daily tre-.:1ted flow-

wastewater GPD 9.803.000 7.743.000 8,222.000 6,666.000 5.733.000 4.303,000 6.758.000 6.056,000 5.407,000 5.660.000 
Peak average treated flow-

wastewater GPD 13.458.000 8,900,000 10.123.000 7.417.000 6.184,000 6,002,000 9.030.000 7.196.000 6,796.000 6.261,000 
Peak daily treated flow-

wastewater GPD 23,647.000 16.490,000 17,075.000 13.181.000 9.557.000 10,871,000 14.188.000 12.795.000 9,615,000 13,040.000 
Number of miles of water mains 

owned by City 217.7 216.3 215.9 214.8 214.0 210.5 207 128 124 123 
Number of miles of sewage 

collection lines O\'ffiCd by City 270.1 268.5 266.3 265.7 265 260 260 158 156 152 

2 Beginning in 2016, number of customers include only 'active' accounts. Previous year's data also included final billed and inactive, but 
available accounts. 

Source: City of Cayce Finance and Utility Departments. 
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________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Rebecca Vance, City Manager  
Shaun Greenwood, Asst. City Manager 
Monique Ocean, Planning & Zoning Tech 

Date: December 29, 2016 

Subject: Second Reading of an Ordinance to adopt the Lexington County 
Stormwater Ordinance and pertinent chapters of the Land 
Development Manual. 

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 
Second Reading of an Ordinance to adopt the Lexington County Stormwater 
Ordinance and pertinent chapters of the Land Development Manual. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
Staff is requesting adoption of the Lexington County Stormwater Ordinance 
(SWO) and Land Development Manual (LDM). The City has entered into an 
intergovernmental agreement, signed June 4, 2014, with the County for 
implementation of a Stormwater Management Plan in support of the NPDES 
permit for small municipal separate storm sewer systems (SMS4s). The 
agreement allows the City to partner with the County on stormwater management 
issues and requires the City to adopt the County's most current SWO and LDM. 
The County performs the review of construction stormwater run-off and post 
construction stormwater management for new development and redevelopment 
within the City. Adoption of the SWO and LDM will ensure that stormwater 
components within the City remain consistent with County requirements. A 
summary of changes is attached. 

The City currently has a Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, so the LDM 
Chapter 11 Flood Damage Prevention will not be adopted.   

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff requests that Council adopt the Lexington County Stormwater Ordinance 
(SWO) and pertinent chapters of the Land Development Manual (LDM). 

ITEM IV. A. 



SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
1. Stormwater Ordinance (SWO) 

• The County Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance has been separated 
from the Stormwater Ordinance (SWO) and placed in the Land 
Development Manual (LDM). The City will not adopt this ordinance 
because we have our own flood damage prevention ordinance. 

• The language for the right-of-entry onto private property has been 
strengthened by advising the public that Lexington County Public Works 
Stormwater Division (PW/SWD) may enter a property and take immediate 
action to stop an illicit discharge, refusal or delay to allow PW/SWD to 
have access to the property is a violation of the SWO, and property 
owners must reimburse the County for measures used to stop any illicit 
discharge. 

• A maintenance and operation plan must be provided for privately 
maintained stormwater systems. 

• A statement has been added to advise the public that municipalities may 
have more restrictive requirements than the County SWO. 

 
 
2. Land Develoment Manual (LDM) 

• A final operation and maintenance (O & M) plan showing responsible party 
and location of easements for the stormwater components is now 
required. The plan must indicate a schedule for maintenance and who will 
perform the maintenance. The plan must be recorded prior to final 
approval. 

• Development review meetings are suggested to be held by the 
municipality to discuss what is needed for a new project. The PW/SWD is 
willing to attend these meetings. 

• An Individual Notice of Intent (INOI) is required when a secondary 
developers becomes a part of a larger common plan. The INOI is required 
to ensure the stormwater plans are not changed with a change of 
ownership. 

• Roads and stormwater management systems that are to be dedicated to 
Lexington County for public maintenance shall be under warranty by the 
developer for a period of two years. The warranty will be secured by funds 
in an amount determined by PW/SWD. 

• The developer/permit applicant is now able to obtain a Construction 
Grassing Agreement by securing monies with the PW/SWD. The 
Agreement will allow final plat approval before a property is stabilized. 

• The permit holder or other authorized agent shall notify the PW/SWD staff 
at least 48 hours before the initiation of construction.  

• Temporary buffers/construction buffers will be allowed as a part of the 
Construction General Permit (CGP) for land development  

• The responsible owner of water quality buffers must be identified and a 
statement that buffer will remain in perpetuity must be included. The 
County does not accept maintenance of water quality buffers. 

• Chapter 11 Flood Plain management will not be adopted because the City 
has its own flood plain ordinance 

 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   ORDINANCE 2016-21 
     ) Authorizing and Approving Implementation,  
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) Administration and Enforcement  
     ) of Lexington County’s 2016 Stormwater 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) Management Ordinance and Lexington 
      County’s 2016 Land Development Manual 
      within the Corporate Limits of the City 
       

 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the interest of the City and the 
public, and the health, peace, safety and order of the City, to regulate previously 
uncontrolled or poorly controlled stormwater runoff and land disturbing activities, both of 
which have or may have significant adverse impacts on flooding, water quality and the 
environment; and  

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that it is in the interest of the City and the 
public, and the health, peace, safety and order of the City, to provide a joint public service 
with Lexington County within the corporate limits of the City pursuant to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement and by granting permission for, authorizing, and approving 
implementation, administration and enforcement of Lexington County’s Ordinance 16-04 
(“Lexington County Stormwater Management Ordinance”) and Lexington County’s 2016 
Land Development Manual within the corporate limits of the City of Cayce and for the 
benefit of the City of Cayce and its citizens; and  

WHEREAS, the Council further has determined that it is in the interest of the City 
and the public, and the health, peace, safety and order of the City, to authorize such a 
joint public service with the County within the corporate limits of the City upon the proper 
consideration of matters of economy, efficiency, uniformity, intergovernmental 
cooperation, and the avoidance of double taxation for taxpayers.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, as follows:  
 
 1. The governing body of the City of Cayce hereby grants permission for, 
authorizes, consents and approves implementation, administration and enforcement of 
Lexington County’s Ordinance 16-04 (“Lexington County Stormwater Management 
Ordinance”) and Lexington County’s 2016 Land Development Manual, which are hereby 
incorporated in this Ordinance by this reference, within the corporate limits of the City and 
for the benefit of the City and the public, with the exceptions stated below. 
 
 2. This permission, authorization, consent and approval specifically does not 
include:  
 
 (a)  Implementation, administration or enforcement of Chapter Eleven of Lexington 
County’s 2016 Land Development Manual, entitled “Flood Damage Prevention.” The City 
fully retains its own floodplain management program.   
 



 (b)  Criminal prosecutions for violations, occurring within the corporate limits of the 
City. Such violations, subject to the monetary jurisdictional limits imposed by the State 
law, are to be tried in the City’s Municipal Court.  
 
  

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second and final reading.  
 

 DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this _____ day of _______________, 
2016.   
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Mendy C. Corder, Municipal Clerk 
 
First reading:  _______________________ 
 
Second reading and adoption:  ___________________ 
 
Approved as to form:  _________________________  
       Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Rebecca Vance, City Manager  
Shaun Greenwood, Asst. City Manager 
Monique Ocean, Planning & Zoning Tech 

Date: December 27, 2016 

Subject: First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Zoning Map and 
Rezoning Property Located at 1741 Airport Blvd (TMS# 5743-01-
001, 005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013 (P)) from RS-2 (Single 
Family Residential) to M-1 (Light Industrial). 

________________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 

Council approval is needed for First Reading of an Ordinance to re-zone 1741 
Airport Blvd (TMS# 5743-01-001, 005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013 (P)) from 
RS-2 (Single Family Residential) to M-1 (Light Industrial). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

The applicant wishes to rezone the properties listed above from RS-2 (Single 
Family Residential) to M-1 (Light Industrial). The RS-2 zoning classification is 
primarily for single-family dwellings and their accessory uses.  Whereas, M-1 is 
intended to accommodate wholesaling, light industry, office and related business 
uses. 

The Columbia Wilbert Vault Company has been located on the properties for 
many years and the current zoning (RS-2) makes the existing use of 
miscellaneous manufacturing a nonconformity. Zoning regulations limit the 
expansion or modification of a non-conforming use. The applicant was denied a 
zoning permit to start an expansion to the existing business because of the 
residential zoning designation. The applicant would like to re-zone the properties 
in order for the zoning to fit the current business and any future expansion.  

The rezoning request is over 4 acres in size and consists of two parcels and a 
portion of a third. The subject properties are contiguous to residential and light 
manufacturing zoned districts.  The request complies with the Zoning Ordinance 
and the Future Land Use Plan. 

ITEM IV. B. 



City Council requested that the matter be re-evaluated by the Planning 
Commission at the next regular scheduled meeting to discuss the potential traffic 
impact if the properties were rezoned. The Planning Commission reheard the 
request for re-zoning at the meeting on December 19, 2016, as requested by City 
Council.   
 
Staff informed the Planning Commission that they spoke with a representative of 
the SC Department of Transportation (SCDOT) to discuss potential traffic 
through the area. The SCDOT indicated that a traffic study could be requested to 
determine if the commercial traffic posed a problem for the neighborhood streets 
and signs could be installed to prohibit commercial traffic through the area.   

 
The re-zoning request was opened for public comment.  Two members of the 
public signed up to speak against the potential rezoning. Krystle Eckrote and 
Brandon Williams of 1909 Fairlawn Circle stated they were concerned with the 
effect the rezoning may have on their property value, the noise that may be 
produced, and long term health concerns from a pet crematory.  
 
The Planning Commission unanimously recommends City Council approve the 
requested rezoning.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommends Council approve First Reading of an 
Ordinance to re-zone 1741 Airport Blvd (TMS# 5743-01-001, 005743-01-002, 
and 005743-01-013 (P)) from RS-2 (Single Family Residential) to M-1 (Light 
Industrial). 



 1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
     ) 
CITY OF CAYCE   ) 
      

ORDINANCE 2016-18 
Amending Zoning Map and Rezoning 
Property Located at 1741 Airport Blvd 
(Tax Map Numbers 005743-01-001, 
005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013 (P)) 
from RS-2 to M-1 

 
 WHEREAS, Margie Hoffman-Johnson, as the property owner, requested that the City 
of Cayce amend the Zoning Map to re-designate the property comprising and shown as 1741 
Airport Blvd (TMS# 005743-01-001, 005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013 (P)), now zoned 
Single Family Residential (RS-2) to Light Industrial (M-1), and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to receive 
comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on November 14, 2016, to review public 

comments and vote on recommending the rezoning request and unanimously voted to 
recommend this change to the existing zoning, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on the 
attached sketch, is hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of Cayce 
as M-1, Light Industrial: 
 

TMS# 005743-01-001, 005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013 (P) 
1741 Airport Blvd 

 
 This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by Council. 
 
 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2016. 

 
                ______________________________ 
                Elise Partin, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________  
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _____________________ 
 
Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 
 
Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
         Danny C. Crowe, City Attorney 
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AGENDA 
APPROVED MINUTES 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
CAYCE CITY HALL 

1800 12TH STREET, CAYCE SC 
Monday, October 17, 2016 

6:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Robert McLeod. Members present were Jason 
Simpson, Bob McArver, Robin DePietro, and Russ Vickery. Staff present were Monique 
Ocean and Shaun Greenwood.  

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A motion to approve the minutes of the March 21, 2016, meeting was made by Robin
DePietro. The motion was seconded by Jason Simpson. All were in favor.

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION
Robert McLeod inquired if the public and media were duly notified of the meeting. Monique
Ocean confirmed that everyone was notified.

IV. SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST NO. 002-16
A request by the applicant for a Special Exception for an after school enrichment program
in an M-1 (Light Industrial) zoning district. The property is located at 1820 Frink Street
(TMS 005724-06-005).
A. Opening Statement
Ms. Sandra McKnight came before the Board to explain the Afterschool Enrichment
program. She stated the program would have a pre-kindergarten session and an
afterschool session. Ms. McKnight explained that the Cayce Fire Marshall would permit
only nine students at a time so she would break the sessions into morning and afternoon.
Ms. McKnight addressed the following concerns from the Board: 1. Children would have
safe passage through the large parking area because each parent would be responsible
for escorting their child in and out, 2. a playground area is not required by the SC Dept. of
Social Services (DSS) but she will have a room for inside activities, and 3. DSS is not
concerned with her proximity to the store selling alcoholic beverages but the level of care
she will provide.
In response to questions from the Board, Mr. Greenwood explained that the request
pertained to the existing space and if Ms. McKnight decided to expand the business she
would need to come before the Board again, Public Safety has never received a high
volume of calls for the address, and that the special exception use would not affect the
current zoning for uses in the shopping center.
The Board discussed the requirements for a special exception to be approved and stated
that parking was sufficient for 9 children at a time, there would not be any environmental
factors that would affect the City, and the use does not anticipate a nuisance for public
safety.

ITEM VI. A. 
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APPROVED MINUTES 
OCTOBER 17, 2016 
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B. Public Testimony 
No one was present to speak for or against the special exception request. 
C. Adjourn Hearing   
With no further discussion, Mr. McLeod closed the hearing. 
 
 

 
V. MOTION- SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST NO. 002-16 

A motion was made by Mr. Vickery to approve the special exception. The motion was 
seconded by Ms. DiPietro. The motion to approve the special exception passed with a 
vote of four to one; Mr. McArver voted against the request. 
 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
There was no other business. 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Simpson made a motion to adjourn. Ms. DiPietro seconded the motion. All were in 
favor. 

 
A quorum of Council may be present.   

No discussion or action on the part of Council will be taken. 



CAYCE HOUSING AUTHORITY  
October 18, 2016 

 
 The Board of Commissioners of Columbia Housing Authority convened on 
Tuesday, October 18, 2016 at 5:08 PM in the Cayce Museum.. 
 
 The Chairperson called the meeting to order and upon roll call, those present and 
absent for the Columbia Housing Authority were as follows: 
 
 PRESENT: Jack Sightler, Chairperson 
   Bruce Smith, Commissioner  
   Silvia Sullivan, Commissioner 
   Gilbert Walker, Executive Director 

 
ABSENT: Janice Mixon, Commissioner 

 
STAFF: Howard Thomas, Lee McRoberts, Latoya Nix, Angel Cruz 
 

 Mr. Sightler called the meeting to order at 5:10 PM.  Mr. Smith opened with a 
prayer. 
 
 Mr. Walker introduced Ms. Latoya Nix as the acting property manager for Cayce. 
 
 Upon motion of Ms. Sullivan, seconded by Mr. Smith, the minutes of the August 
16th, 2016 were unanimously approved. 
 
 Ms. Nix delivered the Operations Report and stated all is well.  There were no 
accounts sent to the magistrate or over 30 days old in September or October.  Thirty work 
orders were received and completed in September; thirteen have been received to date in 
October and 10 completed as of the meeting.  No emergency work orders have been 
received.  
 
 Chief Cruz gave the Security Report.  There were six reports since the last 
meeting.  There were 2 reports from 1905 Poplar; the first was an attempted murder and 
involved the son of the resident, the second was a discharging a firearm charge.  During 
the attempted murder the son and another visitor were sitting on the back porch of the 
mother’s unit, the visitor was struck while walking between unit by a drive by shooter.  
Investigators believe the son was the intended target.  The second incident was reported 
after shots were heard coming from near the unit, shells were found outside but the 
resident would not allow a search of the unit for a gun.  Investigators have spoken to 
everyone involved but the son denies involvement.  Staff is beginning the eviction 
process against this family, updates will be provided at the next meeting. 
 
 A bench warrant was served to a resident of Spencer Place.  Three reports were 
filed at 2219 Lee St.; improper use of 911, harassment and CDV/assault.  Staff believes 
the family may be moving to another City but has begun the eviction process.  Chief Cruz 
is working closely with the Cayce Police Department on the case involving Poplar and 
will brief the Board in December.  Ms. Sullivan inquired about the family discussed at 
the August meeting, Ms. Nix said that the children have been taken off the lease and no 
more problems have occurred. 



  Mr. Walker gave a briefing on the recent grant applications submitted for 
funds to construct six units on the empty lot at Spencer Place.  An application was 
submitted for Project Based Vouchers (PBV) to house homeless veterans through the 
Veteran’s Administration Supportive Housing (VASH) program and an application was 
submitted to Lexington County for Community Block Development Grant funds (CDBG) 
to assist with infrastructure costs.  The project based vouchers could be used as collateral 
to borrow the funds to construct the unit.  They are a guaranteed source of income that 
will provide revenue to service the construction debt.  Mr. Thomas estimates that they 
will cost $60,000 per unit to build and that the Authority will need to borrow 
approximately $360,000.  Staff already owns the plans to construct the buildings and has 
been successful administering the VASH program in Columbia. 
 
 There was a general discussion regarding selection of residents and case 
management.  Mr. Thomas said the VA selects the tenants and provides extensive case 
management while the individual is in the program; there are currently 23 social workers 
for the roughly 400 people currently receiving services under VASH. 
 
 Mr. Smith asked about constructing market rate, affordable housing rather than 
using the PBV VASH program.  Mr. Thomas said that a contract is signed for a specific 
amount of time making the units VASH PBV, once that time has expired the Authority 
can use the units as they see fit.  The contract period is generally 10 years.  Mr. Walker 
said that Cayce could build market units like were built at Rosewood Hills by the 
Columbia Housing Authority and service the mortgage debt with rents. 
 
 There being no further business and upon motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Ms. 
Sullivan, it was unanimously decided to adjourn at the meeting 6:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
 

______________________________
         Secretary 

 
APPROVED: ___________________________ 



 

                                   
 
AGENDA           APPROVED MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
CAYCE CITY HALL 

1800 12TH STREET, CAYCE SC 
Monday, November 14, 2016 

6:00 PM 
 
  

I. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Ed Fuson. Members present were Butch 
Broehm, Larry Mitchell, John Raley, Chris Jordan, Robert Power, and Chris Kueny. 
Staff present were Monique Ocean and Shaun Greenwood. 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A motion was made by Mr. Broehm to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2016, 
meeting. Mr. Raley seconded the motion. All were in favor. The vote passed 
unanimously. 
 

III. STATEMENT OF NOTIFICATION 
Mr. Fuson asked if the media and the public had been duly informed of the hearing.  
Staff confirmed that everyone had been notified. 
 

IV. MAP AMENDMENT NO. 007-16 
A request by the owner for a zoning change from Single Family Residential (RS-2) to 
Light Industrial (M-1).  The property is located at 1741 Airport Blvd (TMS#005743-01-
001, 005743-01-002, and 005743-01-013(P)).  
A. Opening Statement  
Shaun Greenwood began by explaining to the Commission that the applicant 
discovered her property was zoned residential when she was denied a zoning permit 
for a pet cremator business. Mr. Greenwood stated the current zoning was also 
incompatible with the use of the property as a burial vault manufacturer and this may 
be another case of an error with the zoning map. He stated it could also be an intended 
zoning designation because of the contiguous residential area. Mrs. Hoffman-Johnson 
came before the Commission as the applicant to explain her request for the zoning 
change.  Mrs. Johnson stated the burial vault company was started by her grandfather 
years ago and has been at the same location. She stated she never knew the zoning 
was residential until she was looking into ways to grow her current business. Mrs. 
Johnson stated the pet cremator was one idea she looked into. She stated the pet 
cremator was not definite but she still wanted the property to be zoned to fit the 
historical and current use as a manufacturer. Ms. Audrey Hoffman came forward to 
speak for the applicant by answering questions about the pet cremator. 
B. Public Testimony 
Residents of the Fairlawn Circle neighborhood were present to speak at the public 
hearing for the rezoning request and five of those present, signed in to speak. Three 
specified they were against the request, one was undecided, and one made no 
selection. Mr. Fuson asked for anyone wishing to come forward to speak. Of those 
signed in, Hank Vickerson of 2035 Fairlawn Circle, Jonna Gates of 1845 Evelyn 
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Street, Larry Stanfield of Fairlawn Circle, and Nan Fowkes, 1920 Rosemary Drive, 
came before the Commission to voice their concerns. 

The concerns were the following: 
1. Current traffic from trucks belonging to the Wilbert Vault Company is 

dangerous to the neighborhood. 
2. The present condition of the small street (Rosemary Street) between Airport 

Boulevard and Fairlawn Circle is terrible due to the large trucks.  
3. The possibility of additional traffic, if the property was granted the rezoning, 

may be a problem. 
4. Creation of another entrance, from Airport Boulevard instead of the 

neighborhood street, for the Wilbert Vault trucks would be ideal. 
5. Some of the landscaping is causing visibility problem for drivers. 
6. Disposal of ashes, if the applicant decided to pursue the pet cremator. 
7. Effect on residential taxes for the area, if the property is rezoned to light 

industrial. 

The applicant stated they were not aware of any problems with the street or with 
the landscaping but would be happy to speak with the people from the 
neighborhood to try to resolve the problems. 

C. Adjourn Hearing 
With no further discussion, the hearing was adjourned. 

 
A. MOTION – MAP AMENDMENT NO. 007-16 

A motion was made by Mr. Jordan to recommend the rezoning to Council. The motion 
was seconded by Mr. Mitchell. All were in favor. The vote passed unanimously. 

B. MAP AMENDMENT NO. 008-16 
A request by the owner for a zoning change from C-3 (Central Commercial) to a 
Development Agreement District (DAD).  The property is located at 613 Knox Abbott 
Drive (TMS#004649-01-011 and 004649-01-013). 

A. Opening Statement  
Mr. Greenwood began by explaining to the Commission that the request was from 
Lexington School District Two. He stated that a successful rezoning of the property 
to a DAD district would allow it to become a part of BC High School’s existing DAD. 
Mr. Greenwood clarified that a development plan would still need to be approved 
by Council. Todd Sease and Don Eisenhower came before the Commission to 
speak as the applicant.  Mr. Sease stated the request was for a property 
contiguous to the school and would house a 40,000 square ft. new gymnasium. 
Mr. Greenwood explained, for the record, that the request included two tax map 
numbers – one for the property and one for the building.   
B. Public Testimony 
No one was present to speak for or against the rezoning request.  
C. Adjourn Hearing 
With no further discussion, the hearing was adjourned. 

 
C. MOTION – MAP AMENDMENT NO. 008-16 

A motion was made by Mr. Kueny to recommend the rezoning request to Council.  Mr. 
Raley seconded the motion. The vote passed with six in favor of the map amendment. 
Mr. Chris Jordan recused himself from the vote because of his association with the 
school district’s design committee. 



 

 
D. OTHER BUSINES 

Mr. Greenwood informed the Commission that the previous reading for the rezoning 
on State Street died without an approval or denial from City Council and would need 
another reading.  

 
E. ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Mr. Mitchell. The motion was seconded by Mr. Raley. All 
were in favor. 

 
 

 
A quorum of Council may be present.   

No discussion or action on the part of Council will be taken. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

January 3, 2017 

All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

MUSEUM COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION  
Mr. A.G. Dantzler’s term has expired on the Museum Commission.  He has served on the Commission since 
1998, consistently attends meetings and the Commission recommends him for reappointment.  His reappointment 
application is attached for Council’s review.   

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION 
Council Member Tara Almond is currently serving on the Beautification Foundation. 

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION   
Council Member Eva Corley is currently serving on the Public Safety Foundation. 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member applications. 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – THREE (3) POSITIONS  
Two positions must be filled by someone from the motel industry in Cayce.  One position must be filled by 
someone from the restaurant industry in Cayce.   

BEAUTIFICATION BOARD – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
The Board has no recommendations at this time.  

CAYCE HOUSING AUTHORITY – ONE (1) POSITION  
There is currently one open position on the Cayce Housing Authority. 

CAYCE MUNICIPAL ELECTION COMMISSION – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
There are currently two open positions on the Municipal Election Commission.  

CONSOLIDATED BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
Members who serve on this Board must be either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design Professional.  
There are no recommendations at this time.       

EVENTS COMMITTEE – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
There is currently two open positions on the Events Committee.  The Committee has no recommendations at this 
time.    

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
The Foundation has no recommendations at this time.   

ITEM VI. B. 





City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

January 3, 2017 

All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

MUSEUM COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION  
Mr. A.G. Dantzler’s term has expired on the Museum Commission.  He has served on the Commission since 
1998, consistently attends meetings and the Commission recommends him for reappointment.  His reappointment 
application is attached for Council’s review.   

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION 
Council Member Tara Almond is currently serving on the Beautification Foundation. 

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION   
Council Member Eva Corley is currently serving on the Public Safety Foundation. 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member applications. 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – THREE (3) POSITIONS  
Two positions must be filled by someone from the motel industry in Cayce.  One position must be filled by 
someone from the restaurant industry in Cayce.   

BEAUTIFICATION BOARD – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
The Board has no recommendations at this time.  

CAYCE HOUSING AUTHORITY – ONE (1) POSITION  
There is currently one open position on the Cayce Housing Authority. 

CAYCE MUNICIPAL ELECTION COMMISSION – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
There are currently two open positions on the Municipal Election Commission.  

CONSOLIDATED BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
Members who serve on this Board must be either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design Professional.  
There are no recommendations at this time.       

EVENTS COMMITTEE – TWO (2) POSITIONS  
There is currently two open positions on the Events Committee.  The Committee has no recommendations at this 
time.    

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
The Foundation has no recommendations at this time.   

ITEM VI. C. 
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